
2018-09-27 Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Thursday, September 27, 2018 at 4:00pm

Eskridge Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161



AGENDA
 

13.1. Wellness Neighborhood Thank You for Truckee Thursdays
Baby Station

13.2. September Employee of the Month.pdf
 
13.3. Becker's Community Hospital CIOs to Know 2018.pdf
 
13.4. Beckers Top 66 Critical Access Hospitals 2018.pdf
 

13. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

14.1.a. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Consent Agenda.pdf
 

14. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

15.1.1. 2018-08-23 Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
 

15.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes

15.2. Financial Report

15.3.1. CEO Board Report - September 2018.pdf
 
15.3.2. COO Board Report -September 2018 v2.pdf
 
15.3.3. CNO Board Report - September 2018.pdf
 
15.3.4. CIIO Board Report - September 2018.pdf
 

15.3. Board Reports

ABD-11 and ABD-23 Cover Sheet.pdf

15.4.1. ABD-11 Fiscal Policy.pdf
 

15.4. Policy Review

15.1.2. 2018-09-12 Special Meeting of the Board of
Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
 

15.2.1. Financial Report - August 2018.pdf
 

15.3.5. CMO Board Report - September 2018.pdf
 

15. CONSENT CALENDAR

2018-09-27 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors_FINAL
Agenda.pdf
 

ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
 

12. SAFETY FIRST

13.5. National Customer Service Week - October 1-5.pdf
 

14.1.b. Immuniz-Vacc MS-AHP Revised.pdf
 

15.4.2. ABD-23 Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for

Meeting Book - 2018-09-27 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

09/27/2018 Agenda Packet Contents

Page 4

Page 7

Page 8

Page 10

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 17

Page 23

Page 26

Page 35

Page 36

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 46

Page 2 of 134



16.1.a. Resolution 2018-08.pdf
 
16.1.b. Opus Tahoe Forest Hosp Dist Installment Purchase
Agreement v2.pdf
 
16.1.c. Opus Tahoe Forest Hosp Dist Schedule Number 01 v2.pdf
 

16.1. Resolution for Equipment Financing

16.2.a. Cover Sheet - TFHD Site Improvements Phase 1.pdf
 

16.3. Award of Construction Bid

16.4.a. Via Consulting Monthly TFHD Board Update on Strategic
Planning 09-18-2018.pdf

16.4. 2019-2021 Strategic Plan Approval

16.1.d. Amortization Table 9-18-18.pdf
 

16.2. 2018 Community Health Improvement Plan.pdf

16.2.b. TFHD Site Improvements Staff Recommendation
9.27.18.pdf
 

16. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION

17. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION

19. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds.pdf
 

16.4.b. Strategic Plan Framework v2.pdf

17.1. Recap of Governance Institute Leadership Conference
No related materials.

18. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF
NECESSARY

19.1. 2018-09-21 Board Finance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf
 

ITEMS 20 - 25: See Agenda

26. ADJOURN

Page 51

Page 54

Page 88

Page 109

Page 110

Page 130

Page 131

Page 132

Page 133

Page 134

Page 3 of 134



Page 1 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

200566.1 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AGENDA 

 

Thursday, September 27, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Eskridge Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. DELETIONS/CORRECTIONS TO THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT AUDIENCE   
This is an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any closed session item appearing before the Board on this 
agenda. Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Clerk of the Board 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.   
 

5. CLOSED SESSION   
5.1. Report Involving Trade Secrets (Health & Safety Code § 32106) 

Discussion will concern: Proposed new programs and facilities 
Estimated date of disclosure: September 2019 

5.2. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Second Quarter 2018 Quality Report 
Number of items: One (1) 

5.3. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Quality Assurance Reports 
Number of items: Two (2) 

5.4. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
08/23/2018 

5.5. TIMED ITEM – 5:30PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 
 
6. DINNER BREAK 

APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 
 

7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 
 

8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

9. DELETIONS/CORRECTIONS TO THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board 
Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the 

Page 4 of 134



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 27, 2018 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

 
200566.1 

Board cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board President may choose to acknowledge the comment 
or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 
 

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
This is an opportunity for members of the Employee Associations to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.   
 

12. SAFETY FIRST 
12.1. September Safety First Topic 
 

13. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
13.1. Wellness Neighborhood Thank You for Truckee Thursdays Baby Station 
13.2. September 2018 Employee of the Month ............................................................................ATTACHMENT 
13.3. Becker’s Community Hospital CIOs to Know 2018 ...............................................................ATTACHMENT 
13.4. Tahoe Forest Hospital Named in Becker's Hospital Review's 2018 List of "Critical Access Hospitals to 

Know" ......................................................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
13.5. National Customer Service Week .........................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

 
14. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

14.1. Medical Executive Committee (MEC) Meeting Consent Agenda .........................................ATTACHMENT 
MEC recommends the following for approval by the Board of Directors: Policies and Procedures: 

Immunizations/Vaccinations for Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional Staff, MSGEN-
1603 [Revised] 

 
15. CONSENT CALENDAR 

These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.  
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar for 
discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar.   

15.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
15.1.1. 08/23/2018 ..................................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
15.1.2. 09/12/2018 ..................................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

15.2. Financial Reports 
15.2.1. Financial Report – August 2018 ...................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

15.3. Staff Reports  
15.3.1. CEO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
15.3.2. COO Board Report........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
15.3.3. CNO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
15.3.4. CIIO Board Report ........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
15.3.5. CMO Board Report .......................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 

15.4. Policy Review 
15.4.1. ABD-11 Fiscal Policy .....................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
15.4.2. ABD-23 Post-Issuance Compliance Procedure for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds ...ATTACHMENT 

 
16. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

16.1. Resolution 2018-08 ...........................................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will review and consider approval of a resolution approving proposed 
equipment financing. 

Page 5 of 134



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 27, 2018 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

 
200566.1 

16.2. Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) ................................................................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will consider approval of the Community Health Improvement Plan. 

16.3. Award of Construction Bid ...............................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will review and consider award of a construction bid for demolition 
and paving of 10054 Pine Avenue. 

16.4. 2019-2021 Strategic Plan Approval ..................................................................................ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will consider approval of a strategic plan for 2019 through 2021. 
 

17. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
17.1. Recap of Governance Institute Leadership Conference 

The Board of Directors will discuss takeaways from their attendance at a recent Governance 
Institute Leadership Conference. 

 

18. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
 

19. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 
19.1. Finance Committee Meeting – 09/21/2018 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
19.2. Governance Committee Meeting – Meeting scheduled for September 28, 2018. Update will take 

place at October board meeting. 
19.3. Executive Compensation Committee Meeting – No meeting held in September. 
19.4. Quality Committee Meeting – No meeting held in September. 
 

20. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

21. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
 

22. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
 

23. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY 
 

24. OPEN SESSION  
 

25. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 
 

26. ADJOURN   
 
 

 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is October 25, 2018 at Tahoe 
Truckee Unified School District, 11603 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA. A copy of the board meeting agenda is posted on the 
District’s web site (www.tfhd.com) at least 72 hours prior to the meeting or 24 hours prior to a Special Board Meeting. 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices on 
the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is 
accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public 
meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 
582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 6 of 134

http://www.tfhd.com/


 

Page 7 of 134



 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE    Contact: Paige Thomason  

Sept 13, 2018       Tahoe Forest Health System  

        Director of Marketing/Communications  

        (530) 582-6290 

pthomason@tfhd.com 

 
Jake Dorst, Tahoe Forest Health System  

Chief Information and Innovation Officer,  

Named to Becker's Hospital Review Community Hospital CIOs to Know  

www.tfhd.com 
 
(Tahoe/Truckee. Calif.) – Becker's Hospital Review recently recognized 72 community hospital CIOs in 
2018. Jake Dorst, Chief Information and Innovation Officer at Tahoe Forest Health System was named with 
this designation. 
 
Hospitals and health systems rely on CIOs and IT department leaders to develop long-term technology 
strategy and oversee EMR implementation, as well as support telehealth, data-gathering, cybersecurity and 
more.  
 
Those who lead a community hospital or health system IT department and functions face unique challenges 
in their efforts to connect with patients, physician offices and other care settings—often across broad 
geographies using limited resources. 
 
The professionals on the Becker’s list of 72 are set apart by the outstanding recognitions they've earned 
and exciting new projects they're piloting. Many individuals on this list are members of the Health 
Integration and Management Systems Society, and their workplace has earned a spot on Hospitals & Health 
Networks’ Health Care's Most Wired list in 2018. 
 
The Becker's editorial team solicited nominations and conducted internal research to develop this list. 
Individuals and organizations represented did not pay and cannot pay for inclusion. For the complete list, 
go to Becker's Hospital Review. 
 
 

#### 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 134

mailto:pthomason@tfhd.com
http://www.tfhd.com/
https://www.beckershospitalreview.com/lists/72-community-hospital-cios-to-know-2018.html


 

 

 

 

About Becker’s Hospital Review 

Becker's Hospital Review is a monthly publication offering up-to-date business and legal news and analysis 

relating to hospitals and health systems. Content is geared toward high-level hospital leaders, and we work to 

provide valuable content, including hospital and health system news, best practices and legal guidance 

specifically for these decision-makers. Each issue of Becker's Hospital Review reaches more than 18,000 people, 

primarily acute-care hospital CEOs, CFOs and CIOs. 

 

About Tahoe Forest Health System 

Tahoe Forest Health System, with locations in Truckee, CA, and Incline Village, NV, offers 24-hour 

emergency care, a total joint orthopedic program including direct anterior hip replacement surgery, 

physician multi-specialty clinics, Women and Family/OB department, and CoC-accredited cancer 

center. With a strong focus on high quality patient care, community collaboration, clinical excellence 

and innovation, Tahoe Forest Health System is a UC Davis Rural Center of Excellence. For a complete 

list of physician specialties and services, visit www.tfhd.com. 
 

 

High-resolution photo attached: Jake Dorst.jpg. Caption - Jake Dorst, Chief Information Officer, Tahoe Forest 

Health System.  

Page 9 of 134

http://www.tfhd.com/


 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE     Contact: Paige Thomason  
September 12, 2018      Tahoe Forest Health System  
        Director of Marketing/Communications  
        (530) 582-6290 

pthomason@tfhd.com 

 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL NAMED 

IN BECKER’S HOSPITAL REVIEW 
“66 CRITICAL ACCESS HOSPITALS TO KNOW 2018” 

 
List Features Hospitals Who Demonstrate Excellence  

in Caring for Their Communities 
    

www.tfhd.com 
 
(Tahoe/Truckee, CA) – For the fourth year in a row, Tahoe Forest Hospital was named in Becker’s Hospital 
Review’s list of “Critical Access Hospitals to Know” in the United States.  Tahoe Forest Hospital is honored 
to know we are the only critical access hospital in California, Nevada or Arizona to receive this prestigious 
designation.   
 
The list features critical access hospitals that have demonstrated excellence in caring for their communities 
and going the extra mile for their patients.  “At Tahoe Forest, our focus is providing excellent and 
compassionate care to our community, ” said Harry Weis, Chief Executive Officer, Tahoe Forest Health 
System. “It’s what we strive to do every day. This focus on excellence is a ‘thank you’ to the people we serve 
in our community.”  
 
To develop this list, the Becker's Healthcare editorial team examined the rankings and awards from 
organizations such as iVantage Health Analytics, Healthgrades, the National Rural Health Association, 
CareChex, The Chartis Group and Medicare star ratings. The team also considered the hospital's community 
impact and reputation for innovation. 
 
Critical access hospitals must have no more than 25 inpatient beds, have an annual length of stay of no 
more than 96 hours for acute care, offer 24/7 emergency care, and be located at least 35 miles from 
another hospital.  There are more than 1,332 critical access hospitals in the United States. 
 
For a complete list of selected hospitals, go to http://www.beckershospitalreview.com. 
 

 

 

 

### 

Page 10 of 134

mailto:pthomason@tfhd.com
http://www.tfhd.com/
http://www.beckershospitalreview.com/lists/62-critical-access-hospitals-to-know-2017.html


About Tahoe Forest Health System 

Tahoe Forest Health System, with locations in Truckee, CA, and Incline Village, NV, offers 24-hour 

emergency care, a total joint orthopedic program including direct anterior hip replacement surgery, 

physician multi-specialty clinics, OB department, and CoC-accredited cancer center. With a strong 

focus on high quality patient care, community collaboration, clinical excellence and innovation, Tahoe 

Forest Health System is a UC Davis Rural Center of Excellence. For a complete list of physician 

specialties and services, visit www.tfhd.com. 

 

High resolution photo attached – staff.jpg – Staff of Tahoe Forest Hospital  
 

 

Page 11 of 134

http://www.tfhd.com/


 

National Customer Service Week:   October 1- 5th 2018 

To recognize employees for the great customer service they provide to their patients and 

families.  Let’s ask everyone What Matters Most to them during this week:  Both employees 

and patients and families.  Make it a practice to find out…   

Always be amazing and provide amazing service to each other and to our patients and families.  

 

 

 

Page 12 of 134



 

 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
   CONFIDENTIAL  
   PLEASE DO NOT REPRODUCE OR DISTRIBUTE   
  This is a Medical Staff Committee document protected by Sec. 1157 of the Calif. Evidence Code  
 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Thursday, September 20, 2018 
 

 
REFERRED BY: 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 

 
RECOMMEND 

 

 

MEDICAL STAFF A motion was made, seconded, and carried to recommend approval of the following to the Board of 

Directors: 

Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee recommends approval of the following: Recommend approval 

Policies and Procedures: 

 

Immunizations/Vaccinations for Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional 

Staff, MSGEN-1603 [Revised] 
 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 134



COPY

Current Status: Pending PolicyStat ID: 5354774

Origination Date: 09/2016
Last Approved: N/A
Last Revised: 09/2018
Next Review: 3 years after approval
Department: Medical Staff - MSGEN
Applies To: System

Immunizations/Vaccinations for Medical Staff and
Allied Health Professional Staff, MSGEN-1603

PURPOSE:

POLICY:

A. Hepatitis B

1. Proof of 3 vaccines

2. OR proof of immunity (do not draw titer unless it is 1-2 months following the 3rd vaccine).

3. Physician may *decline this vaccine, but it is being offered free of charge for those who are at risk of
coming in contact with blood and other potentially infectious body fluids.

B. Measles, Mumps, and Rubella (MMR)

1. Proof of 2 vaccines

2. OR laboratory evidence of immunity (Titers)

C. Varicella (Chicken Pox)

1. Proof of 2 vaccines

2. OR history of Varicella from a physician

3. OR laboratory evidence of immunity (Titers)

D. Influenza

1. Proof of current year's vaccination.

The purpose of this policy is to protect the health and safety of employees, patients, family members, and the
community as a whole by ensuring that current Medical Staff and Allied Health Staff (*Health Care
Professionals) are immune to vaccine preventable diseases.

The Federal Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP), the Centers for Disease Control (CDC)
and the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) make recommendations for vaccine administration to
healthcare personnel. There are no federal or state laws that require healthcare personnel to accept any
vaccination. However, those who choose not to be vaccinated must sign a *declination form for the particular
vaccine and follow the procedure below (See "Procedure"). The following vaccines are required per Aerosol
Transmissible Disease (ATD) and Blood Borne Pathogen (BBP) standards:

Immunizations/Vaccinations for Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional Staff, MSGEN-1603. Retrieved 09/20/2018.
Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/5354774/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 1 of 3

Page 14 of 134

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=37247
https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=29046


COPY

2. Education on annual influenza is provided at the time of new physician orientation.

3. *Declination of annual influenza requires that a surgical mask be worn while working throughout the
flu season as defined by the County Health Officer.

E. Tdap

1. Proof of one time vaccination booster.

F. TB Screening

1. No previous history of a positive screening

◦ Two step TB skin test

◦ OR Quantiferon blood test result

• Show proof of chest x-ray (one view is acceptable) and provide history of review of symptoms
related to TB.

• Must complete the TB Symptom Review Form annually as the TB screening

PROCEDURE:

A. Medical Staff Services will maintain the record of immunity status for all HCPs not employed by TFHD.
Occupational Health will maintain the record of immunity status for all HCPs employed by TFHD.

B. All HCPs will receive a flu/influenza vaccination annually per Tahoe Forest Hospital District policy.

C. Upon initial credentialing application, applicants are required to provide proof of immunity and TB
screening.

D. All HCPs are required to have an annual TB screening per TFHD.

E. The District will provide other immunizations on a case by case basis following exposure/events.

F. *If declination of vaccines is requested for religious or other reasons, the request must be in writing and
provided to the Medical Staff Services office who will provide it to the Occupational Health nurse to make
a determination whether the request is acceptable and will notify the Medical Staff Services office of the
medical exception. Medical Staff Services will maintain a record of any approved medical exceptions for
all HCPs not employed by TFHD. If a declination is accepted, the Medical Staff Services office will notify
the HCP and the HCP's appropriate department manager who will monitor the unvaccinated HCP to
ensure the HCP is wearing a mask (for flu) to protect patients. Restrictions on presence in the facility
may be placed on the HCP at any time based upon current exposures.

G. The privileges of those HCPs who do not begin the vaccination schedule or receive a medical exception

2. History of positive TB screening in past:

Tahoe Forest Hospital District ("TFHD"), through Occupational Health Services, will ensure that all healthcare
personnel are offered immunizations/vaccines based on the recommendations and guidelines from ACIP,
CDC, and CDPH.

Health Care Professionals ("HCPs") not employed by TFHD may be eligible for MMR, Varicella, Hepatitis B
and Tdap vaccines at low or no cost, in accordance with the TFHD policy on Professional Courtesy Discounts
for Health Care Professionals.

The prevention and control of infections is a shared responsibility among all clinical and non-clinical people in
the hospital.

Immunizations/Vaccinations for Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional Staff, MSGEN-1603. Retrieved 09/20/2018.
Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/5354774/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 2 of 3

Page 15 of 134



COPY

will lapse until they meet this requirement.

H. All current HCPs will follow the procedures listed above for continuation of privileges.

Special Instructions / Definitions:

References:

All revision dates: 09/2018, 10/2016, 09/2016, 09/2016

Attachments: No Attachments

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Harry Weis: CEO pending

Jean Steinberg: Director, Medical Staff Svs. 09/2018

Applicability

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Health Care Professional ("HCPs) means members of the Tahoe Forest Hospital or Incline Village Community
Hospital Medical or Allied Health Professional Staff or Residents, or medical students; or, applicants
requesting Medical or Allied Health Professional Staff membership and privileges, or Residents who request
clinical privileges.

Immunization and Immunity Testing Recommendations, California Department of Public Health; AICP
guidelines for "Evidence of Immunity", www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/acip-recs/index.html, www.immunize.org/
acip, Title 8 Section 5199

Immunizations/Vaccinations for Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional Staff, MSGEN-1603. Retrieved 09/20/2018.
Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/5354774/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 3 of 3

Page 16 of 134

http://www.cdc.gov/vaccines/hcp/acip-recs/index.html
http://www.immunize.org/acip
http://www.immunize.org/acip


 

Page 1 of 6 

 Denotes Action Item 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 

Thursday, August 23, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe City Public Utility District Office 

221 Fairway Drive, Tahoe City, CA 96145 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:  Dale Chamblin, Board President; Randy Hill, Vice President; Alyce Wong, Secretary; Charles 
Zipkin, M.D., Treasurer; Mary Brown, Board Member  
 
Staff in attendance: Harry Weis, Chief Executive Officer; Crystal Betts, Chief Financial Officer; Judy 
Newland, Chief Operating Officer; Martina Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 
 
Other: David Ruderman, Assistant General Counsel 
 

3. DELETIONS/CORRECTIONS TO THE POSTED AGENDA 
Item 5.3. will be removed from the agenda. 
 
4. INPUT AUDIENCE   
No public comment was received. 
 

5. CLOSED SESSION   
5.1. Report Involving Trade Secrets (Health & Safety Code § 32106) 

Discussion will concern: potential new service 
Estimated date of disclosure: December 2018 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.2. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Second Quarter 2018 Service Excellence Report 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.3. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Quality Assurance Report 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.4. Conference with Legal Counsel; Anticipated Litigation (Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2) & (d)(3))  
A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the Board on the advice of its legal counsel, based 
on the below-described existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation 
against the District. Number of Potential Cases: One 

Page 17 of 134



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
August 23, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Receipt of Claim pursuant to Tort Claims Act or other written communication threatening litigation 
(copy available for public inspection in Clerk’s office). (Gov. Code 54956.9 (e)(3)) 
 
Name of Person Threatening Litigation: Anne-Flore Dwyer 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.5. Conference with Legal Counsel; Anticipated Litigation (Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2) & (d)(3))  
A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the Board on the advice of its legal counsel, based 
on the below-described existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant exposure to litigation 
against the District. Number of Potential Cases: One 

 
Receipt of Claim pursuant to Tort Claims Act or other written communication threatening litigation 
(copy available for public inspection in Clerk’s office). (Gov. Code 54956.9 (e)(3)) 
 
Name of Person Threatening Litigation: Christine Kelly 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.6. Conference with Legal Counsel; Anticipated Litigation (Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2) & (d)(3)) 
A point has been reached where, in the opinion of the District Board, on the advice of its legal 
counsel, based on the below-described existing facts and circumstances, there is a significant 
exposure to litigation against the District. 
 
Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation but which the District believes are not yet 
known to potential plaintiff or plaintiffs.  (Gov. Code § 54956.9(e)(1)) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.7. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
07/26/2018 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.8. TIMED ITEM – 5:15PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Compliance Report 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

5.9. TIMED ITEM – 5:30PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 
Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 
6. DINNER BREAK 

APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 
 

7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 
Open Session reconvened at 6:02 p.m. 
 
8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

Page 18 of 134



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
August 23, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

General Counsel reported there were eight items considered in closed session.  Item 5.3. was 
removed from the agenda. There was no reportable action on items 5.1., 5.2., 5.6. and 5.8. Item 5.4. 
and 5.5. were rejected on a 5-0 vote. Item 5.7. and 5.9. were approved on a 5-0 vote. 
 
9. DELETIONS/CORRECTIONS TO THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the remainder of the agenda. 
 
10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
No public comment was received. 
 
11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
No public comment was received. 

 
12. SAFETY FIRST 

12.1. Chief Information and Innovation Officer Jake Dorst presented the August Safety First topic on 
medication barcoding. 

 

13. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
13.1. Jose Mendieta was named August 2018 Employee of the Month. 
13.2. TFHD Recognized as High-Performing Hospital in Hip Replacement by US News and World Report 

 
14. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

14.1. Medical Executive Committee (MEC) Meeting Consent Agenda 
MEC recommends the following for approval by the Board of Directors: Policies and 

Procedures: Video Surveillance Policy, Annual Review of PT/OT Policies 
Discussion was held. 
 
Dr. Joshua Scholnick, Acting Chief of Staff, noted the second sentence in capital letters under 
Procedure item C4 should have been deleted. 
 
No public comment was received. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Wong, seconded by Director Brown, to approve the 
Video Surveillance policy with the change noted above. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Zipkin, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Hill, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve the 
annual review of PT/OT Policies as presented. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Zipkin, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
15. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Page 19 of 134



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
August 23, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without 
discussion.  Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the 
Consent Calendar for discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar.   

15.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
15.1.1. 07/26/2018 
15.1.2. 08/09/2018 

15.2. Financial Reports 
15.2.1. Financial Report – July 2018 

15.3. Staff Reports  
15.3.1. CEO Board Report 
15.3.2. COO Board Report 
15.3.3. CNO Board Report 
15.3.4. CIIO Board Report 

15.4. Policy Review 
15.4.1. ABD-06 Conflict of Interest Code 

 
Director Brown requested item 15.3.1. be pulled from the consent calendar. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Brown, to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented excluding item 15.3.1. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Zipkin, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

16.1. Board Education 
16.1.1. California Hospital Association 

Anne McLeod of California Hospital Association provided a legislative update to the Board of 
Directors. Discussion was held. 
 
17. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

17.1. Resolution 2018-07 
The Board of Directors considered approval of a resolution to form a Limited Liability Company (LLC) 
for the purpose of acquiring and managing a parcel of real property. Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented. Roll call vote taken. 

                    No public comment received. 
Brown – AYE 
Zipkin – AYE 
Wong – AYE 
Hill – AYE 
Chamblin – AYE 
 

17.2. Extended Care Center (ECC) Facility Wide Assessment 

Page 20 of 134



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
August 23, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

The Board of Directors considered approval of the ECC facility wide assessment. Discussion was 
held. 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Hill, to approve the 
Extended Care Center Facility Wide Assessment as presented. 

  No public comment was received. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Zipkin, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 

18. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
18.1. Strategic Planning Update 

Chief Executive Office provided an update on the Strategic Planning process. 
 

18.2. Retirement Committee 
Brian Montanez of The Multnomah Group provided a semi-annual update to the Board on behalf of 
the Retirement Committee. 
 

19. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
Item 15.3.1. was discussed.  
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Zipkin, to approve the 
CEO Board Report as presented. 

  No public comment was received. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Zipkin, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
20. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

20.1. Quality Committee Meeting – 08/09/2018 
Director Wong provided an update from the recent Quality meeting. 

20.2. Governance Committee Meeting – No meeting held in August. 
20.3. Executive Compensation Committee Meeting – No meeting held in August. 
20.4. Finance Committee Meeting – No meeting held in August. 
 

21. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
Finance Committee will meet in September. 
 
22. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
-Score Survey 
-Behavioral/Mental Health resources 
 
23. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
None.  
 
24. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY 

Page 21 of 134



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
August 23, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

None. 
 
25. OPEN SESSION  

 

26. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 
Not applicable. 
 
27. ADJOURN   
Meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 22 of 134



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 at 9:30 a.m. 
Tahoe Conference Room – Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10054 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 9:35 a.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:  Dale Chamblin, Board President; Alyce Wong, Secretary; Mary Brown, Board Member  
 
Staff in attendance: Crystal Betts, Chief Financial Officer; Judy Newland, Chief Operating Officer; Dylan 
Crosby, Manager of Facilities Management and Construction; Martina Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 
 
Other: Jason Shakespeare of Geney Gassiot  
 
Absent: Chuck Zipkin, Treasurer 
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
4. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
No public comment was received. 
 
5. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

5.1. Master Plan Update 
COO provided an update on the District’s Master Plan. Discussion was held. 
 
Director Hill joined the meeting at 9:36 a.m. 
 
Discussion was held. 
 
6. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION  

6.1. Master Plan Project Budget Changes  
The Board of Directors will consider for approval the Medical Office Building third floor tenant 
improvements and Cancer Center second floor tenant improvements total project costs. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Hill, seconded by Director Wong, to approve the 3rd 
Floor Medical Office Building Tenant Improvement project of a total project cost 
not to exceed $3,807,241.00. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  

Page 23 of 134



Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 12, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 3 

NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Hill, seconded by Director Wong, to approve the 2nd 

Floor Cancer Center Tenant Improvement project of a total project cost not to 
exceed $7,776,505.00. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
6.2. Medical Office Building 3rd Floor Project Contracts Award 

The Board of Directors will consider awarding contracts for the Medical Office Building 3rd Floor tenant 
improvements and authorizing staff to dispense with further competitive bidding on projects for which 
the District received no bids.  
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Hill, to award the 
contracts as listed on TFHD MOB 3rd Floor TI Staff Recommendations on Contracts 
attachment. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Brown, seconded by Director Wong, to authorize 
dispensing with further competitive bidding where no bids were received and 
authorize solicitations of proposals for Division 8 Doors and Windows, and 
Division 10 Specialties to fulfill the recommended project budget of $49,018.00. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 
 

 
6.3. Cancer Center 2nd Floor Project Contracts Award 

The Board of Directors will consider awarding contracts for the 2nd Floor Tenant Improvement for the 
Cancer Center and authorizing staff to dispense with further competitive bidding on projects for which 
the District received no bids. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Wong, seconded by Director Brown, to authorize 
dispensing with further competitive bidding where no bids were received, and 
authorize solicitations of proposals for Division 8 Doors and Windows, and 
Division 10 Specialties to fulfill the recommended project budget of $126,356.00. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 

Page 24 of 134



Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
September 12, 2018 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Absent: None 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Wong, seconded by Director Brown, to award the 
contracts as listed on TFHD Cancer Center 2nd Floor TI Staff Recommendations on 
Contracts attachment. 
AYES: Directors Brown, Wong, Hill and Chamblin 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
7. ADJOURN   
Meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 134



PAGE DESCRIPTION

2 - 3 FINANCIAL NARRATIVE

4 STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

5 NOTES TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

6 CASH INVESTMENT

7 TFHD STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

8 IVCH STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE

9  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT

AUGUST 2018 FINANCIAL REPORT

INDEX

Page 26 of 134



Board of Directors 

Of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

AUGUST 2018 FINANCIAL NARRATIVE 
 

 

The following is the financial narrative analyzing financial and statistical trends for the two months ended August 31, 2018. 

 
 
Activity Statistics 

 
 
 TFH acute patient days were 514 for the current month compared to budget of 428. This equates to an average daily census of 

16.60 compared to budget of 13.80. 

 
 TFH Outpatient volumes were above budget in the following departments by at least 5%: Surgical cases, Endoscopy 

procedures, Mammography, Nuclear Medicine, MRI, Cat Scan, PET CT, Drugs Sold to Patients, Hospice visits, Emergency 

Department visits, Physical Therapy, Occupational Therapy, Laboratory tests, and Cardiac Rehabilitation.  

 
Financial Indicators 

 
 
 Net Patient Revenue as a percentage of Gross Patient Revenue was 51.3% in the current month compared to budget of 53.4% 

and to last month’s 51.1%.   Current year’s Net Patient Revenue as a percentage of Gross Patient Revenue is 51.2%, compared 

to budget of 53.5% and prior year’s 55.2%. 

        

 EBIDA was $4,026,166 (12.8%) for the current month compared to budget of $1,946,035 (6.9%), or $2,080,131 (5.9%) above 

budget. Year-to-date EBIDA was $5,194,372 (8.9%) compared to budget of $2,879,670 (5.3%), or $2,314,702 (3.7%) above 

budget. 

 

 Cash Collections for the current month were $12,611,658 which is 90% of targeted Net Patient Revenue.  We had an issue with 

the post office that caused them to return mail to our payors since mid-August.  This has been resolved and payors will be 

reissuing payment.  We expect those payments to be received the last week of September/first week of October. 

 

 EPIC Gross Accounts Receivables were $68,240,466 at the end of August compared to $60,852,249 at the end of July. Legacy 

Gross Accounts Receivable was $2,342,027 at the end of August compared to $2,860,751 at the end of July, a reduction of 

$518,724. 

 

 

Balance Sheet 
 

 

 Working Capital Days Cash on Hand is 6.2 days. S&P Days Cash on Hand is 150.4. Working Capital cash decreased 

$5,330,000. Accounts Payable decreased $2,632,000, Accrued Payroll & Related Costs increased $661,000, and cash 

collections fell short of target by 10%. 

 

 Net Patients Accounts Receivable increased approximately $3,030,000 and Cash collections were at 90% of target. EPIC Days 

in A/R at the close of August were 79.0. 

 

 Estimated Settlements, Medi-Cal and Medicare increased $1,118,000 after booking estimated amounts in August for the 

FY19 Hospital Quality Assurance Fee, California Health & Wellness and Anthem Rate Range IGT, and the SNF 

Supplemental Reimbursement programs and the District remitted monies due back to the State for an overpayment on the 

FY14-15 AB915 that was booked back to FY18. 

 

 GO Bond Tax Revenue Fund increased $138,000 after receiving the final FY18 property tax revenues from Placer County.  

 

 Accounts Payable decreased $2,632,000 due to the timing of the final check run in August. 

 

 Accrued Payroll & Related Costs increased a net $661,000 due to three additional accrued payroll days over July. 

 

 

 

Page 27 of 134



August 2018 Financial Narrative  

 

 

 

Operating Revenue 

 
 Current month’s Total Gross Revenue was $31,473,057, compared to budget of $28,154,060 or $3,318,997 above budget.   

 

 Current month’s Gross Inpatient Revenue was $7,954,911, compared to budget of $7,362,670 or $592,241 above budget. 

 

 Current month’s Gross Outpatient Revenue was $23,518,146 compared to budget of $20,791,390 or $2,726,756 above budget. 

 

 Current month’s Gross Revenue Mix was 41.0% Medicare, 14.6% Medi-Cal, .0% County, 3.5% Other, and 40.9% 

Insurance compared to budget of 36.9% Medicare, 17.2% Medi-Cal, .0% County, 3.6% Other, and 42.3% Insurance.  Last 

month’s mix was 39.7% Medicare, 17.6% Medi-Cal, .0% County, 2.4% Other, and 40.3% Insurance. Year-to-date Gross 

Revenue Mix was 40.4% Medicare, 16.0% Medi-Cal, .0% County, 3.0% Other, and 40.6% Insurance. 

 

 Current month’s Deductions from Revenue were $15,321,426 compared to budget of $13,106,605 or $2,214,821 above 

budget. Variance is attributed to the following reasons: 1) Payor mix varied from budget with a 4.07% increase in Medicare, 

a 2.53% decrease to Medi-Cal, County at budget, a .14% decrease in Other, and Commercial was below budget 1.39%, 

and 2) Revenues exceeded budget by 11.8%. 

 

 

 

 DESCRIPTION           

August 

 2018 

 Actual 

August 

 2018 

Budget 

 

 

Variance 

 

BRIEF COMMENTS 

 

Salaries & Wages  

 

4,785,665 

 

5,280,112 

 

494,447 

We saw positive variances in Technical, RN and 

Clerical wages against budget.  

 

Employee Benefits  

 

1,461,600 

 

1,500,607 

 

39,007 

 

 
Benefits – Workers 

Compensation 

 

 

59,329 

 

 

55,821 

 

 

(3,508) 

 

 

Benefits – Medical 

Insurance 

 

 

755,429 

 

 

598,402 

 

 

(157,027) 

We saw greater usage of our self-insured health 

insurance in August, causing a negative variance in 

Benefits-Medical Insurance. 

 

 

Professional Fees 

 

 

2,320,702 

 

 

2,161,332 

 

 

(159,370) 

We saw negative variances in Emergency 

Department Call coverage, Hospitalist fees, 

Therapist fees, and legal fees provided to TIRHR. 

 

 

Supplies 

 

 

1,884,789 

 

 

2,291,042 

 

 

406,253 

Positive variance in Supplies primarily related to 

Oncology Drugs Sold To Patients pharmacy costs. 

Revenues fell short of budget by 22.2%. 

 

 

 

Purchased Services 

 

 

 

1,131,881 

 

 

 

1,458,814 

 

 

 

326,933 

Repairs & Maintenance, Collection Agency fees, 

and District wide purchased services fell short of 

budget, creating a positive variance in Purchased 

Services. 

 

 

Other Expenses 

 

 

630,049 

 

 

631,945 

 

 

1,896 

Controllable costs continue to be monitored closely 

by Senior Leadership, aiding in a positive variance 

in Other Expenses. 

 

Total Expenses 

 

13,029,444 

 

13,978,075 

 

948,631 

 

 

Page 28 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AUGUST 2018 - PRE-AUDIT

PRE-AUDIT PRE-AUDIT  

Aug-18 Jul-18 Aug-17

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

* CASH 2,675,287$           8,004,865$            9,905,994$           1

 PATIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - NET 28,695,735           25,665,622            18,625,963           2

OTHER RECEIVABLES 6,184,231             5,607,012              5,066,186              

GO BOND RECEIVABLES 374,886                138,437                 808,025                 

ASSETS LIMITED OR RESTRICTED 6,853,249             6,987,359             6,482,211             

INVENTORIES 3,123,845             3,130,060              3,018,381              

PREPAID EXPENSES & DEPOSITS 2,830,612             2,225,266              2,047,057             

  ESTIMATED SETTLEMENTS, M-CAL & M-CARE 7,327,067             6,209,175              11,373,304           3

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 58,064,911           57,967,796           57,327,122           

NON CURRENT ASSETS

ASSETS LIMITED OR RESTRICTED:

* CASH RESERVE FUND 62,129,099           62,129,099            61,374,995           1

BANC OF AMERICA MUNICIPAL LEASE -                            -                            27,174                   

TOTAL BOND TRUSTEE 2017 19,973                  19,948                  19,769                  

TOTAL BOND TRUSTEE 2015 414,930                277,832                272,301                 

GO BOND PROJECT FUND -                            -                            1                            

GO BOND TAX REVENUE FUND 799,532                661,095                1,390,074             4

DIAGNOSTIC IMAGING FUND 3,229                    3,229                    3,186                    

DONOR RESTRICTED FUND 1,127,440             1,127,439             1,150,299             

WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND 11,137                  11,698                  15,748                  

TOTAL 64,505,339           64,230,341           64,253,546           

LESS CURRENT PORTION (6,853,249)            (6,987,359)            (6,482,211)            

TOTAL ASSETS LIMITED OR RESTRICTED - NET 57,652,091           57,242,981           57,771,335           

NONCURRENT ASSETS AND INVESTMENTS:

INVESTMENT IN TSC, LLC -                            -                            (301,864)                

PROPERTY HELD FOR  FUTURE EXPANSION 873,491                859,389                836,353                

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT NET 165,548,680         164,374,139         130,221,923         

GO BOND CIP, PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT NET 1,822,165             1,817,138             33,701,397           

 

TOTAL ASSETS 283,961,338         282,261,442         279,556,267         

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES:

DEFERRED LOSS ON DEFEASANCE 458,997                462,230                497,786                

ACCUMULATED DECREASE IN FAIR VALUE OF HEDGING DERIVATIVE 1,063,457             1,063,457             1,548,299              

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES ON REFUNDING 5,935,678         5,959,383         6,220,134          

GO BOND DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS 464,218            466,153            487,433            

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS 185,169                186,210                197,653                

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 8,107,519$           8,137,431$           8,951,304$           

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5,159,382$           7,791,634$           5,176,665$           5

ACCRUED PAYROLL & RELATED COSTS 11,112,509           10,451,037           10,408,825           6

INTEREST PAYABLE 224,240                124,178                201,903                 

INTEREST PAYABLE GO BOND 317,842                -                            308,596                 

ESTIMATED SETTLEMENTS, M-CAL & M-CARE 262,512                605,809                93,809                   

HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN 1,312,436             1,312,436             1,211,751              

WORKERS COMPENSATION PLAN 1,886,559             1,886,361             1,703,225              

COMPREHENSIVE LIABILITY INSURANCE PLAN 1,184,419             1,184,419             858,290                 

CURRENT MATURITIES OF GO BOND DEBT 1,330,000             1,330,000             860,000                 

CURRENT MATURITIES OF OTHER LONG TERM DEBT 1,454,876             1,454,876             329,167                 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 24,244,775           26,140,751           21,152,230           

   

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

OTHER LONG TERM DEBT NET OF CURRENT MATURITIES 25,517,831           25,520,363            28,075,001            

GO BOND DEBT NET OF CURRENT MATURITIES 100,964,295         100,977,716         102,740,343          

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT LIABILITY 1,063,457             1,063,457             1,548,299              

   

TOTAL LIABILITIES 151,790,358         153,702,287         153,515,873         

NET ASSETS

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 139,151,061         135,569,147         133,841,399         

RESTRICTED 1,127,440             1,127,439             1,150,299             

TOTAL NET POSITION 140,278,500$       136,696,587$       134,991,698$       

* Amounts included for Days Cash on Hand calculation

Page 29 of 134



 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
NOTES TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AUGUST 2018 PRE-AUDIT  
 
 

1. Working Capital is at 6.2 days (policy is 30 days).  Days Cash on Hand (S&P 
calculation) is 150.4 days.  Working Capital cash decreased a net $5,330,000. 
Accounts Payable decreased $2,632,000 (See Note 5), Accrued Payroll & Related 
Costs increased $661,000 (See Note 6), and Cash Collections fell short of target by 
10%. 
 

2. Net Patient Accounts Receivable increased approximately $3,030,000 and Cash 
collections were 90% of target. EPIC Days in A/R were 79.00 compared to 77.80 at 
the close of July, a 1.20 days increase.  We had an issue with the post office that 
caused them to return mail to our payors since mid-August.  This has been resolved 
and payors will be reissuing payment.  We expect those payments to be received 
the last week of September/first week of October. 
 

3. Estimated Settlements, Medi-Cal and Medicare increased $1,118,000 after booking 
1/12th of the FY19 estimated receivable from the Hospital Quality Assurance Fee 
program, the California Health & Wellness and Anthem Rate Range IGT program, 
the July estimated receivable from the SNF Supplemental Reimbursement program, 
and remitting money due back to the State for an overpayment received on the 
FY15 AB915 monies received in June 2018.  
 

4. GO Bond Tax Revenue Fund increased $138,000 after receiving the final FY18 
property tax revenues from Placer County. 
 

5. Accounts Payable decreased $2,632,000 due to the timing of the final check run in 
the month. 
 

6. Accrued Payroll & Related Costs increased a net $661,000 due to three additional 
accrued payroll days over July. 
 

Page 30 of 134



Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Cash Investment

August 2018

 

WORKING CAPITAL

US Bank 1,339,076$       

US Bank/Kings Beach Thrift Store 71,962              

US Bank/Truckee Thrift Store 254,174            

US Bank/Payroll Clearing 4,328                

Umpqua Bank 1,005,747         0.40%  

Total 2,675,287$        

BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

US Bank Savings -$                      0.03%

Capital Equipment Fund -                         

Total -$                      

Building Fund -$                      

Cash Reserve Fund 62,129,099       1.99%  

Local Agency Investment Fund  62,129,099$      

Banc of America Muni Lease -$                      

Bonds Cash 2017 19,973$             

Bonds Cash 2015 414,930$           

GO Bonds Cash 2008 799,532$           

  

DX Imaging Education 3,229$               

Workers Comp Fund - B of A 11,137              

Insurance 

Health Insurance LAIF -                        

Comprehensive Liability Insurance LAIF -                        

       Total   14,366$             

   

TOTAL FUNDS 66,053,187$      

   

RESTRICTED FUNDS

Gift Fund

US Bank Money Market 8,364$              0.03%  

Foundation Restricted Donations 37,641              

Local Agency Investment Fund 1,081,434         1.99%

TOTAL RESTRICTED FUNDS 1,127,440$        

  
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 67,180,627$      

Page 31 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

AUGUST 2018

PRIOR YTD

AUG 2017

     ACTUAL BUDGET     VAR$     VAR% ACTUAL BUDGET     VAR$     VAR%  

     OPERATING REVENUE      
 

31,473,057$    28,154,060$    3,318,997$       11.8% Total Gross Revenue 58,368,909$       54,247,461$    4,121,448$      7.6% 1 47,281,555$           
      

 Gross Revenues - Inpatient  

3,148,613$      2,210,231$      938,382$          42.5%    Daily Hospital Service 5,807,134$         4,466,101$      1,341,033$      30.0%  4,009,284$             

4,806,298        5,152,439        (346,141)           -6.7%    Ancillary Service - Inpatient 9,230,839           9,481,308        (250,469)          -2.6%  8,064,557               

7,954,911        7,362,670        592,241            8.0%      Total Gross Revenue - Inpatient 15,037,972         13,947,409      1,090,563        7.8% 1 12,073,841             
     

23,518,146      20,791,390      2,726,756         13.1%  Gross Revenue - Outpatient 43,330,937         40,300,052      3,030,885        7.5%  35,207,714             

23,518,146      20,791,390      2,726,756         13.1%      Total Gross Revenue - Outpatient 43,330,937         40,300,052      3,030,885        7.5% 1 35,207,714             
    

   Deductions from Revenue:    

14,147,313      11,902,208      (2,245,105)        -18.9%    Contractual Allowances 26,879,495         22,816,932      (4,062,563)       -17.8% 2 19,446,512             

966,629           878,762           (87,867)             -10.0%    Charity Care 1,927,615           1,727,705        (199,910)          -11.6% 2 1,556,035               

-                       -                       -                        0.0%    Charity Care - Catastrophic Events -                         -                       -                       0.0% 2 62,545                    

193,050           325,635           132,585            40.7%    Bad Debt (248,191)            670,859           919,050           137.0% 2 136,496                  

14,434             -                       (14,434)             0.0%    Prior Period Settlements (95,577)              -                       95,577             0.0% 2 (12,706)                   

15,321,426      13,106,605      (2,214,821)        -16.9%      Total Deductions from Revenue 28,463,342         25,215,496      (3,247,846)       -12.9%  21,188,883             
     

93,331             88,193             (5,139)               -5.8%  Property Tax Revenue- Wellness Neighborhood 140,334              176,383           (36,049)            -20.4%  131,339                  

810,649           788,463           22,186              2.8%  Other Operating Revenue 1,649,758           1,539,195        110,563           7.2% 3 1,128,022               
     

17,055,611      15,924,111      1,131,500         7.1%      TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 31,695,659         30,747,543      948,116           3.1%  27,352,033             
     

     OPERATING EXPENSES       

4,785,665        5,280,112        494,447            9.4%  Salaries and Wages 9,625,284           10,683,144      1,057,860        9.9% 4 8,642,669               

1,461,600        1,500,607        39,007              2.6%  Benefits 3,156,010           3,022,790        (133,220)          -4.4% 4 2,760,520               

59,329             55,821             (3,508)               -6.3%  Benefits Workers Compensation 107,280              111,641           4,361               3.9% 4 108,828                  

755,429           598,402           (157,027)           -26.2%  Benefits Medical Insurance 1,601,011           1,196,803        (404,208)          -33.8% 4 1,683,999               

2,320,702        2,161,332        (159,370)           -7.4%  Professional Fees 4,273,392           4,285,660        12,268             0.3% 5 3,423,348               

1,884,789        2,291,042        406,253            17.7%  Supplies 4,131,371           4,448,362        316,991           7.1% 6 3,623,215               

1,131,573        1,458,814        327,241            22.4%  Purchased Services 2,327,360           2,826,469        499,109           17.7% 7 2,300,993               

630,357           631,945           1,588                0.3%  Other 1,279,578           1,293,004        13,426             1.0% 8 1,149,652               

13,029,444      13,978,075      948,631            6.8%      TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 26,501,288         27,867,873      1,366,585        4.9%  23,693,224             
     

4,026,166        1,946,035        2,080,131         106.9% NET OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) EBIDA 5,194,372           2,879,670        2,314,702        80.4% 3,658,809               

   NON-OPERATING REVENUE/(EXPENSE)    

549,627           554,765           (5,138)               -0.9%  District and County Taxes 1,145,583           1,109,533        36,050             3.2% 9 881,661                  

374,886           374,886           (0)                      0.0%  District and County Taxes - GO Bond 749,772              749,772           (1)                     0.0% 808,025                  

124,687           129,925           (5,238)               -4.0%  Interest Income 242,549              259,568           (17,019)            -6.6% 10 143,729                  

-                       -                       -                        0.0%  Interest Income-GO Bond -                         -                       -                       0.0% -                              

-                       86,961             (86,961)             -100.0%  Donations -                         173,922           (173,922)          -100.0% 11 -                              

-                       -                       -                        0.0%  Gain/ (Loss) on Joint Investment -                         -                       -                       0.0% 12 -                              

-                       -                       -                        0.0%  Loss on Impairment of Asset -                         -                       -                       0.0% 12 -                              

-                       -                       -                        0.0%  Gain/ (Loss) on Sale of Equipment -                         -                       -                       0.0% 13 -                              

-                       -                       -                        0.0%  Impairment Loss -                         -                       -                       0.0% 14 -                              

(1,059,977)       (1,059,977)       0                       0.0%  Depreciation (2,119,954)         (2,119,954)       0                      0.0% 15 (1,934,713)              

(103,415)          (87,091)            (16,324)             -18.7%  Interest Expense (206,791)            (174,182)          (32,609)            -18.7% 16 (187,956)                 

(330,061)          (312,044)          (18,017)             -5.8%  Interest Expense-GO Bond (650,686)            (626,118)          (24,568)            -3.9% (643,716)                 

(444,253)          (312,575)          (131,678)           -42.1%      TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE/(EXPENSE) (839,527)            (627,459)          (212,069)          -33.8%  (932,970)                 
     

3,581,913$      1,633,461$      1,948,453$       119.3% INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION 4,354,844$         2,252,211$      2,102,633$      93.4%  2,725,840$             
     

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 135,923,656       

NET POSITION - AS OF AUGUST 31, 2018 140,278,500$     

12.8% 6.9% 5.9% RETURN ON GROSS REVENUE EBIDA 8.9% 5.3% 3.7% 7.7%

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE

Page 32 of 134



INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSE

AUGUST 2018

PRIOR YTD

AUG 2017

     ACTUAL BUDGET     VAR$     VAR% ACTUAL BUDGET     VAR$     VAR%  

     OPERATING REVENUE       

  

2,409,821$    2,015,633$     394,188$     19.6% Total Gross Revenue 4,448,652$    4,351,862$     96,790$          2.2% 1  3,794,686$            

  

 Gross Revenues - Inpatient   

-$                   4,223$            (4,223)$        -100.0%    Daily Hospital Service 14,601$         21,769$          (7,168)$           -32.9%   3,146$                   

-                     1,955              (1,955)          -100.0%    Ancillary Service - Inpatient 15,124           25,738            (10,614)           -41.2%   5,628                     

-                     6,178              (6,178)          -100.0%      Total Gross Revenue - Inpatient 29,725           47,507            (17,782)           -37.4% 1  8,774                     

      

2,409,821      2,009,455       400,366       19.9%  Gross Revenue - Outpatient 4,418,927      4,304,355       114,572          2.7%   3,785,912              

2,409,821      2,009,455       400,366       19.9%      Total Gross Revenue - Outpatient 4,418,927      4,304,355       114,572          2.7% 1  3,785,912              

     

   Deductions from Revenue:     

897,132         815,572          (81,560)        -10.0% Contractual Allowances 1,532,792      1,742,967       210,175          12.1% 2  1,367,536              

91,814           68,471            (23,343)        -34.1% Charity Care 169,493         180,942          11,449            6.3% 2  125,840                 

-                     -                      -                   0.0% Charity Care - Catastrophic Events -                     -                     -                      0.0% 2 18,333                   

(13,387)          64,251            77,638         120.8%    Bad Debt (5,410)            171,903          177,313          103.1% 2  53,218                   

-                     -                      -                   0.0% Prior Period Settlements -                     -                     -                      0.0% 2  -                            

975,559         948,294          (27,265)        -2.9%      Total Deductions from Revenue 1,696,875      2,095,812       398,937          19.0% 2  1,564,926              

      

118,911         103,236          15,675         15.2%  Other Operating Revenue 221,794         166,209          55,585            33.4% 3   193,424                 

     

1,553,173      1,170,575       382,598       32.7%      TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 2,973,571      2,422,259       551,312          22.8%   2,423,183              

      

   OPERATING EXPENSES     

310,920         318,963          8,043           2.5%  Salaries and Wages 648,832         756,014          107,182          14.2% 4  606,241                 

102,834         95,816            (7,018)          -7.3%  Benefits 213,796         204,367          (9,429)             -4.6% 4  203,171                 

3,052             4,912              1,860           37.9%  Benefits Workers Compensation 6,780             9,825              3,045              31.0% 4  4,713                     

45,525           35,246            (10,279)        -29.2%  Benefits Medical Insurance 95,338           70,493            (24,845)           -35.2% 4  105,293                 

251,394         286,723          35,329         12.3%  Professional Fees 503,494         561,076          57,582            10.3% 5   407,236                 

36,675           76,896            40,221         52.3%  Supplies 76,608           160,096          83,488            52.1% 6  113,386                 

41,006           44,828            3,822           8.5%  Purchased Services 81,969           89,555            7,586              8.5% 7  85,506                   

63,937           67,778            3,841           5.7%  Other 145,189         137,947          (7,242)             -5.2% 8  118,629                 

855,343         931,162          75,819         8.1%      TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 1,772,005      1,989,373       217,368          10.9%  1,644,174              
     

697,830         239,413          458,417       191.5%  NET OPERATING REV(EXP) EBIDA 1,201,565      432,886          768,679          177.6%  779,009                 

      

   NON-OPERATING REVENUE/(EXPENSE)     

-                     36,961            (36,961)        -100.0%  Donations-IVCH -                     73,922            (73,922)           -100.0% 9  -                            

-                     -                      -                   0.0%  Gain/ (Loss) on Sale -                     -                      0.0% 10

(59,302)          (59,302)           (0)                 0.0%  Depreciation (118,604)        (118,604)        (0)                    0.0% 11  (128,553)               

(59,302)          (22,341)           (36,961)        -165.4%      TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE/(EXP) (118,604)        (44,682)          (73,922)           -165.4%  (128,553)               
     

638,528$       217,072$        421,456$     194.2% EXCESS REVENUE(EXPENSE) 1,082,961$    388,204$        694,757$        179.0%  650,456$               
   

29.0% 11.9% 17.1% RETURN ON GROSS REVENUE EBIDA 27.0% 9.9% 17.1%  20.5%

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE

Page 33 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PRE-AUDIT BUDGET PROJECTED ACTUAL BUDGET PROJECTED PROJECTED BUDGET BUDGET

FYE 2018 FYE 2019 FYE 2019 AUG 2018 AUG 2018 DIFFERENCE 1ST QTR 2ND QTR 3RD QTR 4TH QTR

Net Operating Rev/(Exp) - EBIDA 10,813,239$   8,876,838$     11,260,808$   4,026,166$     1,946,035$     2,080,131$     6,145,326$      1,058,382$       1,911,636$      2,145,464$     

Interest Income 667,478          1,232,724       1,219,283       -                      -                      -                      231,207           331,763            331,763           324,550          

Property Tax Revenue 6,938,847       6,965,000       6,992,497       309,827          285,000          24,827            442,497           90,000              3,660,000        2,800,000       

Donations 1,449,325       800,000          780,000          -                      10,000            (10,000)           10,000             95,000              250,000           425,000          

Debt Service Payments (2,078,463)      (3,058,371)      (3,058,288)      (138,057)         (138,057)         0                     (1,012,133)       (560,614)          (414,171)          (1,071,370)      

Bank of America - 2012 Muni Lease (103,515)    -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       -                      -                      

Copier (11,482)      (11,520)           (11,437)           (959)                (960)                1                     (2,797)              (2,880)              (2,880)              (2,880)             

2017 VR Demand Bond (319,664)    (1,401,687)      (1,401,687)      -                      -                      -                      (598,045)          (146,443)          -                      (657,199)         

2015 Revenue Bond (1,643,802) (1,645,164)      (1,645,165)      (137,097)         (137,097)         (0)                    (411,292)          (411,291)          (411,291)          (411,291)         

Physician Recruitment (160,536)         (187,500)         (187,500)         -                      (35,000)           35,000            (147,500)          -                       (20,000)            (20,000)           

Investment in Capital

Equipment (2,764,413) (2,911,369)      (2,911,370)      (448,899)         (159,779)         (289,120)         (837,023)          (660,881)          (1,200,000)       (213,466)         

Municipal Lease Reimbursement 219,363     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       -                       -                      -                      

IT/EMR/Business Systems (4,184,396) (3,986,507)      (3,986,507)      (1,440,403)      (780,954)         (659,449)         (1,861,907)       (589,600)          (1,025,000)       (510,000)         

Building Projects/Properties (4,890,940) (15,438,772)    (15,438,772)    (377,597)         (1,002,277)      624,680          (2,414,743)       (7,445,973)        (4,295,774)       (1,282,282)      

Capital Investments -                 (452,000)         (452,000)         -                      -                      -                      (452,000)          -                       -                      -                      

Change in Accounts Receivable (5,713,005)      N1 3,103,131       2,856,210       (3,030,114)      (523,102)         (2,507,012)      (1,527,684)       2,965,104         1,172,497        246,294          

Change in Settlement Accounts 6,898,578       N2 1,609,698       634,470          (1,461,189)      (183,333)         (1,277,856)      34,772             (2,339,510)        2,911,430        27,778            

Change in Other Assets (5,090,026)      N3 (2,812,500)      (4,087,100)      (1,396,044)      (215,000)         (1,181,044)      (1,877,100)       (750,000)          (730,000)          (730,000)         

Change in Other Liabilities (3,713,799)      N4 375,000          42,759            (1,870,719)      (450,000)         (1,420,719)      217,759           (1,800,000)        1,525,000        100,000          

Change in Cash Balance (1,608,748)      (5,884,628)      (6,335,510)      (5,827,029)      (1,246,467)      (4,580,561)      (3,048,530)       (9,606,329)        4,077,381        2,241,968       

Beginning Unrestricted Cash 72,911,743     71,302,995     71,302,995     70,631,414     70,631,414     -                      71,302,995      68,254,465       58,648,136      62,725,517     

Ending Unrestricted Cash 71,302,995     65,627,210     64,967,485     64,804,386     69,384,947     (4,580,561)      68,254,465      58,648,136       62,725,517      64,967,485     

Expense Per Day 408,638          448,115          444,460          430,775          452,291          (21,516)           448,850           448,566            447,106           448,115          

Days Cash On Hand 174                 146                 146                 150                 153                 (3)                    152                  131                  140                  145                 

Footnotes:

N1 - Change in Accounts Receivable reflects the 60 day delay in collections.

N2 - Change in Settlement Accounts reflect cash flows in and out related to prior year and current year Medicare and Medi-Cal settlement accounts.

N3 - Change in Other Assets reflect fluctuations in asset accounts on the Balance Sheet that effect cash.  For example, an increase in prepaid

expense immediately effects cash but not EBIDA.

N4 - Change in Other Liabilities reflect fluctuations in liability accounts on the Balance Sheet that effect cash.  For example, an increase in accounts

payable effects EBIDA but not cash.

Page 34 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Harry Weis  DATE:  9/18/18

 CEO 
 

Our summer patient volumes continue to be strong in this new fiscal year YTD after two 
months, which is creating a positive variance against budget. 
 
At the end of our first two months of this fiscal year, the Health System’s financial performance 
is also strong with a net income that is significantly higher than budget YTD, as well as prior 
fiscal year YTD.  Please see the complete financial report included in the board packet. 
 
Our provider office visits are continuing to grow year over year as we were just below 68,000 
visits as we ended fiscal year 2018. This was a 15% increase over the previous fiscal year. 
The forecasted provider office visits for fiscal year 2019 is 78,000 visits.  As a reference point, 
in 2015, the Health System had 47,000 provider office visits. 
 
We appreciate the Board’s strong support at its meeting on September 12, 2018 to approve 
construction contracts for the 3rd floor of the medical office building and build out of the 2nd floor 
of the cancer center.  These areas will become key Rural Health Clinic space which is vital for 
patient access and financial improvement. 
 
I attended the annual meeting of the Association of California Hospital Districts along with 
attending their Executive Committee and Board Meetings last week.  There were great 
educational sessions for CEOs and board members. This gave me additional time to 
collaborate and visit with our area hospitals to the north. 
 
We have important information to share with the Board at a future meeting on past, present 
and future mental health activities. 
 
We will be sharing an Annual Report with the Board hopefully in October as a part of a new 
annual tradition to cove some of the highlights of the past fiscal year. 
 
We look forward to reviewing, discussing and the Board’s approval consideration for the 
Strategic Plan which looks forward to the years of 2019 through 2021 at our September board 
meeting. 
 
We continue to monitor many state level bills and we have been active suggesting support or 
veto on applicable bills. 
 
Keeping you informed. 
 
Harry 
 

Page 35 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 

 
    
 Board COO Report 
 
By: Judith B. Newland  DATE: August 2018 

 
 
 
Just Do It” – Demonstrate measurable improvements annually in both Quality and Patient Satisfaction. 
 
An Active Drill Shooter Drill was conducted at Tahoe Forest Hospital on Thursday, September 13, 2018.  Although the focus 
was on an active shooter situation, the scenario was expanded to include a Code White (pediatric life threatening 
emergency) and a Code Gray (aggressive individual).  Community agencies involved in the drill included: 

 Nevada County Sheriff Department (participated in planning activities) 

 Truckee Police Department 

 California Highway Patrol 

 Truckee Fire Department 

The Incident Command Center was activated and included a debriefing with staff as well as with law enforcement.   
The hospital recently acquired the Everbridge Mass Notification System that enables emergency messages being sent via 
text message, e-mail and cell phone calls and was used successfully. This drill proved valuable re-enforcement of the recent 
Workplace Violence Training the included de-escalation techniques as well as guidance on what to do in an active shooter 
situation. 
 
Creating the Perfect Care Experience continues to be a focus for our health system.  The Multispecialty Clinic Staff meet 
biweekly to improve processes and patient experience across all clinics.  This meeting is led by staff with support from 
leadership.  A thank you and congratulations to this staff for their ongoing commitment to creating the perfect care 
experience.  
 
TFH inpatient units and outpatient services of Laboratory, Diagnostic Imaging, and Women’s Center have initiated a pilot 
program to receive real time feedback from patients and visitors of their services.  On completion of their outpatient 
service or during their inpatient stay, patients can provide a comment or give a star rating on their service through the 
Likemoji App. Ipads are available at key locations or handed to patients to use. The purpose of receiving real time feedback 
is to resolve concerns by patients immediately, trend star ratings, and identify opportunities for improvement.  
 
Creating and implementing a New Master Plan 
 
Report provided by Dylan Crosby, Manger Facilities and Construction Management 
 
Projects in Progress: 
 
Project: TFH Fire Alarm Replacement Project 
Start of Construction: 3/12/2018 
Estimated Completion: 7/12/2019 
Summary of Work: Remove and replace existing Fire Alarm System.  
Update Summary: Loop transition is 90% complete, Chime and Strobe replacement is 90% complete.  When a 
department’s work area is to be effected, engineering will coordinate with the Director.  Anticipate early completion fall 
of 2018.  

Page 36 of 134



 
Project: TFHD Pharmacy Clean Room, OSHPD S170926-29-00   
Estimated Start of Construction: 4/30/2018 
Estimated Completion: 11/7/2018 
Summary of Work: To meet new federal USP 800 regulations the surgical special procedures room will be reconstructed 
to house pharmacy compounding during construction, Phase 1. Phase 2 will be to reconstruct the Pharmacy to meet USP 
800 requirements.   
Update Summary: Certification of the Temp. room is in progress.  
 
Project: TFHD Retail Pharmacy     
Estimated Start of Construction: 8/18/2018 
Estimated Completion: 11/7/2018 
Summary of Work: To improve security of the Retail Pharmacy. An enclosure and door will be installed to limit access to 
the medication area of the Pharmacy.   
Update Summary: Project is 90% complete and being punch listed.   
 
Project: IM Cardiology Expansion      
Estimated Start of Construction: 6/11/2018 
Estimated Completion: 10/1/2018 
Summary of Work: Construct 3 new exam rooms and a MD/MA office in the west end of IM Cardiology to increase 
access for care.  
Update Summary: Project is being punch listed and ready to be turned over.  
 
Project: 3rd Floor MOB       
Estimated Start of Construction: 9/5/2018 
Estimated Completion: 6/10/2019 
Summary of Work: Phase 1 reconstruct the 3rd Floor MOB 2 western suites for increased flexibility and additional exam 
rooms. Phase 2 reconstruct and integrate the 3rd Floor MOB adjacent suite for increased flexibility and additional exam 
rooms.  
Update Summary: Board approved. Project is scheduled to start in November.    
 
Project: Cancer Center 2nd Floor        
Estimated Start of Construction: 9/5/2018 
Estimated Completion: 6/10/2019 
Summary of Work: Construct the 2nd floor of the Cancer Center for expansion of Rural Health Clinic Services.   
Update Summary: Board approved. Project is scheduled to start in October.    
 
Project: Administration House Renovation         
Estimated Start of Construction: 7/30/2018 
Estimated Completion: 8/27/2018 
Summary of Work: Renovate the new Administration Services house, old home health house, in preparation for the site 
improvement project.   
Update Summary: Project is underway, schedule to be completed in October.   
 
Project: Tahoe Forest Hospital Site Improvements Phase 1         
Estimated Start of Construction: 8/20/2018 
Estimated Completion: 10/15/2018 
Summary of Work: Demolish the existing administrative building to increase patient parking.  
Update Summary: Project has been issued permit, bids have been received. 
 
 
Projects in Permitting: 
 

Page 37 of 134



 Project: Tahoe City Physical Therapy Expansion        
Estimated Start of Construction: 8/13/2018 
Estimated Completion: 10/31/2018 
Summary of Work: Lease and renovate the remainder of the second floor of existing building.  
Update Summary: Permit is ready to be pulled. The project will be bid early winter. 
 
Project: Center for Health and Sports Performance Renovation       
Estimated Start of Construction: 9/10/2018 
Estimated Completion: 11/16/2018 
Summary of Work: Transform existing center into open floor concept and provide additional treatment tables. 
Update Summary: Project is in the Town for permitting. 
 
Projects in Design: 
 
Project: Day tank and Underground Storage tank replacement.           
Estimated Start of Construction: TBD 
Estimated Completion: TBD 
Summary of Work: Remove and replace the 30-year-old underground storage tank and existing day tank.   
Update Summary: Project is in the process of being designed.   
 
Project: 2nd Floor MOB            
Estimated Start of Construction: TBD 
Estimated Completion: TBD 
Summary of Work: Remodel 3 suites of the 2nd floor of the MOB.   
Update Summary: Project is in the process of being designed.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board CNO Report 

 
By: Karen Baffone, RN, MS  DATE: September 2018 

 Chief Nursing Officer 
 

 
Strategy Two:  Choosing and implementing the correct new Electronic Health Record for 
our system that spans all physician, OP and IP services.  
 

o Build of department reports that will provide data to the District continue.  This 
information will assist us in benchmarking many of the CMS core measures, 
readmissions, care coordination efforts etc.   

o Charge capture on both inpatient and outpatient areas that report up through the 
CNO have had an ongoing success with <5%.  Some of the outlying departments 
have determined their variances (IVCH will continue to have some outlying charges 
related to volume of equipment) 

 
Strategy Four:  Care Coordination 
 

o Care Coordination has hired a behavioral health coordinator that will be integrated 
into the MSC provider of behavioral health services that will begin prior to the end of 
the year. 

o Transitional Care Management has been averaging 8-10 patients monthly which has 
allowed the District to better manage those patients and prevent readmissions. 

 
Strategy Six:  Just Do IT 
 

o The plan of correction for the General Acute Care Hospital Relicensing/Medication 
Error Reduction Plan has been completed and submitted.    

o Community Health Improvement Report is completed with information in the Board 
Packet. 

o The Extended Care Center completed their annual CDPH survey this past week and 
did an amazing job.  The management and staff was complemented on the fabulous 
job they do caring for this elderly population. 

o We completed an Active Shooter Drill this past week.  We had involvement from 
Truckee Police Department, Truckee Fire Department and the California Highway 
Patrol.  This was a successful drill and demonstrated the collaborative efforts within 
our community. 

o The Emergency Department teamed with Dr. Coll and Dr. Cooper have been moving 
forward on the Level Three Trauma Designation for the District.  As this project 
moves further along, more details will be provided. 

Page 39 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

 
   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Jake  Dorst DATE:  09/17/18 

 CIIO 
 

 Network/Infrastructure Refresh project continues Sept 23-October 3 for Firewalls, 

Wireless and Switch installs.   

 CMS approval of Meaningful Use Hardship applications for 2017 for both TFH and IVCH 

due to Epic implementation.  Prevents reimbursement penalties from Medicare. 

 MyChart Task Force formed for unified approach to using MyChart in the organization 

and by community members. 

 Xcelera-Cardiology software for Echocardiograms large upgrade in progress. 

 Physician Login department build underway to make the confusing Epic login 

departments much more straight forward for physicians. Go live in November. 

 Imprivata-Single sign on/tap card/rapid access to Epic project kicked off 

 Epic Med-Surg and ICU Nurse Epic refresher courses developed and scheduled. 

 Onboarding of many new providers including training and support. 

 Varian Server Virtualization Project resources assigned from Varian, to begin 11/7/18. 

 Dietary Software project underway. 

 Experian Real Time Authorization project launching. 

 Lab Corp Interface completed for Dr. Koch. 

 Prime Program Reports for mid-year reporting period. 

 Mediware Blood Bank large upgrade planning. 

 Cancer Center pre Beacon project workflow analysis begun. 

 Kaufmann Hall Budgeting and Financial project underway. 

 M Modal Voice Recognition continuing deployment for physicians. 

 

 

Page 40 of 134



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Shawni L. Coll D.O., FACOG  DATE:  September 13, 2018 

 Chief Medical Officer 
 

 
 
1. GOAL: A complete makeover of our Physician service line 

We have welcomed Dr. Dan Stoll, Family Practice, Dr. Cherisse Mwero, Neurologist, and 
Dr. Jonathan Hagen, Orthopedic surgeon to our medical staff.  We will have more coming 
next month!   
 

2. GOAL: Electronic Health Record 
We continue to respond to ongoing needs of providers relating to the EPIC installation.  We 
have added a couple analysts to work with physicians directly to improve satisfaction and 
response rate. 
 

3. GOAL: New Master Space Plan 
Finishing up the project in Internal Medicine/Cardiology building to expand space for two 
more providers. Once this is completed, it will allow for our new primary care physicians.  

 

4. GOAL:  Just Do It 
We are having a New Physician Dinner/BBQ at Dr. Coll’s home on Tuesday, September 18. 
The Medical Staff is working on developing a survey to assess engagement and how we can 
improve it. Medical Staff participated in a mock Code White situation in the emergency 
department followed by an Active Shooter drill with local Police, Fire and EMS services. We 
have started a New Primary Care Governance committee and are reviewing the charter, job 
duties for the Medical Director, and receiving positive feedback.  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41 of 134



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
 

ITEM 
 
 

ABD-11 Fiscal Policy 
ABD-23 Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for 
Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds 
 

RESPONSIBLE PARTY 
 
 

Martina Rochefort, Clerk of the Board 

ACTION REQUESTED?  
 
 

For Board Action 

BACKGROUND: 
This is part of the Board’s commitment to regularly review its policies. 
 

SUMMARY/OBJECTIVES: 
Board Finance Committee reviewed the attached policies at their September 21, 2018 meeting. There were no 
proposed or suggested edits. 
 
 

SUGGESTED DISCUSSION POINTS: 

None. 
 
 
 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 

Board approval via consent calendar. 
  
 
 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS: 

 ABD-11 Fiscal Policy 

 ABD-23 Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds 
 

 

Page 42 of 134



COPY

Current Status: Active PolicyStat ID: 3352961

Origination Date: 08/1985
Last Approved: 03/2017
Last Revised: 09/2016
Next Review: 07/2019
Department: Board - ABD
Applies To: System

Fiscal Policy, ABD-11
PURPOSE:

POLICY:
A. RATIONALE

In view of the ever-changing reimbursement environment in which health care providers exist, the Board
of Directors recognizes the importance of financial stability. A sound Fiscal Policy is necessary to assure
the continuation of needed services, and as appropriate, expansion into new health-related facilities and
services. To assure access to capital markets, it is in the best interest of the District to maintain strong
financial performance and strong cash reserves. This philosophy is based upon, and consistent with, the
Mission Statement and operating policies of the District.

B. POLICY STATEMENT
Our Fiscal Policy is to ensure the availability of capital to meet the future costs of carrying out the
hospital’s mission and serves as a prudent reserve to offset unexpected external forces. It will be the
responsibility of the District’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to implement policies and procedures
consistent with the Fiscal Policy of the Board of Directors. The District shall put forth a strong effort in
every fiscal year on achieving, at a minimum, the Standard and Poor’s (S&P) A- rating, targeting the
median ratios of the A- rating or better. At no time shall the District target financial performance that
would drop the District below an investment grade rating.

PROCEDURE:
A. OPERATING MARGIN AND EXCESS (NET INCOME) MARGIN

The District, through approval by the Board of Director’s, shall set an annual budget that seeks to target
or maintain Operating and Excess Margins at the median S&P ratios of an A- rating or better. The CEO
shall in turn endeavor, consistent with the CEO’s authority under the annual budget and duly-adopted
District policies, to direct District operations throughout the fiscal year so as to maintain Operating and
Excess Margins at the median S&P ratios of an A- rating or better. Unusual circumstances may arise that

The purpose of this policy is to communicate the fiscal policy of the District as it relates to the operations of
Tahoe Forest Hospital District and the various other services, programs and ventures which the District is or
shall consider providing consistent with its Mission Statement and operating policies. It is the intention of the
Board of Directors that this Fiscal Policy be disseminated to the hospital administrative and management
team, as well as Medical Staff leadership, in order to achieve a broad based understanding of the fiscal goal of
Tahoe Forest Hospital District. For the purposes of this policy statement, the term "services" shall apply to all
hospital operations as well as other District services, programs or ventures.

Fiscal Policy, ABD-11. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3352961/. Copyright © 2018
Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 1 of 3

Page 43 of 134

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=37189
https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=29046


COPY

could require setting the annual budget at ratios lower than A-, however, at no time shall the annual
budget target median ratios below an investment grade rating. The CEO shall direct management and
staff to operate the District in a manner that achieves the goals of the annual budget.

B. FUND BALANCES AND TRANSFER PROCEDURES
The CEO shall, consistent with the CEO’s authority under the annual budget, this Fiscal Policy, and duly-
adopted District policies, authorize the movement of funds with the goal of achieving projected Days’
Cash on Hand (the number of days of average expenses) at the median S&P ratios of an A- rating or
better. There shall be a strong effort to maintain this minimum Days’ Cash on Hand ratio to ensure
appropriate cash reserves and to sustain sufficient funding for capital needs. Unusual circumstances may
arise that could require setting the annual budget Days’ Cash on Hand ratio lower than A-, however at no
time shall the annual budget reflect a Days’ Cash on Hand ratio below an investment grade rating. At
least quarterly, a report of Day’s Cash on Hand shall be presented to the Board of Directors.

C. MAINTENANCE AND OPERATING FUND
All receipts and revenues of any kind from the operation of the hospital shall be paid daily into the
treasury of the District and placed in the Maintenance and Operations Fund. Monies in the maintenance
and Operation Fund may be expended for any of the purposes of the District.

The CEO will direct the allocation of monies in excess of 30 days forecasted cash to Board designated
funds or transfer sufficient monies from Board designated funds into Maintenance and Operations Fund
so that a minimum of 30 days working capital is maintained for the upcoming quarter. Fund transfers into
Maintenance and Operations Fund from other funds to cover the minimum 30 days working capital will be
in the following priority:

1. Cash Reserve Fund

2. Projects Fund

D. BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS
Available funds will be funded in the priority order as listed. Bond Funds are held by the Bond Trustee
until the fund reimburses the District for project expenditures. The reimbursed bond project expenditures
will be deposited in the Maintenance and Operations Fund. Debt service is included in the Maintenance
and Operations Fund.

1. Other Entity Funds:
Funds held for other entities such as Medical Staff and Auxiliary. Interest income accrues to the
specific fund.

2. Projects Fund:
Board of Directors approved and designated projects. Fund to include, among others Building Funds
and Capital Equipment Funds. Interest income will accrue to the Maintenance and Operations Fund.

E. CASH RESERVE FUND
Board of Directors approved funding to increase and provide sufficient reserves to sustain operational
integrity; continued services at current levels; emergency purposes (safety net); credit worthiness;
anticipated capital replacement needs. Interest income will accrue to the Maintenance and Operations
Fund.

F. RESTRICTED FUNDS
Funds restricted to purchase assets or to fund program costs. These funds become unrestricted when
the restriction is satisfied. Interest income accrues to the specific fund.

G. DONATIONS

Fiscal Policy, ABD-11. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3352961/. Copyright © 2018
Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 2 of 3

Page 44 of 134



COPY

Donated funds will be placed in the appropriate fund to be designated by the donor.

Related Policies/Forms:

References:

Policy Owner: Clerk of the Board

Approved by: Chief Executive Officer

All revision dates:
09/2016, 11/2015, 01/2014, 01/2012, 02/2010, 06/
2007, 02/2006

Attachments: No Attachments

Approval Signatures

Step Description Approver Date

Harry Weis: CEO 03/2017

Martina Rochefort: Clerk of the Board 03/2017

Applicability

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Fiscal Policy, ABD-11. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3352961/. Copyright © 2018
Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 3 of 3

Page 45 of 134



COPY

Current Status: Active PolicyStat ID: 2479535

Origination Date: 11/2014
Last Approved: 11/2014
Last Revised: 11/2014
Next Review: 11/2017
Department: Board - ABD
Applies To: System

Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for
Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds, ABD-23

PURPOSE:

PROCEDURE:
A. External Advisors / Documentation

1. The District shall consult with bond counsel and other legal counsel and advisors, as needed,
throughout the Bond issuance process to identify requirements and to establish procedures
necessary or appropriate so that the Bonds will continue to qualify for tax-exempt status. The District
also shall consult with bond counsel and/or other legal counsel and advisors, as needed, following
issuance of the Bonds to ensure that all applicable post-issuance requirements in fact are met. This
shall include, without limitation, consultation in connection with any potential changes in the use of
Bond-financed or refinanced assets.

2. The District shall determine (or obtain expert advice to determine) whether arbitrage rebate
calculations have to be made for the Bond issue. If it is determined that such calculations are, or are
likely to be required, the District shall engage expert advisors (each a "Rebate Service Provider") to
assist in the calculation of arbitrage rebate payable in respect of the investment of Bond proceeds.
The District shall make any rebate payments required on a timely basis including the signing and
filing of appropriate IRS forms (e.g., Form 8038-T). Unless otherwise provided by the indenture (or
similar document) relating to the Bonds, unexpended Bond proceeds shall be held by a trustee or
other financial institution (unless the Bonds are general obligation bonds), and the investment of
Bond proceeds shall be managed by the District. The District shall prepare (or cause the trustee or
other financial institution to prepare) regular, periodic statements regarding the investments and
transactions involving Bond proceeds. The statements shall include a certification of compliance and
a summary of information collected by the District.

B. Arbitrage Rebate and Yield

The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for overseeing compliance with arbitrage rebate
requirements under federal tax law:

The purpose of these Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures, established by Tahoe Forest Hospital District
(the "District"), is to maximize the likelihood that post-issuance requirements of federal income tax law and
continuing disclosure requirements applicable to the various issues of bonds ( the "Bonds") are met. The
District reserves the right to change these policies and procedures from time to time.

Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds, ABD-23. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/2479535/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 1 of 5

Page 46 of 134

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=37189
https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=29046


COPY

1. If, at the time of Bond issuance, based on the District's reasonable expectations, it appears likely that
the Bond issue will qualify for an exemption from the rebate requirement, the District may defer
taking any of the actions set forth in subsection (2) below. Not later than the time of completion of
construction or acquisition of the capital projects financed with proceeds of the Bonds, and depletion
of all funds from the project fund, the District shall make, determine, or cause its Rebate Service
Provider to determine, whether any of the Bond proceeds qualified for a spending exception or other
exception from the rebate requirements. If a rebate exception is determined to be applicable for all of
the proceeds of the Bonds, the District shall prepare and keep in the permanent records of the Bond
issue a memorandum evidencing this conclusion together with records of expenditure (or other
records) to support such conclusion. If the transaction does not qualify for an exception to the rebate
requirement, for all of the proceeds of the Bonds, the District shall initiate the steps set forth in
subsection (2.2) below.

2. If, at the time of Bond issuance it appears likely that arbitrage rebate calculations will be required, or
upon determination that calculations are required pursuant to subsection (2.1) above, the District
shall:

a. engage the services of a Rebate Service Provider and, prior to each rebate calculation date,
cause the trustee or other financial institution investing Bond proceeds to deliver periodic
statements concerning the investment of Bond proceeds to the Rebate Service Provider;

b. provide to the Rebate Service Provider additional documents and information reasonably
requested by the Rebate Service Provider;

c. monitor the efforts of the Rebate Service Provider;

d. assure the payment of required rebate amounts, if any, no later than 60 days after each 5-year
anniversary of the issue date of the Bonds, and no later than 60 days after the last Bond of each
issue is redeemed;

e. during the construction period of each capital project financed in whole or in part by Bonds,
monitor the investment and expenditure of Bond proceeds and consult with the Rebate Service
Provider to determine compliance with any applicable exceptions from the arbitrage rebate
requirements, including during each 6-month spending period up to 6 months, 18 months or 24
months, as and if applicable, following the issue date of the Bonds;

f. retain copies of all arbitrage reports and trustee statements as described below under "Record
Keeping Requirements" and, upon request, provide such copies to the trustee; and

g. establish procedures to ensure that investments that are acquired with Bond proceeds are so
acquired at their fair market value.

C. Use of Bond Proceeds and Bond Financed or Refinanced Assets

The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for monitoring the use of Bond proceeds and Bond
financed assets:

1. monitoring the use of Bond proceeds (including investment earnings and including reimbursement of
expenditures made before Bond issuance) and the use of Bond-financed or refinanced assets (e.g.,
facilities, furnishings or equipment) throughout the term of the Bonds to ensure compliance with
covenants and restrictions set forth in the Tax Certificate relating to the Bonds;

2. maintaining records identifying the assets or portion of assets that are financed or refinanced with
proceeds of each issue of Bonds (including investment earnings and including reimbursement of

Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds, ABD-23. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/2479535/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 2 of 5

Page 47 of 134



COPY

expenditures made before Bond issuance), including a final allocation of Bond proceeds as
described below under "Record Keeping Requirements";

3. consulting with bond counsel and other legal counsel and advisers in the review of any change in
use, or potential change in use, of Bond-financed or refinanced assets to ensure compliance with all
covenants and restrictions set forth in the Tax Certificate relating to the Bonds;

4. maintaining records for any contracts or arrangements involving the use of Bond-financed or
refinanced assets as described below under "Record Keeping Requirements"; and conferring at least
annually with personnel responsible for Bond-financed or refinanced assets to identify and discuss
any existing or planned use of Bond-financed or refinanced assets and to ensure that those uses are
consistent with all covenants and restrictions set forth in the Tax Certificate relating to the Bonds;
and to the extent that the District discovers that any applicable tax restrictions regarding use of Bond
proceeds and Bond-financed or refinanced assets will or may be violated, consulting promptly with
bond counsel and other legal counsel and advisers to determine a course of action to remediate all
nonqualified Bonds or take other remedial action, if such counsel advises that a remedial action is
necessary. All relevant records and contracts shall be maintained as described below.

D. Record Keeping Requirement

The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for maintaining the following documents for the term of
each issue of Bonds (including refunding Bonds, if any) plus at least three years:

1. a copy of the Bond closing transcript(s) and other relevant documentation delivered to the District at
or in connection with closing of the issue of Bonds;

2. a copy of all material documents relating to capital expenditures financed or refinanced by Bond
proceeds, including (without limitation) construction contracts, purchase orders, invoices, trustee
requisitions and payment records, as well as documents relating to costs reimbursed with Bond
proceeds and records identifying the assets or portion of assets that are financed or refinanced with
Bond proceeds, including a final allocation of Bond proceeds;

3. a copy of all contracts and arrangements involving the use of Bond-financed or refinanced assets;
and

4. a copy of all records of investments, investment agreements, credit enhancement, arbitrage reports
and underlying documents, including trustee statements, in connection with any investment
agreements, and copies of all bidding documents, if any.

E. Continuing Disclosure Compliance Requirement

The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for maintaining the following Continuing Disclosure items
for each issue of Bonds:

1. Annual Reports (send to Dissemination Agent 15 business days prior to the due date of December
31st for the revenue bonds and March 31st for the general obligation bonds):

a. Revenue Bonds: Audited financials, licensed beds, historical utilization, age distribution of active
medical staff and admission percentage of top ten admitters, capitalization, days cash on hand,
and debt service coverage ratio.

b. General Obligation Bonds: Audited financials, assessed value of taxable property in the District
as shown on the recent equalized assessment role and the Placer County and Nevada County
portion of property tax levies, collections and delinquencies for the most recent completed fiscal

Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds, ABD-23. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/2479535/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 3 of 5

Page 48 of 134



COPY

year.

2. Quarterly Reports (Send to Dissemination Agent 10 business days prior to the due dates April 30,
July 31, October 31 and January 31):

a. Revenue Bonds: Unaudited quarterly balance sheet and statement of revenues and
expenditures.

b. General Obligation Bonds: None required.

3. Reporting to Dissemination Agent any of the following listed events within 10 business days of event:

a. Reportable Events:

i. Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

ii. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.

iii. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.

iv. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

v. Defeasances.

vi. Rating changes.

vii. Tender offers.

viii. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person.

ix. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other
material notices of determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other
material events affecting the tax status of the security.

b. Material Reportable Events:

i. Non-payment related defaults.

ii. Modifications to rights of security holders.

iii. Bond calls.

iv. The release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities.

v. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated person
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relation to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms.

vi. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee.

4. Maintain the following "best practices" for upholding the continuing disclosure responsibilities,
including, in particular:

a. Establish written policies and procedures to ensure that the District submits all documents,
reports and notices required to be submitted to EMMA/MSRB in a timely manner.

b. Review offering documents, including the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, confirm compliance
with existing continuing disclosure obligations at the time of each new issue and promptly rectify
any continuing disclosure lapses.

Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds, ABD-23. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/2479535/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 4 of 5

Page 49 of 134



COPY

c. Disclose in each official statement any instances during the prior five years of any failure to
comply in all material respects with applicable continuing disclosure obligations.

d. Implement annual training for personnel involved in the bond offering and disclosure process,
including familiarity with the significant events described in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate
and an understanding of the District's written policies and procedures governing disclosure
practices, including continuing disclosure.

e. Identify an individual or individuals who will be responsible for reviewing and complying with the
District's continuing disclosure obligations on a regular basis.

f. Maintain a complete and accurate record of the District's continuing disclosure undertakings and
filings, including electronic confirmation of continuing disclosure submissions.

g. Develop a calendar reminder system to track annual filing deadlines and requirements.

h. Consult with counsel as needed to resolve potential issues and address any questions.

F. Education and Training

1. The District shall provide responsible staff with education and training on federal tax requirements for
post-issuance compliance applicable to the Bonds. The District will enable and encourage
responsible staff to attend and participate in educational and training programs offered by
professional organizations and other entities with regard to monitoring compliance with federal tax
requirements for the Bonds.

Related Policies/Forms:

References:

Policy Owner: Clerk of the Board

Approved by: CFO

All revision dates: 11/2014

Attachments: No Attachments

Applicability

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds, ABD-23. Retrieved 09/19/2018. Official copy at
http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/2479535/. Copyright © 2018 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 5 of 5

Page 50 of 134



 
200572.2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TAHOE FOREST 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 

OF A MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH OPUS 

BANK, AS SELLER, AND SEPARATE SCHEDULES THERETO FOR THE 

ACQUISITION, PURCHASE, FINANCING AND INSTALLMENT PURCHASE 

OF CERTAIN EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE TERMS HEREIN PROVIDED; 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF OTHER 

DOCUMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; AND 

AUTHORIZING ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE 

CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

WHEREAS, Tahoe Forest Hospital District (the “Purchaser”), a body corporate and 

politic duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, is authorized by the 

laws of the State of California to purchase, acquire and lease personal property (tangible and 

intangible) and other equipment that may become fixtures after installation for the benefit of the 

Purchaser, its patients and residents and to enter into contracts with respect thereto; and 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Purchaser (the “Board”) has determined that a need 

exists for the acquisition, purchase and financing of certain property consisting of surgical, 

medical, diagnostic imaging, laboratory, information technology, therapy, dietary, and other 

medical related and hospital based equipment (collectively, the “Equipment”) on the terms 

herein provided; and  

WHEREAS, in order to acquire such Equipment, the Purchaser proposes to enter into that 

certain Master Installment Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Opus Bank (or one of 

its affiliates), as seller (the “Seller”), substantially in the proposed form presented to the Board 

at this meeting, and separate Schedules thereto substantially in the form attached to the 

Agreement; and   

WHEREAS, the Board deems it for the benefit of the Purchaser and for the efficient and 

effective administration thereof to enter into the Agreement and separate Schedules relating 

thereto from time to time as provided in the Agreement for the purchase, acquisition, financing 

and leasing of the Equipment to be therein described on the terms and conditions therein and 

herein provided; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the governing body of the 

Purchaser as follows: 

 Section 1. Findings and Determinations.  It is hereby found and determined that the 

terms of the Agreement (including the form of Equipment Schedule and the form of Payment 

Schedule, both attached thereto), in the form presented to the Board at this meeting, are in the 

best interests of the Purchaser for the acquisition, purchase, financing and leasing of the 

Equipment. 

Page 51 of 134



2 

 
200572.2 

 Section 2. Approval of Documents.  The form, terms and provisions of the Agreement 

(including the form of Equipment Schedule No. 01 with the form of Payment Schedule for said 

schedule, both attached thereto) are hereby approved in substantially the forms presented at this 

meeting, with such insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by the Chief 

Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer of the Purchaser (the “Authorized Officials”) 

executing the same, the execution of such documents being conclusive evidence of such 

approval.  The Authorized Officials are each hereby authorized and directed to sign and deliver 

on behalf of the Purchaser the Agreement, each Schedule thereto under which a separate 

Contract (as defined in the Agreement) is created, each Payment Schedule attached thereto and 

any related exhibits attached thereto if and when required; provided, however, that, without 

further authorization from the Board, (a) the aggregate principal component of Rental Payments 

under all Contracts entered into pursuant to the Agreement shall not exceed $8,000,000.00; 

(b) the maximum term under any Contract entered into pursuant to the Agreement shall not 

exceed five years; and (c) the maximum interest rate used to determine the interest component of 

Rental Payments under each Contract shall not exceed the lesser of the maximum rate permitted 

by law or ten percent (10%) per annum.  The Authorized Officials may sign and deliver 

Contracts to the Seller on behalf of the Purchaser pursuant to the Agreement on such terms and 

conditions as they shall determine are in the best interests of the Purchaser up to the maximum 

aggregate principal component, maximum term and maximum interest rate provided above.  The 

foregoing authorization shall remain in effect for a period of two years from the date hereof 

during which the Authorized Officials are authorized to sign and deliver Contracts pursuant to 

the Agreement on the terms and conditions herein provided and to be provided in each such 

Contract. 

 Section 3. Other Actions Authorized.  The officers and employees of the Purchaser 

shall take all action necessary or reasonably required by the parties to the Agreement to carry 

out, give effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated thereby (including the 

execution and delivery of Final Acceptance Certificates, Escrow Agreements and any tax 

certificate and agreement, as contemplated in the Agreement) and to take all action necessary in 

conformity therewith, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of any closing 

and other documents required to be delivered in connection with the Agreement and each 

Contract. 

 Section 4. Appointment of Authorized Purchaser Representatives.  The Chief 

Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Purchaser are each hereby designated to 

act as authorized representatives of the Purchaser for purposes of each Contract and the related 

Escrow Agreement, if any, until such time as the Board shall designate any other or different 

authorized representative for purposes of the Agreement and any Contract or Escrow Agreement. 

 Section 5. Official Intent.  Purchaser reasonably expects to reimburse capital 

expenditures described herein, costs of issuance or an expenditure described in Treasury Regulation 

Section 1.150-2(d)(3) promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the 

"Code") with the proceeds of the Contracts.  The reimbursed expenditures have been paid not more 

than 60 days prior to the date of this Resolution or any reimbursement resolution approved by the 

Board. The maximum principal component of Reimbursement Lease expected to be issued is 

$8,000,000.  The expenditures with respect to which Purchaser reasonably expects to be reimbursed 

Page 52 of 134



3 

 
200572.2 

from the proceeds of Contracts are for the acquisition of the Equipment. Purchaser shall allocate on 

its books the Contract proceeds to the expenditures described herein within 18 months after the later 

of the date the original expenditure is paid or the date the Equipment is placed in service but not 

more than three years after the original expenditure is paid. 

 Section 6. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the 

remaining provisions of this Resolution. 

 Section 7. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Tahoe 

Forest Hospital District duly called and held in the District this 27th day of September, 2018 by 

the following vote: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 

 

  APPROVED: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

DALE CHAMBLIN 

President, Board of Directors 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

 

The undersigned, a duly elected or appointed and acting Board Secretary of the Purchaser 

identified in the above Resolution No. 2018-08 (the “Resolution”), hereby certifies that the 

Resolution is a full, true and correct copy of such Resolution as adopted by the governing body 

of the Purchaser on September 27, 2018.  The Resolution is in full force and effect on the date 

hereof and has not been amended, modified or otherwise changed by the Board since the date of 

adoption of the Resolution. 

DATED this ____ day of September, 2018. 

_______________________________________ 

 Alyce Wong, Secretary of the Board 

Page 53 of 134



Page 1 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement (Rev. 09/2018) 

 

 

OPUS BANK 

 

MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(Contract No. <27>) 

 

This MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of October 1, 2018, is made 

and entered into by and between OPUS BANK, a California commercial bank, as seller (“Seller”), and TAHOE FOREST 

HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of California, as purchaser (“Purchaser”). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Definitions.  The following terms have the meanings specified below. 

“Acceptance Certificate” means an acceptance certificate in the form attached to any applicable Equipment Schedule. 

“Agreement” means this Master Installment Purchase Agreement, including all exhibits and schedules attached hereto. 

“Contract” means, with respect to each Equipment Group, this Agreement and the Equipment Schedule relating thereto, 

which together shall constitute a separate contract between Seller and Purchaser relating to such Equipment Group. 

“Contract Date” means, with respect to each Contract, the date so designated in the related Equipment Schedule.  The parties 

agree that the Contract Date for each Contract will be the date the proceeds of the Contract are disbursed by Seller, either to Purchaser, 

into a Restricted Account or into escrow.  Purchaser hereby authorizes Seller to insert each such date as the Contract Date on the 

applicable Equipment Schedule and in any other documents and instruments relating to the Contract. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, together with Treasury Regulations promulgated from time 

to time thereunder. 

“Equipment” means all items of property described in Equipment Schedules and subject to this Agreement, and all 

replacements, repairs, substitutions, restorations, accessions, modifications and improvements thereof or thereto made pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

“Equipment Group” means each group of Equipment listed in a single Equipment Schedule. 

“Equipment Schedule” means an Equipment Schedule in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, including all 

exhibits and schedules attached thereto.  Each Equipment Schedule shall be numbered sequentially, beginning with Equipment 

Schedule No. 1. 

“Event of Default” has the meaning given in Section 12.1. 

“Indenture” means the Indenture, dated July 1, 1999, between the Purchaser and U.S. Bank National Association, as 

successor in interest to BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee, as may be amended or restated from time to time. 

“Installment Payment” means each payment due from Purchaser to Seller on a Payment Date. 

“Net Proceeds” means the amount remaining from the gross proceeds of any insurance claim, condemnation award or sale 

under threat of condemnation after deducting all expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred in the collection thereof. 

“Payment Date” means each date upon which an Installment Payment is due and payable as provided in a Payment Schedule. 

“Payment Schedule” means the schedule of Installment Payments attached to an Equipment Schedule. 

“Prepayment Price” means, with respect to a Contract that is by its terms prepayable, the amount so designated and set forth 

opposite a Payment Date in a Payment Schedule relating to such Contract indicating the amount for which Purchaser may purchase the 

related Equipment Group as of such Payment Date after making the Installment Payment due on such Payment Date. 

“Restricted Account” means a Seller-controlled interest bearing account in the name of the Purchaser established at Seller for 

deposit of the proceeds of an Equipment Schedule.    

“Specifications” means the bid or purchase order specifications pursuant to which Purchaser has ordered any Equipment from 

a Vendor. 

Page 54 of 134



Page 2 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

“State” means the state in which Purchaser is situated. 

“Taxable Rate” means the taxable interest rate set forth in the Equipment Schedule for such Contract. 

“Term” means with respect to a Contract, the Term set forth in the Equipment Schedule for such Contract. 

“Vendor” means each of the manufacturers or vendors from which Purchaser has ordered or with which Purchaser has 

contracted for the manufacture, delivery and/or installation of the Equipment. 

Section 1.2 Equipment Schedules Separate Financings.  Each Equipment Schedule executed and delivered under this 

Agreement shall be a separate Contract, distinct from other Equipment Schedules.  Without limiting the foregoing, upon the 

occurrence of an Event of Default with respect to an Equipment Schedule, Seller shall have the rights and remedies specified herein 

with respect to the Equipment Group described in and the Installment Payments under the Equipment Schedule, and Seller shall have 

no rights or remedies with respect to Equipment Groups or Installment Payments under any other Equipment Schedules unless an 

Event of Default has also occurred under such other Equipment Schedules.   

ARTICLE II. SALE AND PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT 

Section 2.1 Sale and Purchase.  Seller hereby sells the Equipment to Purchaser, and Purchaser hereby purchases the Equipment 

from Seller, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the applicable Equipment Schedule. 

Section 2.2 Delivery, Installation and Acceptance of Equipment.  Purchaser shall order each Equipment Group, shall cause 

the Equipment to be delivered and installed at the locations specified under the applicable Equipment Schedule and shall pay all taxes, 

delivery costs and installation costs, if any, in connection therewith.  To the extent funds are deposited under an escrow agreement for 

the acquisition of the Equipment, such funds shall be disbursed as provided therein.  The insufficiency of proceeds of any Contract to 

pay all costs of the Equipment Group subject thereto shall not affect Purchaser’s obligations under this Section.  When the Equipment 

Group described in such Equipment Schedule is delivered, installed and accepted as to the Specifications, Purchaser shall promptly 

execute and deliver to Seller an Acceptance Certificate for the Equipment Group. 

ARTICLE III. TERM 

Section 3.1 Term.  The term of each Contract shall commence on the Contract Date set forth in the applicable Equipment 

Schedule and shall terminate upon payment of the final Installment Payment thereunder, unless sooner terminated pursuant to this 

Agreement or the Equipment Schedule. 

Section 3.2 Installment Payments to Constitute Binding Obligation.  Seller and Purchaser understand and intend that the 

obligation of Purchaser to pay Installment Payments under this Agreement and each Equipment Schedule executed and delivered 

hereunder shall constitute a binding contractual obligation of Purchaser for the full Term of each such Contract.  Purchaser covenants 

to include all such Installment Payments due under the Contracts in its annual budget.  Neither this Agreement nor any Contract shall 

be subject to termination by Purchaser in the event that Purchaser fails to appropriate any Installment Payments. 

ARTICLE IV. INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS 

Section 4.1 Installment Payments.  Purchaser agrees to pay the Installment Payments due as specified in the Payment Schedule 

in Exhibit 1 to each Equipment Schedule.  A portion of each Installment Payment is paid as interest as specified in the Payment 

Schedule for each Contract, and the first Installment Payment will include interest accruing from the date specified in the Equipment 

Schedule.  All Installment Payments shall be paid to Seller, or to such assignee(s) Seller has assigned as stipulated in Article XI, at 

such places as Seller or such assignee(s) may from time to time designate by written notice to Purchaser.  Purchaser shall pay the 

Installment Payments with lawful money of the United States of America from moneys legally available therefor. 

Section 4.2 Unconditional Installment Payments.  Purchaser's obligation to make Installment Payments and any other 

payments hereunder shall be absolute and unconditional; Purchaser shall make these payments when due and shall not withhold any of 

these payments pending final resolution of any disputes; Purchaser shall not assert any right of set-off or counterclaim against its 

obligation to make these payments; Purchaser’s obligation to make Installment Payments or other payments shall not be abated 

through accident, unforeseen circumstances, failure of the Equipment to perform as desired, damage or destruction to the Equipment, 

loss of possession of the Equipment or obsolescence of the Equipment; Purchaser shall be obligated to continue to make payments 

required of it by this Agreement if title to, or temporary use of, the Equipment or any part thereof shall be taken under exercise of the 

power of eminent domain. 

ARTICLE V. PAYMENT AND PREPAYMENT 

Section 5.1 Option to Prepay.   

(a) Purchaser shall have the option to prepay its obligations under any Contract in whole but not in 

part on any Payment Date as set forth in the Payment Schedule to the Equipment Schedule for such Contract, but only if and to the 

extent the Equipment Schedule provides for such prepayment.  Purchaser shall give notice to Seller of its intention to exercise its 

option not less than thirty (30) days prior to the Payment Date on which the option will be exercised and shall pay to Seller not later 

than such Payment Date an amount equal to all Installment Payments and any other amounts then due or past due under the Contract 

Page 55 of 134



Page 3 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

(including the Installment Payment due on the Payment Date on which the option shall be effective and the applicable Prepayment 

Price set forth in the Payment Schedule).  In the event that all such amounts are not received by Seller on such Payment Date, such 

notice by Purchaser of exercise of its option to prepay shall be void and the Contract shall continue in full force and effect. 

(b) Purchaser shall have the option to prepay its obligations under any Contract in whole or in part on 

the Payment Date immediately following the date of the prepayment notice given by Purchaser pursuant to Section 7.4 from the Net 

Proceeds of any insurance claim, condemnation award or sale under threat of condemnation relating to the Equipment Group subject 

to such Contract.  The applicable Prepayment Price shall be applicable for the date of such prepayment.  Any amounts paid pursuant to 

this Section 5.1(b) shall be applied first to unpaid fees (including the prepayment fee, which is the difference between the applicable 

prepayment price and the outstanding principal component being prepaid), late charges and collection costs, if any, which have 

accrued under the Contract, then to overdue Installment Payments, and then proportionately to the principal component of each 

Installment Payment thereunder due under the Contract.  If the Contract is being prepaid in part, Seller shall provide Purchaser with a 

revised Payment Schedule which shall reflect the revised principal balance and the reduced Installment Payments under the Contract. 

(c) Purchaser’s obligations under a Contract shall be prepaid in part from the excess proceeds of the 

Contract on the terms set forth in any escrow agreement pursuant to which the proceeds of the Contract are being held. 

Section 5.2 Release of Seller’s Interest.  Upon timely receipt, in collected funds, of all Installment Payments under a Contract, 

or the prepayment in whole of any Contract pursuant to Section 5.1, such Contract shall terminate, all of Seller’s right, title and 

interest in and to the Equipment Group will terminate, and Seller shall deliver to Purchaser all such documents and instruments as 

Purchaser may reasonably require to evidence the termination of the Contract and Seller’s interest in the Equipment Group, without 

warranty by or recourse to Seller.  

ARTICLE VI. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND TAX COVENANTS 

Section 6.1 Representations and Warranties of Purchaser.  Purchaser shall be deemed to make the following representations 

and warranties to Seller with respect to each Contract, in each case as of the Contract Date for such Contract:: 

(a) Purchaser is a state or political subdivision of the State within the meaning of Section 103(c) of 

the Code, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State, and is authorized under the Constitution and laws 

of the State to enter into this Agreement, the Contract and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and to perform all of its 

obligations under this Agreement and the Contract. 

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Equipment Schedule have been duly 

authorized by all necessary action of Purchaser’s governing body and such action is in compliance with all public bidding, if 

applicable, and other State and federal laws applicable to this Agreement and the acquisition and financing of the Equipment by 

Purchaser. 

(c) This Agreement and the Equipment Schedule have been duly executed and delivered by and 

constitute the valid and binding obligations of Purchaser, enforceable against Purchaser in accordance with their respective terms. 

(d) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Equipment Schedule by 

Purchaser does not (i) violate any State or federal law or local law or ordinance, or any order, writ, injunction, decree, or regulation of 

any court or other governmental agency or body applicable to Purchaser, or (ii) conflict with or result in the breach or violation of any 

term or provision of, or constitute a default under, any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, agreement, deed of trust, lease or other 

obligation to which Purchaser is bound. 

(e) There is no action, suit, proceeding, claim, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or 

by any court, regulatory agency, public board or body pending or, to the best of Purchaser’s knowledge, threatened against or affecting 

Purchaser, challenging Purchaser’s authority to enter into this Agreement or the Equipment Schedule or any other action wherein an 

unfavorable ruling or finding would adversely affect the enforceability of this Agreement or the Equipment Schedule. 

(f) Except as otherwise disclosed in writing by Purchaser to Seller, no lease, rental agreement, lease-

purchase agreement, payment agreement or contract for purchase to which Purchaser has been a party at any time during the past ten 

(10) years has been terminated by Purchaser as a result of insufficient funds being appropriated in any budget year, and no event has 

occurred which would constitute an event of default under any debt, revenue bond or obligation which Purchaser has issued during the 

past ten (10) years. 

(g) Purchaser or Purchaser’s governing body has appropriated and/or taken other lawful actions 

necessary to provide moneys sufficient to pay all Installment Payments during the current budget year, and such moneys will be 

applied in payment of all Installment Payments due and payable during such current budget year. 

(h) Purchaser has an immediate need for, and expects to make immediate use of, the Equipment, 

which need is not temporary or expected to diminish during the applicable Contract Term. 

(i) Purchaser’s exact legal name is as set forth on the first page of this Agreement.   

Page 56 of 134



Page 4 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Section 6.2 Tax Related Representations, Warranties and Covenants.  Purchaser shall be deemed to make the following 

representations and warranties to, and covenants with, Seller with respect to each Contract, in each case as of the Contract Date for 

such Contract: 

(a) Purchaser will comply with all applicable provisions of the Code, including Sections 103 and 148 

thereof, and the regulations of the Treasury Department thereunder, from time to time proposed or in effect, in order to maintain the 

excludability from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest component of Installment Payments under the Contract 

and will not use or permit the use of the Equipment in such a manner as to cause the Contract to be a "private activity bond" under 

Section 141(a) of the Code.  Purchaser covenants and agrees that it will use the proceeds of the Contract as soon as practicable and 

with all reasonable dispatch for the purpose for which the Equipment Schedule has been entered into, and that no part of the proceeds 

of any Contract shall be invested in any securities, obligations or other investments except for the temporary period pending such use 

nor used, at any time, directly or indirectly, in a manner which, if such use had been reasonably anticipated on the Contract Date, 

would have caused any portion of the Contract to be or become "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 103(b)(2) or Section 

148 of the Code and the regulations of the Treasury Department thereunder proposed or in effect at the time of such use and applicable 

to obligations issued on Contract Date. 

(b) (i) the estimated total costs, including taxes, freight, installation, cost of issuance, of the 

Equipment under the Contract will not be less than the total principal amount of the Installment Payments; (ii) the Equipment under 

the Contract has been ordered or is expected to be ordered within eighteen months after the Contract Date and the Equipment is 

expected to be delivered and installed, and the Vendor fully paid, within twenty-four months from the Contract Date; (iii) Purchaser 

will pursue the acquisition of the Equipment and the expenditure of the net proceeds of the Contract with due diligence; (iv) Purchaser 

has not created or established, and does not expect to create or establish, any sinking fund or other similar fund (A) that is reasonably 

expected to be used to pay the Installment Payments under the Contract, or (B) that may be used solely to prevent a default in the 

payment of the Installment Payments under the Contract; (v) the Equipment under the Contract has not been and is not expected to be 

sold or otherwise disposed of by Purchaser, either in whole or in major part, prior to the last maturity of the Installment Payments 

under the Contract; (vi) there are no other obligations of Purchaser which (A) are being sold within 15 days of the Contract Date of the 

Contract, or (B) are being sold pursuant to the same plan of financing as the Contract, and (C) are expected to be paid from 

substantially the same source of funds; (vi) the officer or official who has executed the Equipment Schedule on Purchaser's behalf is 

familiar with Purchaser's expectations regarding the use and expenditure of the proceeds of the Contract.  To the best of Purchaser's 

knowledge, information and belief, the facts and estimates set forth in this Section 6.2(b) are accurate and the expectations of 

Purchaser set forth in this Section 6.2(b) are reasonable.  The representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Section 6.2(b) 

are superseded by the representations, warranties and covenants set forth in any arbitrage or tax certificate executed and delivered by 

Purchaser in connection with the Contract. 

Section 6.3 Tax Changes.   

(a) If Seller either (i) receives notice, in any form, from the Internal Revenue Service or (ii) 

reasonably determines, based on an opinion of independent tax counsel selected by Seller, that Seller may not exclude the interest 

component of Installment Payments paid under the Contract from its Federal gross income (each an “Event of Taxability”), Purchaser 

shall pay to Seller upon demand (x) an amount which, with respect to Installment Payments previously paid and taking into account all 

penalties, fines, interest and additions to tax (including all federal, state and local taxes imposed on the Interest due through the date of 

such event), will restore to Seller an interest rate equal to the Taxable Rate with respect to such Equipment Schedule and (y) as to 

subsequent Installment Payments, interest shall accrue interest at the Taxable Rate. 

(b) Reserved. 

ARTICLE VII. INSURANCE 

Section 7.1 Liability and Property Insurance.  Purchaser shall, at its own expense, procure and maintain continuously in effect 

during each Contract Term: (a) public liability insurance for death or injuries to persons, or damage to property arising out of or in any 

way connected to the Equipment sufficient to protect Seller and its assigns from liability in all events, with a coverage of not less than 

$1,000,000 per occurrence unless specified differently in the related Equipment Schedule, and (b) insurance against such hazards as 

Seller may require, including, but not limited to, all-risk casualty and property insurance, in an amount equal to the greater of the full 

replacement cost of the Equipment or the applicable Prepayment Price. 

Section 7.2 Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  If required by State law, Purchaser shall carry workers’ compensation 

insurance covering all employees on, in, near or about the Equipment. 

Section 7.3 Insurance Requirements. 

(a) All insurance policies required by this Article shall be taken out and maintained with insurance 

companies acceptable to Seller and shall contain a provision that thirty (30) days prior to any change in the coverage (including 

cancellation) the insurer must provide written notice to the insured parties.  No insurance shall be subject to any co-insurance clause.  

Each liability insurance policy shall be endorsed to name Seller and its assigns as an additional insured party, and each property and 

casualty policy shall be endorsed to name Seller and its assigns as loss payee, in each case regardless of any breach of warranty or 

other act or omission of Purchaser   

Page 57 of 134



Page 5 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

(b) Prior to the Contract Date for each Contract, and thereafter at Seller’s request, Purchaser shall 

deliver to Seller the evidence of insurance which complies with this Article VII with respect to the Equipment Group subject to the 

Contract, including, without limitation, the evidence of insurance required by the Equipment Schedule. 

(c) Purchaser may self-insure against the risks described in Sections 7.1 and 7.2, with the prior written 

consent of Seller, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If Seller consents to self-insurance, Purchaser shall deliver to Seller, 

prior to the Contract Date for each Contract, and thereafter at Seller’s request, a letter from its risk manager or insurance consultant in 

substantially the form attached to the Equipment Schedule. 

Section 7.4 Destruction of Equipment.  If the Equipment under a Contract or any portion thereof is stolen, lost or destroyed, in 

whole or in part, or is damaged by fire or other casualty, or title to, or the temporary use of, the Equipment under a Contract or any 

part thereof shall be taken under the exercise or threat of the power of eminent domain by any governmental body or by any person, 

firm or corporation acting pursuant to governmental authority, Seller and Purchaser will cause the Net Proceeds of any insurance 

claim, condemnation award or sale under threat of condemnation to be applied, at the option of Purchaser, to (a) the prompt 

replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Equipment in substantial conformance with the Specifications, or 

(b) the prepayment of the Contract pursuant to Section 5.1.  Purchaser will give Seller written notice of its election within ninety (90) 

days after its receipt of the Net Proceeds.  The insufficiency of the Net Proceeds to pay in full the cost of any repair, restoration, 

modification or improvement shall not affect Purchaser’s obligations under this Section, and Purchaser shall not be entitled to any 

reimbursement therefor from Seller or any diminution of the Installment Payments.  The amount of the Net Proceeds, if any, 

remaining after completing such repair, restoration, modification or improvement may be retained by Purchaser. 

ARTICLE VIII. OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF PURCHASER 

Section 8.1 Use and Maintenance of Equipment.  Purchaser shall, at its own expense, maintain the Equipment in good 

condition and proper working order, and shall make all necessary repairs and replacements to keep the Equipment in such condition.  

The Equipment will be used by Purchaser only for the purpose of performing Purchaser’s essential governmental functions.  Purchaser 

shall not install, use, operate or maintain the Equipment improperly, carelessly, in violation of any manufacturer’s guidelines or in 

violation of any applicable law or regulation or in a manner contrary to that contemplated by this Agreement.  Purchaser shall obtain 

and maintain all permits and licenses necessary for the installation and operation of the Equipment.  Purchaser shall have sole 

responsibility to maintain and repair the Equipment. Purchaser shall keep (or, in the case of Equipment constituting motor vehicles, 

house) the Equipment at the address specified in the related Equipment Schedule; provided that Purchaser may change the location at 

which any Equipment is kept (or housed) with thirty (30) days prior written notice to Seller specifying the address of the new location.  

Purchaser shall provide Seller access at all reasonable times to examine and inspect the Equipment and provide Seller with such access 

to the Equipment as may be reasonably necessary to perform maintenance on the Equipment in the event of failure by Purchaser to 

perform its obligations hereunder.  If Seller reasonably determines that Purchaser is not maintaining any of the Equipment in 

accordance with this Section, Seller may (in addition to any other remedies it may have) require Purchaser to enter into maintenance 

contracts for such Equipment in form approved by Seller and with approved providers. 

Section 8.2 Taxes.  Seller and Purchaser contemplated that the Equipment will be used for a governmental or proprietary 

purpose of Purchaser, and therefore that the Equipment will be exempt from all property taxes.  The Installment Payments payable by 

Purchaser under this Agreement and the Contract have been established to reflect the savings resulting from this exemption.  

Purchaser will take all necessary actions under applicable law to obtain or maintain such exemption.  Nevertheless, if the use, 

possession or acquisition of the Equipment is determined to be subject to taxation or later becomes subject to taxation, Purchaser shall 

pay all taxes, assessments and other charges which are assessed or levied against the Equipment or any part thereof, during the 

Contract Term, whether assessed against Purchaser or Seller.  With respect to any taxes or charges that may lawfully be paid in 

installments over a period of years, Purchaser shall be obligated to pay only such installments as accrue during the then current budget 

year of the Contract Term for such Equipment. 

Section 8.3 Liens.  Purchaser shall not, directly or indirectly, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage, pledge, lien, 

charge, encumbrance or other claim with respect to the Equipment, other than the respective rights of Seller and Purchaser as herein 

provided.  Purchaser shall promptly, at its own expense, take such actions as may be necessary duly to discharge or remove any such 

claim if the same shall arise at any time.  Purchaser shall pay all gas, water, steam, electric, heat, power, telephone, utility and other 

charges incurred in the operation, maintenance, use, occupancy and upkeep of the Equipment.   

Section 8.4 Advances.  If Purchaser shall fail to perform any of its obligations under Section 8.1, Section 8.2 or Section 8.3, or 

shall fail to maintain the insurance required by Article VII, Seller may (but shall not be required to) take such action to cure such 

failure, including the advancement of money, and Purchaser shall be obligated to repay all such advances on demand, with interest at 

the rate of 12% per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is less, from the date of the advance to the date of 

repayment. 

Section 8.5 Financial Information and Financial Covenants.   

(a) Financial Information.  Purchaser shall deliver to Seller (i) its annual audited financial statements within 

180 days after the end of each fiscal year, (ii) its annual budget for the succeeding fiscal year promptly following approval thereof, 

(iii) proof of appropriation of Installment Payments with its annual budget, (iv) unaudited semi-annual financial statements within 60 

Page 58 of 134



Page 6 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

days of the end of said period sufficient to calculate compliance with the financial covenant set forth in Section 8.5(b)(ii), and (v) such 

other financial statements and information relating to the ability of Purchaser to satisfy its obligation under this Agreement and the 

Contract as may be reasonably requested by Seller from time to time. 

(b)  Financial Covenants.  Purchaser covenants additionally as follows: 

 

i. Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio.  The Purchaser covenants to maintain a Long-Term 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio of 1.10; 1.0.  Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio shall be defined and calculated 

as provided in the Indenture as of the date of this Agreement.  Any amendments, restatements or repeal of the 

Indenture after the date of this Agreement shall not be applicable to this provision, absent the prior written consent 

of the Seller. 

ii. Days Cash on Hand.  The Purchaser covenants to maintain a Days Cash on Hand of at least 50 

days.  Days Cash on Hand shall be defined and calculated as provided in the Indenture as of the date of this 

Agreement.  Any amendments, restatements or repeal of the Indenture after the date of this Agreement shall not be 

applicable to this provision, absent the prior written consent of the Seller. 

iii. Limitation on Indebtedness.  The Purchaser covenants to maintain compliance with the 

Limitations on Indebtedness as set forth in Section 6.05 of the Indenture.  The terms of Section 6.05 of the Indenture 

shall be as provided in the Indenture as of the date of this Agreement.  Any amendments, restatements or repeal of 

the Indenture after the date of this Agreement shall not be applicable to this provision, absent the prior written 

consent of the Seller. 

ARTICLE IX. TITLE 

Section 9.1 Title.  During the Contract Term, legal title to all Equipment shall be in Purchaser, subject to Seller’s interests under 

the applicable Equipment Schedule and this Agreement.   

Section 9.2 Security Interest.  In order to secure Purchaser’s payment of all Installment Payments and the performance of all 

other obligations hereunder, Purchaser hereby grants to Seller a continuing, first priority security interest in and to (a) the Equipment, 

all repairs, replacements, substitutions, restorations, accessions, improvements and modifications thereto; (b) all moneys and 

investments in any escrow account or Restricted Account into which proceeds of the Contract have been deposited; (c) all books, 

ledgers and records and all computer programs, tapes, discs, punch cards, data processing software, transaction files, master files and 

related property and rights (including computer and peripheral equipment) necessary or helpful in enforcing, identifying or 

establishing any item of Equipment; and (d) and all proceeds of the foregoing, including insurance proceeds.  Purchaser hereby 

authorizes Seller to prepare and file such financing statements and other such documents to establish and maintain Seller’s valid first 

lien and perfected security interest.  Purchaser will join with Seller in executing such documents and will perform such acts as Seller 

may request to establish and maintain Seller's valid first lien and perfected security interest.  Upon Seller’s request, Purchaser shall 

obtain, at Purchaser’s expense, a waiver of any interest in the Equipment from any landlord, mortgagee or any other party holding an 

interest in the real property on which the Equipment is or will be located.  Purchaser will not change its legal name in any respect 

without giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to Seller. 

Section 9.3 Modification of Equipment.  Purchaser will not, without the prior written consent of Seller, affix or install any 

accessory equipment or device on any of the Equipment if such addition will change or impair the originally intended value, function 

or use of the Equipment. 

Section 9.4 Personal Property.  The Equipment is and shall at all times be and remain personal property and not fixtures. 

ARTICLE X. WARRANTIES; RISK OF LOSS 

Section 10.1 Selection of Equipment.  Each Vendor and all of the Equipment have been selected by Purchaser.  Seller shall have 

no responsibility in connection with the selection of the Equipment, the ordering of the Equipment, its suitability for the use intended 

by Purchaser, the acceptance by any Vendor or its sales representative of any order submitted, or any delay or failure by such Vendor 

or its sales representative to manufacture, deliver or install any Equipment for use by Purchaser. 

Section 10.2 Vendor’s Warranties.  Seller hereby assigns to Purchaser for and during the Contract Term, all of its interest, if 

any, in all Vendor’s warranties, guarantees and patent indemnity protection, express or implied issued on or applicable to an 

Equipment Group, and Purchaser may obtain the customary services furnished in connection with such warranties and guarantees at 

Purchaser’s expense.  Seller has no obligation to enforce any Vendor’s warranties or obligations on behalf of itself or Purchaser. 

Section 10.3 Disclaimer of Warranties.  PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE EQUIPMENT IS OF A SIZE, 

DESIGN, CAPACITY, AND MANUFACTURE SELECTED BY PURCHASER.  PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT 

SELECTED THE EQUIPMENT WITHOUT ASSISTANCE OF SELLER, ITS AGENTS OR EMPLOYEES.  SELLER IS NOT A 

MANUFACTURER OF THE EQUIPMENT OR A DEALER IN SIMILAR EQUIPMENT, AND DOES NOT INSPECT THE 

EQUIPMENT BEFORE DELIVERY TO PURCHASER.  SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION, EITHER 

Page 59 of 134



Page 7 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, QUALITY, DURABILITY, SUITABILITY, 

NONINFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS FOR THE USE 

CONTEMPLATED BY PURCHASER OF THE EQUIPMENT, OR ANY OTHER REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WITH 

RESPECT TO THE EQUIPMENT.  IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL OR 

CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE EQUIPMENT 

OR PURCHASER’S USE OF THE EQUIPMENT. 

Section 10.4 Risk of Loss.  Purchaser shall not be required to indemnify Seller from liabilities associated with this Agreement; 

however, to the extent permitted by applicable laws of the State, as between Seller and Purchaser, Purchaser assumes all risks and 

liabilities from any cause whatsoever, whether or not covered by insurance, and Purchaser agrees to defend Seller against, all 

liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, actions, costs and expenses that relate to or arise out of this Agreement, 

including but not limited to, (a) the selection, manufacture, purchase, acceptance or rejection of Equipment or the ownership of the 

Equipment, (b) the delivery, possession, maintenance, use, condition, return or operation of the Equipment, (c) the condition of the 

Equipment sold or otherwise disposed of after possession by Purchaser, (d) the conduct of Purchaser, its officers, employees and 

agents, (e) any claim, loss, cost or expense involving alleged damage to the environment relating to the Equipment, including, but not 

limited to investigation, removal, cleanup and remedial costs, and (f) any strict liability under the laws or judicial decisions of any 

state or the United States.  This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XI. ASSIGNMENT AND LEASING 

Section 11.1 Assignment by Seller.  Seller, without Purchaser's consent, may assign and reassign all of Seller’s right, title and/or 

interest in and to this Agreement or any Contract, including, but not limited to, the Installment Payments and other amounts payable 

by Purchaser and Seller’s interest in the Equipment, in whole or in part to one or more assignees or subassignee(s) of Seller at any 

time.  No such assignment shall be effective as against Purchaser unless and until written notice of the assignment is provided to 

Purchaser.  When presented with a notice of assignment, Purchaser will acknowledge in writing receipt of such notice for the benefit 

of Seller and any assignee.  Purchaser shall keep a complete and accurate record of all such assignments.  Assignees of Seller’s rights 

in one Contract shall have no rights in any other Contract unless such rights have been separately assigned. 

Section 11.2 Assignment and Leasing by Purchaser.  Neither this Agreement nor any Contract or any Equipment may be 

assigned, leased, sold, transferred, pledged or mortgaged by Purchaser. 

ARTICLE XII. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 12.1 Events of Default Defined.  The occurrence of any of the following events with respect to a Contract shall 

constitute an Event of Default under the Contract: 

(a) Purchaser's failure to pay any Installment Payment or other amount required to be paid to Seller 

under the Contract within ten (10) days following the due date thereof. 

(b) Purchaser's failure to maintain insurance under the Contract as required by Article VII. 

(c) With the exception of the above clauses (a) or (b), Purchaser's failure to perform or abide by any 

condition, agreement or covenant with respect to the Contract for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice by Seller to 

Purchaser specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless Seller shall agree in writing to an extension of time prior 

to its expiration. 

(d) Seller's determination that any representation, warranty or statement made by Purchaser in or 

pursuant to the Contract was untrue in any material respect on the date made. 

(e) The filing of a petition in bankruptcy or receivership or similar proceeding by or against 

Purchaser, or failure by Purchaser promptly to lift any execution, garnishment or attachment of such consequence as would impair the 

ability of Purchaser to carry on its governmental functions or assignment by Purchaser for the benefit of creditors, or the entry by 

Purchaser into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of any adjustment of 

indebtedness of Purchaser, or the dissolution or liquidation of Purchaser. 

(f) An Event of Default as defined in the Indenture. 

Section 12.2 Remedies on Default.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default with respect to a Contract, Seller shall have the 

right, at its option and without any further demand or notice to one or more or all of the following remedies with respect to the 

Contract: 

(a) Seller, with or without terminating the Contract, may declare all Installment Payments payable 

under the Contract to the end of the then current budget year of Purchaser to be immediately due and payable by Purchaser, 

whereupon such Installment Payments shall be immediately due and payable. 

(b) Seller may terminate the Contract, and by written notice to Purchaser, Seller may accelerate the 

principal component of all outstanding Installment Payments, in which case Purchaser shall pay to Seller the entire balance of such 

Page 60 of 134



Page 8 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

principal component, together with interest on such sum from the date of acceleration until so paid at the rate of 12 percent per annum 

or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law, whichever is less, together with all other sums then due under the Contract. 

(c) Seller may terminate the Contract and may repossess any or all of the Equipment subject to the 

Contract by giving Purchaser written notice to deliver such Equipment in the manner provided in Section 12.3; or in the event 

Purchaser fails to do so within ten (10) days after receipt of such notice, Seller may enter upon Purchaser’s premises where such 

Equipment is kept and take possession of such Equipment and charge Purchaser for costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys’ 

fees.  Seller may thereafter dispose of the Equipment in accordance with the requirements of Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial 

Code, continuing to hold Purchaser liable for any deficiency and all costs and expenses incurred by Seller in exercising its remedies 

hereunder, including, without limitation, all costs and expenses of taking possession, removing, storing and reconditioning the 

Equipment, and including, without limitation, all brokerage and attorney’s fees.   

(d) By written notice to any escrow agent that is holding proceeds of the Contract, Seller may instruct 

such escrow agent to release all such proceeds and any earnings thereon to Seller, such sums to be credited to payment of Purchaser’s 

obligations under the Contract. 

(e) Seller may exercise any other remedy available, at law or in equity, with respect to such Event of 

Default. Purchaser shall pay the reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred by Seller in exercising any remedy hereunder. 

Section 12.3 Return of Equipment.  Upon demand of Seller following an Event of Default with respect to a Contract, Purchaser 

shall, within ten (10) days after the date of such demand: (a) perform any testing and repairs required to place the related Equipment in 

the condition required by Article VIII; (b) if deinstallation, disassembly or crating is required, cause such Equipment to be deinstalled, 

disassembled and crated by an authorized manufacturer’s representative or such other service person as is satisfactory to Seller; (c) 

return such Equipment to a location in the continental United States specified by Seller, freight and insurance prepaid by Purchaser; 

and (d) comply with any additional return conditions specified in the Equipment Schedule.  Purchaser shall execute and deliver to 

Seller such documents as Seller may request to evidence passage of legal title and ownership of the Equipment to Seller and 

termination of Purchaser’s interest in the Equipment.  

Section 12.4 Late Charge.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, Seller shall have the right to require late payment charge 

for each Installment Payment or any other amount due hereunder which is not paid within 10 days of the date when due equal to the 

lesser of 5% of each late payment or the legal maximum.   

Section 12.5 No Remedy Exclusive.  Each of the rights and remedies under this Agreement and each Contract is cumulative and 

may be enforced separately or concurrently.  No course of dealing or conduct between Seller and Purchaser shall be effective to 

amend, modify or change any provisions of this Agreement or any Contract.  No failure or delay by Seller to insist upon the strict 

performance of any term, covenant or agreement of the Agreement or any Contract, or to exercise any right, power or remedy 

consequent upon a breach thereof, shall constitute a waiver of any such term, covenant or agreement or of any such breach, or 

preclude Seller from exercising any such right, power or remedy at any later time or times. 

Section 12.6 Costs and Attorney Fees.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, Purchaser agrees to pay to Seller or 

reimburse Seller for, in addition to all other amounts payable hereunder, all of Seller’s costs of collection, including reasonable 

attorney fees, whether or not suit or action is filed thereon.  Any such costs shall be immediately due and payable upon written notice 

and demand given to Purchaser, shall be secured by this Agreement until paid, and shall bear interest at the rate of 12 percent per 

annum or the maximum amount permitted by law, whichever is less.  In the event suit or action is instituted to enforce any of the 

terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party such sum as the court may adjudge 

reasonable as attorney’s fees at trial and on appeal of such suit or action or in any bankruptcy proceeding, in addition to all other sums 

provided by law. 

ARTICLE XIII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 13.1 Notices.  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be given (a) personally, (b) by mail in registered 

or certified form, with postage prepaid, or (c) by overnight courier, charges prepaid, in each case to the party entitled thereto at its 

address specified beneath each party’s signature, or at such address as the party may provide to the other parties hereto in writing from 

time to time, and to any assignee at its address as it appears on the registration books maintained by Purchaser.  Any such notice shall 

be deemed to have been received 72 hours after deposit in the United States mail, 24 hours after deposit with the courier, or, if given 

by other means, when delivered. 

Section 13.2 Binding Effect.  This Agreement and each Contract hereunder shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of 

Seller and Purchaser and their respective successors and assigns.  Specifically, as used herein the term “Seller” means, with respect to 

a Contract, any person or entity to whom Seller has assigned its right to receive Installment Payments under such Contract. 

Section 13.3 Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement or any Contract shall be held invalid or unenforceable 

by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

Section 13.4 Entire Agreement; Amendments.  Each Lease constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 

subject matter thereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous writings, understandings, agreements, solicitation documents and 

Page 61 of 134



Page 9 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

representations, express or implied.  Each Lease may be amended or modified only by written documents duly authorized, executed 

and delivered by Seller and Purchaser. 

Section 13.5 Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit or 

describe the scope or intent of any provisions, Articles, Sections or clauses hereof. 

Section 13.6 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments.  Seller and Purchaser agree that they will, from time to time, 

execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further 

instruments as may reasonably be required to perfect, confirm, establish, reestablish, continue or complete the interests of Seller in this 

Agreement and each Contract, to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and to carry out the purposes and 

intentions of this Agreement and each Contract. 

Section 13.7 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State.  In 

addition, to the extent that Equipment shall be located in a state other than the State, then compliance with State law shall include 

compliance with the laws of such other state with respect to the Equipment located in that state. 

Section 13.8 Usury.  It is the intention of the parties hereto to comply with any applicable usury laws; accordingly, it is agreed 

that, notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary herein or in any Equipment Schedule, in no event shall this Agreement or any 

Contract hereunder require the payment or permit the collection of interest or any amount in the nature of interest or fees in excess of 

the maximum amount permitted by applicable law.  Any such excess interest or fees shall first be applied to reduce principal, and 

when no principal remains, refunded to Purchaser.  In determining whether the interest paid or payable exceeds the highest lawful rate, 

the total amount of interest shall be spread through the applicable Contract Term so that the interest is uniform through such term. 

Section 13.9 Waiver of Jury Trial.  TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, SELLER AND PURCHASER 

HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING WITH RESPECT TO, IN 

CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

Section 13.10 USA Patriot Act Compliance Notification.  Seller hereby notifies Purchaser that pursuant to the requirements of 

the USA PATRIOT Act (the “Act”), it is required to obtain, verify and record information that identifies Purchaser, which information 

includes the name and address of Purchaser and other information that will allow Seller to identify Purchaser in accordance with the 

Act.  Purchaser shall, promptly upon Seller’s request, provide all documentation and other information that Seller requests in order to 

comply with its ongoing obligations under applicable “know your customer” and anti-money laundering rules and regulations, 

including the Act. 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 

Page 62 of 134



Page 10 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

                

EXECUTION PAGE OF MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

                

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller has caused this Agreement to be executed in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer, and 

Purchaser has caused this Agreement to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officer. 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT, OPUS BANK, 

Purchaser Seller 

 

By:  By:   

Name:  Crystal Betts Name:       

Title:    Chief Financial Officer Title:        

      

Address: 10121 Pine Avenue Address:  131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

Truckee, CA  96161      Fullerton, CA  92832 

 

Attn:  Crystal Betts, Chief Financial Officer    Attn: Robert Papenbrock   
 

Telephone:  (530) 582-6656  Telephone:  (714) 879-8257 

Facsimile:    (530) 582-3567  Facsimile:    (714) 578-7536 

E-mail address:  cbetts@tfhd.com    

Page 63 of 134



Page 11 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

EXHIBIT A 

EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE NO. <10> 

TO MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

The following described Equipment comprises an Equipment Group which is the subject of the Master Installment Purchase 

Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Agreement”) between the undersigned Seller and Purchaser.  The Agreement is 

incorporated herein in its entirety, and Purchaser hereby reaffirms each of its representations, warranties and covenants contained in 

the Agreement.  Purchaser warrants that no Event of Default, or event which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both, 

would constitute an Event of Default, has occurred under the Agreement.   

1. Equipment Group.  The cost of the Equipment Group to be funded by Seller under this Contract is $<11>. The 

Equipment Group consists of the following Equipment which has been or shall be purchased from the Vendor(s) named below for the 

prices set forth below: 

Manufacturer and/or Vendor Name & 

Invoice No. 

<12> 

 

 

 

Description Invoice Cost 

 Total Invoice Cost:    

 

2. Location of Equipment Group.  The Equipment Group is essential to the governmental functions of Purchaser.  The 

Equipment Group is or will be located (or in the case of Equipment constituting vehicles, housed) at the following address(es): 

<13> 

3. Contract Date.  The Contract Date for this Equipment Schedule is     . 

4. Interest Accrual Date.  The amounts of the interest component of Installment Payments payable under this 

Equipment Schedule have been calculated based on the assumption that the proceeds of this Equipment Schedule were disbursed on 

<14> and such payments of interest component will be payable as set forth in the Payment Schedule regardless of when the proceeds 

of this Equipment Schedule were actually disbursed. 

5. Payment Schedule.  The Payment Schedule is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 1. 

6. Acceptance Certificate.  The form of Acceptance Certificate is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 2. 

7. Purchaser’s Certificate.  The Purchaser’s General and Tax Certificate is attached to this Equipment Schedule as 

Exhibit 3. 

8. Opinion.  The opinion of Purchaser’s counsel is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 4. 

9. Proceeds.  Check Item A or Item B: 

A. Seller shall disburse all of the proceeds of this Equipment Schedule in accordance with the instructions 

attached hereto as Exhibit 5.    

B. Seller shall disburse the proceeds of this Equipment Schedule into a Restricted Account with the Seller and 

such amounts in the Restricted Account shall be disbursed in accordance with the instructions attached hereto as Exhibit 5.  

Seller is hereby granted a security interest in the Restricted Account and in the Event of Default, Seller may apply the funds 

in the Restricted Account to payment of the amounts due under the Equipment Schedule.  Any proceeds of the Equipment 

Schedule remaining on __________, 20__ (the “Termination Date”) in the Restricted Account shall be applied by Seller as a 

prepayment of the unpaid Installment Payments under the Equipment Schedule; provided, however, that such prepayment 

shall be subject to any applicable prepayment premium.  Seller shall provide Purchaser with a revised Payment Schedule 

which shall reflect the revised principal balance and reduced Installment Payments due under the Contract.  The Termination 

Date may be amended in writing by Seller and Purchaser..    _____   

C. Seller shall disburse the proceeds of this Equipment Schedule in accordance with the Escrow Agreement 

attached hereto as Exhibit 5.    

10. Insurance.  Check Item A and/or Item B.   

A Purchaser’s insurance letter is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 6.       

B. A letter from Purchaser’s risk manager or insurance consultant is attached as Exhibit 6.     

Page 64 of 134



Page 12 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

11. Form 8038-G or -GC.  The Form 8038-G or Form 8038-GC with respect to the Contract is attached to this 

Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 7. 

Page 65 of 134



Page 13 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

                

EXECUTION PAGE OF SCHEDULE NO. <10> TO MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

                

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller has caused this Equipment Schedule to be executed in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer, 

and Purchaser has caused this Equipment Schedule to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officer. 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, OPUS BANK, 

Purchaser Seller 

 

 

By:  By:  

Name:  Crystal Betts Name:        

Title:    Chief Financial Officer Title:        

 

Address:  10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA  96161 Address:  131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

         Fullerton, CA  92832 
  

Telephone:  (530) 582-6656 Telephone:  (714) 879-8257 

Facsimile:   (530) 582-3567 Facsimile:    (714) 578-7536 

Page 66 of 134



Page 14 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 Exhibit 1 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

The annual interest rate applicable to the Contract shall be <15>.  Purchaser will make Installment Payments each consisting of 

principal and interest as set forth below for a Contract Term of <16>.  Installment Payments are due as set forth below.  [[Installment 

Payments may be prepaid in whole on each Payment Date.  The first Payment Date on which Installment Payments may be 

prepaid is <17>]].  The Taxable Rate is _____%. 

Payment Payment   Total   Principal   Interest Prepayment 

Number  Date  Payment Component Component Price* 

* After payment of the Installment Payment due on such date. 

 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 

Purchaser 

By:     

       Name:  Crystal Betts 

Title:  Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

     

Page 67 of 134



Page 15 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 2 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

OPUS BANK 

131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

Fullerton, CA  92832 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting officer of Purchaser identified below and, with 

respect to the above referenced Equipment Schedule and Contract, that: 

1.  The Equipment Group subject to the Equipment Schedule and the Contract has been delivered and installed in its entirety 

in accordance with the Specifications, is in good working order and is fully operational and has been fully accepted by Purchaser on or 

before the date hereof. 

2.  Attached hereto are true and correct copies of the manufacturers’ and dealers’ invoices for the Equipment Group. 

3.  Purchaser has appropriated and/or taken other lawful actions necessary to provide moneys sufficient to pay all Installment 

Payments required to be paid under the Contract during the current budget year of Purchaser.  Such moneys will be applied in 

payment of all such Installment Payments due and payable during such current budget year.  

4.  No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute, an Event of Default (as 

defined in the Contract) exists at the date hereof. 

Dated:     

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 

Purchaser 

By:   

Crystal Betts 

Chief Financial Officer 

Date:   

Page 68 of 134



Page 16 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 Exhibit 3 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

PURCHASER’S GENERAL AND TAX CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, being the duly elected, qualified and acting <20> of Purchaser, do hereby certify, as of Lease Date for the 

Lease represented by the Equipment Schedule referred to below (the “Lease Date”), as follows: 

1. Purchaser did, at a meeting of the governing body of the Purchaser held <21> by resolution or ordinance duly 

enacted, in accordance with all requirements of law, approve and authorize the execution and delivery of Equipment Schedule No. 

<10> (the “Equipment Schedule”) to the Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Master 

Agreement”), by either the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer of Purchaser (the “Authorized Representative”).   

2. The name and title of the Authorized Representative is set forth below, and the signature set forth below is the true and 

authentic signature of the Authorized Representative. 

NAME    TITLE  SIGNATURE 

Harry Weis  Chief Executive Officer    

Crystal Betts  Chief Financial Officer    

3. The meeting(s) of the governing body of the Purchaser at which the Master Agreement and the Equipment Schedule 

were approved and authorized to be executed was duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by the requisite quorum of 

the members thereof, and the enactment approving the Master Agreement and the Equipment Schedule and authorizing the execution 

thereof has not been altered or rescinded.  All meetings of the governing body of Purchaser relating to the authorization and delivery 

of Master Agreement and the Equipment Schedule have been: (a) held within the geographic boundaries of the Purchaser; (b) open to 

the public, allowing all people to attend; (c) conducted in accordance with internal procedures of the governing body and all 

applicable open meeting laws; and (d) conducted in accordance with the charter of the Purchaser, if any, and the laws of the State. 

4. No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute, an 

Event of Default (as such term is defined in the Master Agreement) exists at the date hereof with respect to the Contract reflected by 

the Equipment Schedule (the “Contract”) or any other Contract under the Master Agreement. 

5. The acquisition of all of the Equipment Group under the Contract has been duly authorized by the governing body of 

Purchaser.  

6. Purchaser has, in accordance with the requirements of law, fully budgeted and appropriated sufficient funds for the 

current budget year to make the Installment Payments scheduled to come due during the current budget year under the Contract and to 

meet its other obligations for the current budget year and such funds have not been expended for other purposes. 

7. As of the date hereof, no litigation is pending, (or, to my knowledge, threatened) against Purchaser in any court (a) 

seeking to restrain or enjoin the delivery of the Master Agreement or the Equipment Schedule or of other agreements similar to the 

Master Agreement; (b) questioning the authority of Purchaser to execute the Master Agreement or the Equipment Schedule, or the 

validity of the Master Agreement or the Equipment Schedule, or the payment of principal of or interest on, the Contract; (c) 

questioning the constitutionality of any statute, or the validity of any proceedings, authorizing the execution of the Master Agreement 

and the Equipment Schedule; or (d) affecting the provisions made for the payment of or security for the Master Agreement and the 

Equipment Schedule. 

8. OPTION 1:  Purchaser has designated the Contract as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” as defined in Section 

265(b)(3)(B) of the Code.  Purchaser reasonably anticipates issuing tax-exempt obligations (excluding private activity bonds other 

than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds and including all tax-exempt obligations of subordinate entities of the Purchaser) during the calendar 

year in which the Contract Date of the Contract, in an amount not exceeding $10,000,000. 

8. OPTION 2:  Purchaser has not designated the Contract as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” as defined in Section 

265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. 

9. OPTION 1:  (a) Purchaser is a governmental unit under the law of the State with general taxing powers, (b) the 

Contract is not a private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of the Code, (c) 95% or more of the net proceeds of the Contract will 

be used for local government activities of Purchaser, and (d) the aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations (other than 

private activity bonds) issued by Purchaser (and all subordinate entities thereof) during the calendar year in which the Contract Date of 

the Contract falls is not reasonably expected to exceed $5,000,000 (plus any additional amounts, not to exceed $10,000,000 which are 

for the construction, reconstruction or rehabilitation of public school facilities).  

9. OPTION 2:  Pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.148-7(d), the gross proceeds of the Contract will be 

expended for the governmental purposes for which the Equipment Schedule was entered into, as follows:  at least 15% within six 

Page 69 of 134



Page 17 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

months after the Contract Date, at least 60% within 12 months after the Contract Date, and 100% within 18 months after the Contract 

Date.  If Purchaser is unable to comply with Section 1.148-7(d) of the Treasury Regulations, Purchaser shall compute rebatable 

arbitrage on the Contract and pay rebatable arbitrage to the United States at least once every five years, and within 60 days after 

payment of the final Installment Payment due under the Contract.] 

Capitalized terms used without definition in this Certificate have the meanings given in the Master Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this certificate as of the Lease Date. 

By:       

Name: <19> 

Title:<20>  

Page 70 of 134



Page 18 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 4 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

OPINION OF PURCHASER’S COUNSEL 

[DATE] 

OPUS BANK 

131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

Fullerton, CA  92832 

Re: Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Agreement”) by and between OPUS BANK 

(“Seller”) and Tahoe Forest Hospital District (“Purchaser”) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as counsel to Purchaser with respect to the above-referenced Agreement and related matters, and in this 

capacity have reviewed a duplicate original or certified copy of the Agreement and Equipment Schedule No. <10> executed pursuant 

thereto (the “Equipment Schedule”) [[and the Escrow Agreement between Seller, Purchaser and Opus Bank, as escrow Agent (the 

“Escrow Agreement”)]].  The Agreement and the Equipment Schedule [[and the Escrow Agreement]] are referred to herein as the 

“Financing Documents.”  The terms capitalized in this opinion but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the 

Financing Documents.  Based upon the examination of these and such other documents as we have deemed relevant, it is our opinion, 

as of the Lease Date specified in the Equipment Schedule, that: 

1. Purchaser is State of California (the “State”) or a political subdivision of the State, in each case within the meaning 

of Section 103(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is duly organized, existing and operating under the 

Constitution and laws of the State. 

2. Purchaser is authorized and has the power under applicable law to enter into the Financing Documents, and to carry 

out its obligations thereunder and the transactions contemplated thereby. 

3. The Financing Documents have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by and on behalf of Purchaser, and are 

legal, valid and binding obligations of Purchaser enforceable in accordance with their terms, except as enforcement thereof may be 

limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and by general 

equitable principles. 

4. The authorization and execution of the Financing Documents and all other proceedings of Purchaser relating to the 

transactions contemplated thereby have been performed in accordance with all applicable open meeting, public records, public bidding 

and all other laws, rules and regulations of the State.  Purchaser has obtained all consents and approvals of other governmental 

agencies or authorities which may be required for the execution, delivery and performance by Purchaser of the Financing Documents. 

5. The execution of the Financing Documents and the obligation to pay the Installment Payments coming due 

thereunder do not and will not result in the violation of any constitutional, statutory or other limitation relating to the manner, form or 

amount of indebtedness which may be incurred by Purchaser. 

6. There is no litigation, action, suit or proceeding pending or before any court, administrative agency, arbitrator or 

governmental body that challenges the organization or existence of Purchaser, the authority of Purchaser or its officers or its 

employees to enter into the Financing Documents, the proper authorization and/or execution of the Financing Documents or the 

documents contemplated thereby, the obligation of Purchaser to make Installment Payments under the Contract, or the ability of 

Purchaser otherwise to perform its obligations under the Financing Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby.  To the best 

of our knowledge, no such litigation, action, suit or proceeding is threatened. 

This opinion may be relied upon by the addressee hereof and its successors and assignees of interests in the Contract, but 

only with regard to matters specifically set forth herein. 

Very truly yours, 

[Purchaser Counsel Firm Name] 

 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       

Page 71 of 134



Page 19 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

OPTION 1 

Exhibit 5 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

INSTRUCTION TO PAY PROCEEDS 

[The undersigned, an Authorized Representative of the Purchaser hereby requests and authorizes Seller to disburse the all of the net 

proceeds of the Equipment Schedule on the Contract Date as follows:] 

 

[Restricted Account Language:  The undersigned, an Authorized Representative of the Purchaser hereby requests and authorizes Seller 

to disburse the following amount of the net proceeds of the Equipment Schedule from the Restricted Account therefore as follows:] 

 

 

 Name of Payee:  ______________________________________ 

 

 By check _______   By wire transfer _______ 

 

 If by check, Payee's address:   ______________________________________________ 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

 

 If by wire transfer, instructions as follows:  

 

  Pay to Bank Name: ______________________________________________ 

  

         Bank Address: ______________________________________________ 

 

         Bank Phone #: ______________________________________________ 

 

  For Account of:  ______________________________________________ 

 

  Account No.:  ______________________________________________ 

 

  ABA No.:   ______________________________________________ 

 

[Restricted Account Language:  If this is the last Disbursement from the Restricted Account check the box:  ____] 

 

Attached are invoices for payment of the applicable equipment.  Any reimbursement to the Purchaser, instead of payment to the 

vendor directly, shall require evidence of payment of such invoice by Purchaser. 

 

 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

Crystal Betts 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

Dated:      

Page 72 of 134



Page 20 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

OPTION 2 

 

Exhibit 5 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

OPUS BANK 
   

ESCROW AGREEMENT 
  

This ESCROW AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of the date set forth on Schedule 1 attached hereto, by and among OPUS 

BANK, a California commercial bank (“Seller”), Tahoe Forest Hospital District, which is a political subdivision or public body politic and 

corporate of the State of California (“Purchaser”), and OPUS BANK, a California commercial bank, as Escrow Agent (“Escrow Agent”). 

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS AND RECITALS 

Section 1.1.  Definitions.  The terms defined in this Section 1.1 shall, for all purposes of this Escrow Agreement, have the 

meanings specified below. 

“Acquisition Costs” means, with respect to the Equipment, the contract price paid or to be paid to the person entitled to such 

payment upon acquisition or delivery of any portion of the Equipment in accordance with the purchase order or contract therefore.  

Acquisition Costs may include the administrative, engineering, legal, financial and other costs incurred by Purchaser in connection 

with the acquisition, delivery and financing of the Equipment, if approved by Seller. 

“Contract” means the Master Agreement, together with the Equipment Schedule, and any duly authorized and executed 

amendment or supplement thereto. 

 “Ending Date” means <22>. 

“Equipment” means the personal property described in the Equipment Schedule to be acquired from the moneys held in the 

Equipment Acquisition Fund. 

“Equipment Acquisition Fund” means the account by that name established and held by Escrow Agent pursuant to Article 

II of this Escrow Agreement. 

“Equipment Schedule” means Equipment Schedule No. <10> by and between Purchaser and Seller, and any duly 

authorized and executed amendment or supplement thereto. 

“Escrow Agent Fee” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1 and the amount of such Escrow Agent Fee is shown on 

Schedule I. 

“Escrow Agreement” means this Escrow Agreement and any duly authorized and executed amendment or supplement 

hereto. 

“Initial Deposit Amount” means the amount of <11>. 

“Master Agreement” means the Master Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2018, by and between 

Purchaser and Seller, and any duly authorized and executed amendment or supplement thereto. 

“Payment Request Form” means the document substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A to be executed by 

Purchaser and Seller and submitted to Escrow Agent to authorize payment of Acquisition Costs. 

“Qualified Investments” means the _____________________, a Opus Deposit Account for escrow customers of OPUS 

BANK. By signing this Escrow Agreement, Purchaser acknowledges that such Qualified Investment is a permitted investment under 

any state, county or municipal law applicable to the investment of Purchaser’s funds.  

ARTICLE II. APPOINTMENT OF ESCROW AGENT; AUTHORITY 

Section 2.1.  Appointment of Escrow Agent.  Seller and Purchaser hereby appoint Escrow Agent to receive, hold, invest 

and disburse the moneys to be paid to Escrow Agent pursuant to this Escrow Agreement and to perform certain other functions, all as 

hereinafter provided.  By executing and delivering this Escrow Agreement, Escrow Agent accepts the duties and obligations of 

Escrow Agent hereunder.  Escrow Agent undertakes to perform only such duties as are expressly set forth herein, which duties shall 

be deemed purely ministerial in nature, and no additional duties or obligations shall be implied hereunder.  Escrow Agent shall in no 

event be deemed to be a fiduciary to Seller or Purchaser  or to any other person or entity under this Escrow Agreement.  The 

Page 73 of 134



Page 21 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

permissive rights of  Escrow Agent to do things enumerated in this Escrow Agreement shall not be construed as duties.  In performing 

its duties under this Escrow Agreement, or upon the claimed failure to perform any of its duties hereunder, Escrow Agent shall not be 

liable to anyone for any damages, losses or expenses which may be incurred as a result of Escrow Agent so acting or failing to so act; 

provided, however, Escrow Agent shall not be relieved from liability for damages, losses or expenses which have been finally 

adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction to have directly resulted from Escrow Agent’s gross negligence or willful misconduct 

under this Escrow Agreement.  In no event shall  Escrow Agent be liable for incidental, indirect, special, consequential or punitive 

damages of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, lost profits), even if  Escrow Agent has been advised of the likelihood 

of such loss or damage and regardless of the form of action.  Escrow Agent shall have no liability with respect to the transfer or 

distribution of any funds effected by Escrow Agent pursuant to wiring or transfer instructions provided to Escrow Agent in accordance 

with the provisions of this Escrow Agreement.  No provision of this Escrow Agreement shall require Escrow Agent to risk or advance 

its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability or potential financial liability in the performance of its duties or the exercise of 

its rights under this Escrow Agreement. Escrow Agent shall in no event incur any liability with respect to (i) any action taken or 

omitted to be taken in good faith upon advice of legal counsel, which may be counsel to any party hereto, given with respect to any 

question relating to the duties and responsibilities of Escrow Agent hereunder or (ii) any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance 

upon any instrument delivered to Escrow Agent and believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper 

party or parties. Escrow Agent shall not be bound in any way by any agreement or contract between Seller and Purchaser, including 

the Contract and the Master Agreement, whether or not Escrow Agent has knowledge of any such agreement or contract. 

Section 2.2.  Authority.  Each of the parties has authority to enter into this Escrow Agreement, and has taken all actions 

necessary to authorize the execution of this Escrow Agreement by the representatives whose signatures are affixed hereto. 

ARTICLE III. EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND 

Section 3.1.  Equipment Acquisition Fund.  Escrow Agent shall establish a special escrow account designated as the 

“Tahoe Forest Hospital District Equipment Acquisition Fund” (the “Equipment Acquisition Fund”), shall keep such Equipment 

Acquisition Fund separate and apart from all other funds and moneys held by it and shall administer such Equipment Acquisition Fund 

as provided in this Escrow Agreement. 

Section 3.2.  Deposit.  Upon execution of the Contract and delivery to Seller by Purchaser of all documents required to be 

delivered thereunder, Seller shall deposit or cause to be deposited with Escrow Agent an amount equal to the Initial Deposit Amount. 

Escrow Agent shall credit such amount to the Equipment Acquisition Fund. The Initial Deposit Amount is to be sent by Seller to 

Escrow Agent by wire transfer to:  Opus Bank, ABA# __________, Account# __________, Account Name:  Escrow Services, 

Beneficiary Tahoe Forest Hospital District, Attention: ________________. 

Section 3.3.  Disbursements.  Escrow Agent shall use the moneys in the Equipment Acquisition Fund from time to time to 

pay the Acquisition Cost of each item of Equipment, within a reasonable time of receipt with respect thereto of a Payment Request 

Form executed by Seller and Purchaser.  Upon receipt of a Payment Request Form executed by Seller and Purchaser, an amount equal 

to the Acquisition Cost as shown therein shall be paid directly by Escrow Agent to the person or entity entitled to payment as specified 

therein.  Although the Payment Request Form may have schedules, invoices and other supporting documents attached to it, Seller will 

send to Escrow Agent only the page or pages showing the signatures of Seller and Purchaser, the Acquisition Cost and related 

payment information, without such schedules, invoices or other supporting documentation.  Escrow Agent may act and rely upon the 

signed Payment Request Form without the need to review or verify any such schedules, invoices or other supporting documentation. 

Section 3.4.  Transfers Upon Completion. Unless all of the funds deposited by Seller in the Equipment Acquisition Fund 

have been previously disbursed pursuant to Section 3.3 or paid to Seller pursuant to Section 3.5 or deducted and paid to Escrow Agent 

pursuant to Section 6.1 or 6.2, on the Ending Date, Escrow Agent shall pay upon written direction from Seller all remaining moneys in 

the Equipment Acquisition Fund to Seller or its assignee for application as a prepayment of the unpaid Installment Payments under the 

related Contract; provided, however, that prior to paying such amounts to Seller, Escrow Agent shall first deduct from interest 

earnings held in the Equipment Acquisition Fund all amounts owed to Escrow Agent hereunder as provided in Section 6.1 and 6.2.  

Seller and Purchaser agree that any amounts  received by Seller  pursuant to this Section 3.4 shall be subject to a prepayment fee equal 

to two percent (2%) of such amount.  Seller shall apply amounts received under this Section 3.4 first to unpaid fees (including the 

prepayment fee), late charges and collection costs, if any, which have accrued or been incurred under the Master Agreement, then to 

overdue Installment Payments on the Contract and then proportionately to the principal component of each Installment Payment 

thereafter due under the Contract.  Seller shall provide Purchaser with a revised Payment Schedule which shall reflect the revised 

principal balance and reduced Installment Payments due under the Contract.  Capitalized terms used in this Section 3.4, but not 

defined herein, shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Contract.  Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility to the 

appropriate application by Purchaser or Seller of any moneys distributed by Escrow Agent under this Section 3.4. 

Section 3.5.  Liquidation.  Upon receipt of written notice from Seller stating that an Event of Default has occurred, Escrow 

Agent shall, without notice to or consent by Purchaser, liquidate all investments held in the Equipment Acquisition Fund and transfer 

the proceeds thereof and all other moneys held in the Equipment Acquisition Fund to Seller;  provided, however, that prior to 

transferring such amounts to Seller, Escrow Agent shall first deduct from interest earnings held in the Equipment Acquisition Fund all 

amounts owed to Escrow Agent hereunder as provided in Section 6.1 and 6.2. Escrow Agent shall have no liability to Purchaser or any 

other person or entity in connection with, and shall be fully protected in, liquidating the investments in the Equipment Acquisition 

Page 74 of 134



Page 22 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Fund and transferring the proceeds thereof and all other moneys held in the Equipment Acquisition Fund to Seller pursuant to such 

written notice, without notice to or consent of Purchaser. 

Section 3.6. Responsible Party.  Purchaser shall be responsible for the initiation of the disbursement process pursuant to 

Section 3.3 hereof.  Neither Escrow Agent nor Seller shall be responsible for any additional monies assessed to Purchaser resulting 

from disbursements made from the Equipment Acquisition Fund. 

ARTICLE IV.  ESCROW; INVESTMENT 

Section 4.1.  Escrow; Disposition or Distribution of Funds Upon Instructions from Seller.  The moneys and investments 

held by Escrow Agent under this Escrow Agreement shall be  held in escrow by Escrow Agent for the benefit of Seller and Purchaser 

in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Escrow Agreement, and such moneys, together with any income or interest earned, 

shall be  disbursed by Escrow Agent only as provided in this Escrow Agreement, and shall not be subject to levy or attachment or lien 

by or for the benefit of any creditor of either Seller or Purchaser (other than Seller’s security interest granted hereunder).  Purchaser 

hereby grants to Seller a security interest in the Equipment Acquisition Fund, all deposit accounts and securities accounts in which the 

Equipment Acquisition Fund is invested or deposited, and all proceeds thereof.  Escrow Agent shall have no duty or obligation with 

respect to the creation, perfection or continuation of  such security interest, it being understood and agreed that the duties of  Escrow 

Agent with respect to any property held pursuant to this Escrow Agreement are limited and confined exclusively to the duties and 

responsibilities expressly set forth herein. Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility at any time to file any financing statement under 

the Uniform Commercial Code of any jurisdiction with respect to the Equipment Acquisition Fund or any part thereof.  Seller shall be 

entitled at any time to deliver written instructions to Escrow Agent directing the disposition or distribution of all or any part of the 

funds or proceeds of investments in the Equipment Acquisition Fund without notice to or the consent of Purchaser, and Escrow Agent  

shall promptly comply with such written instructions of  Seller. Escrow Agent shall have no liability to Purchaser or any other person 

or entity in connection with, and shall be fully protected in, disposing or distributing the funds and proceeds of investments in the 

Equipment Acquisition Fund pursuant to such written instructions of Seller.  

Section 4.2.  Investment.  Moneys held by Escrow Agent hereunder shall be invested and reinvested by Escrow Agent only 

in Qualified Investments.  Such investments shall be registered in the name of Escrow Agent and held by Escrow Agent for the benefit 

of Seller and Purchaser.  Escrow Agent may purchase or sell to itself or any affiliate, as principal or agent, investments authorized by 

this Article IV.  Any income received on such investments shall be credited to the Equipment Acquisition Fund and any loss on such 

investments shall be charged to the Equipment Acquisition Fund.  Escrow Agent shall not be responsible or liable for any loss suffered 

in connection with any investment of moneys made by it in accordance with this Article IV. 

Section 4.3.  Disposition of Investments.  Escrow Agent shall, without further direction from Seller or Purchaser, sell such 

investments as and when required to make any payment from the Equipment Acquisition Fund. 

Section 4.4.  Accounting.  Escrow Agent shall keep complete and accurate records of all moneys received and disbursed 

under this Escrow Agreement which shall be available for inspection by Seller or Purchaser, or the agent of either of them, at any time 

during regular business hours upon prior written request. Escrow Agent shall furnish to Seller and Purchaser no less than quarterly an 

accounting of all investments and interest and income therefrom. 

Section 4.5.  Termination.  This Escrow Agreement shall terminate upon disbursement by Escrow Agent of all moneys held 

by it hereunder.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Escrow Agreement shall not be considered to be terminated until all fees, costs 

and expenses of Escrow Agent have been paid in full.  Upon termination, Escrow Agent shall be discharged from all duties and 

responsibilities under this Escrow Agreement. 

ARTICLE V. ESCROW AGENT’S AUTHORITY; INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 5.1.  Validity.  Escrow Agent may act upon any writing or instrument or signature which it believes to be genuine, 

may assume the validity and accuracy of any statement or assertion contained in such a writing or instrument, and may assume that 

any person purporting to give any writing, notice, advice or instructions in connection with the provisions hereof has been duly 

authorized to do so, and Escrow Agent shall be under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry as to any of the foregoing.  Escrow 

Agent shall not be liable in any manner for the sufficiency or correctness as to form, manner and execution, or validity of any 

instrument deposited with it, nor as to the identity, authority or right of any person executing the same. Escrow Agent shall be entitled 

to rely upon any statement, certificate, document or instrument presented to it by or on behalf of Purchaser or Seller by any of their 

respective authorized signors  shown on  their respective Certificates of Incumbency provided pursuant to Section 8.12. 

Section 5.2.  Use of Counsel and Agents.  Escrow Agent may execute any of  its powers   and perform  any of its duties  

hereunder by or through attorneys, agents, or receivers.  Escrow Agent shall be entitled to advice of legal counsel concerning all 

matters arising under this Escrow Agreement and shall be paid or reimbursed by Purchaser for the reasonable fees and expenses of 

such counsel, as provided in Section 6.1.  Escrow Agent shall have no liability and shall be fully protected with respect to any action 

taken or omitted pursuant to the advice of such legal counsel. Escrow Agent shall not be answerable for the default or misconduct of 

any such attorney, agent, or receiver selected by it with reasonable care. 

Section 5.3.  Disagreements; Interpleader.  .As an additional consideration for and as an inducement for Escrow Agent to act 

hereunder, it is understood and agreed that, in the event of any disagreement between the parties to this Escrow Agreement or among 

Page 75 of 134



Page 23 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

them or any other persons resulting in adverse claims and demands being made in connection with or for any money or other property 

involved in or affected by this Escrow Agreement, or in the event that  Escrow Agent in good faith is in doubt as to what action it 

should take hereunder,  Escrow Agent may, at its option, refuse to comply with any claims or demands on it, or refuse to take any 

other action hereunder, so long as such disagreement continues or such doubt exists, and in any such event,  Escrow Agent shall not be 

or become liable in any way or to any person or entity for its failure or refusal to act, and  Escrow Agent shall be entitled to continue  

to refrain from acting until (i) the rights of  all  interested  persons and entities shall have been fully and finally adjudicated by a court 

of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) all differences shall have been adjudged and all doubt resolved by agreement among all  interested  

persons and entities, and  Escrow Agent shall have been notified thereof in writing signed by all such  persons and entities.  In the 

event of any disagreement or doubt, as described above, Escrow Agent shall have the right, in addition to the rights described above 

and at the option of Escrow Agent, to tender into the registry or custody of any court having jurisdiction, all money and property 

comprising the Equipment Acquisition Fund or to take such other legal action as may be appropriate or necessary, in the sole 

discretion of the Escrow Agent.  Upon such tender, the parties hereto agree that Escrow Agent shall be discharged from all further 

duties and responsibilities under this Escrow Agreement; provided, however, that the filing of any such legal proceedings shall not 

deprive Escrow Agent of its compensation hereunder earned prior to such filing and discharge of Escrow Agent of its duties and 

responsibilities hereunder; and further provided, however, that the tender of such money and property shall not terminate Seller’s 

security interest therein. The rights of Escrow Agent under this Section are cumulative of all other rights which it may have by law or 

otherwise. 

Purchaser agrees that, whether under this Section 5.3 or any other provisions of this Escrow Agreement, in the event any 

controversy arises under or in connection with this Escrow Agreement or the Equipment Acquisition Fund or in the event that Escrow 

Agent is made a party to or intervenes in any litigation pertaining to this Escrow Agreement or the Equipment Acquisition Fund, to 

pay to Escrow Agent reasonable additional compensation for its extraordinary services and to reimburse Escrow Agent for all costs 

and expenses associated with such controversy or litigation, including reasonable attorney’s fees. The provisions of this Section 5.3 

shall survive the termination of this Escrow Agreement and the resignation of Escrow Agent.  

Section 5.4.  Indemnification.  Escrow Agent shall have no obligation to take any legal action in connection with this Escrow 

Agreement or towards its enforcement, or to appear in, prosecute or defend any action or legal proceeding which would or might 

involve it in any cost, expense, loss or liability unless security and indemnity, as provided in this Section 5.5, shall be furnished.  To 

the extent permitted by applicable law, Purchaser agrees to indemnify Escrow Agent and it officers, directors, employees and agents and 

save Escrow Agent and its officers, directors, employees and agents harmless from and against any and all Claims (as hereinafter 

defined) and Losses (as hereinafter defined) which may be incurred by Escrow Agent or any of such officers, directors, employees or 

agents as a result of Claims asserted against Escrow Agent or any of such officers, directors, employees or agents as a result of or in 

connection with Escrow Agent’s capacity as such under this Escrow Agreement by any person or entity.  For the purposes hereof, the 

term “Claims” shall mean all claims, lawsuits, causes of action or other legal actions and proceedings of whatever nature brought 

against (whether by way of direct action, counterclaim, cross action or impleader) Escrow Agent or any such officer, director, 

employee or agent, even if groundless, false or fraudulent, so long as the claim, lawsuit, cause of action or other legal action or 

proceeding is alleged or determined, directly or indirectly, to arise out of, result from, relate to or be based upon, in whole or in part:  

(a) the acts or omissions of Seller or Purchaser, (b) the appointment of Escrow Agent as escrow agent under this Escrow Agreement, 

or (c) the performance or failure of performance by Escrow Agent of its powers and duties under this Escrow Agreement; and the term 

“Losses” shall mean losses, costs, damages, expenses, judgments and liabilities of whatever nature (including but not limited to 

attorneys’, accountants’ and other professionals’ fees, litigation and court costs and expenses and amounts paid in settlement), directly 

or indirectly resulting from, arising out of or relating to one or more Claims.  Upon the written request of Escrow Agent or any such 

officer, director, employee or agent (each referred to hereinafter as an “Indemnified Party”), and to the extent permitted by law, 

Purchaser agrees to assume the investigation and defense of any Claim, including the employment of counsel acceptable to the 

applicable Indemnified Party and the payment of all expenses related thereto and, notwithstanding any such assumption, the 

Indemnified Party shall have the right, and Purchaser agrees to pay the cost and expense thereof, to employ separate counsel with 

respect to any such Claim and participate in the investigation and defense thereof in the event that such Indemnified Party shall have 

been advised by counsel that there may be one or more legal defenses available to such Indemnified Party which are different from or 

additional to those available to either Lessor or Purchaser.  Purchaser hereby agrees that the indemnifications and protections afforded 

Escrow Agent in this Section 5.5 shall survive the termination of this Escrow Agreement and any resignation or removal of Escrow 

Agent. 

ARTICLE VI. COMPENSATION 

Section 6.1.  Escrow Agent Fee.  Escrow Agent  shall be paid by Purchaser the Escrow Agent Fee shown on Schedule I  for 

the ordinary services to be rendered hereunder , and will be paid and/or reimbursed by Purchaser upon request for all costs, expenses, 

disbursements and advances, such as reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs, incurred or made by Escrow Agent in connection with 

carrying out its duties hereunder, including the costs, expenses, disbursements and advances described in Sections 5.2, 5.3 and 6.2.  

The Escrow Agent Fee and such other costs, expenses, disbursements and advances shall be payable from the interest earnings from 

the Equipment Acquisition Fund; provided, however, that in the event a shortfall occurs, said shortfall shall be the responsibility of 

Purchaser and not the responsibility of Escrow Agent, Seller, or their agents or assigns.  Purchaser and Seller expressly authorize and 

direct Escrow Agent (i) to deduct (and pay to itself) the amount of the Escrow Agent Fee from the interest earnings on  the Equipment 

Acquisition Fund on the date such fund is closed immediately prior to making the final distribution of amounts held therein and (ii) to 

Page 76 of 134



Page 24 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

deduct (and pay to itself) the amount of Escrow Agent’s costs, expenses, disbursements and advances from the interest earnings on the 

Equipment Acquisition Fund as such costs, expenses, disbursements and advances are incurred by Escrow Agent. Any  such  shortfall 

shall be paid by Purchaser to Escrow Agent within 30 days following receipt by Purchaser of a written statement setting forth such 

shortfall. The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination of this Escrow Agreement and any resignation or removal of 

Escrow Agent.   

Section 6.2.  Investment Fees.  Escrow Agent shall be entitled to charge reasonable fees and commissions in connection 

with the investment by it of amounts held in the Equipment Acquisition Fund (the “Investment Fees”).  Investment Fees are more fully 

delineated and defined in any prospectus referenced in or attached to the attached Schedule I.  Other Investment Fees may apply for 

self-directed investment choices or for extraordinary investments outside the Qualified Investment defined herein.  Seller and 

Purchaser hereby authorize and direct Escrow Agent to periodically deduct the Investment Fees from investment earnings on the 

Equipment Acquisition Fund. 

Section 6.3.  Security for Fees and Expenses.  As security for all fees and expenses of Escrow Agent hereunder and any and 

all losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses incurred by Escrow Agent in connection with its acceptance of appointment 

hereunder or with the performance of its obligations under this Escrow Agreement and to secure the obligation of Purchaser to 

indemnify Escrow Agent as set forth in Section 5.5, Escrow Agent is hereby granted by Purchaser and Seller a security interest in and 

a lien upon the Equipment Acquisition Fund, all deposit accounts and securities accounts in which the Equipment Acquisition Fund is 

invested or deposited, and all proceeds thereof, which security interest and lien shall be prior to all other security interests, liens or 

claims against the Equipment Acquisition Fund or any part thereof.  

ARTICLE VII. CHANGE OF ESCROW AGENT 

Section 7.1.  Removal of Escrow Agent.  Seller and Purchaser, by written agreement, may by written request, at any time 

and for any reason, remove Escrow Agent and any successor thereto, and shall thereupon appoint a successor or successors thereto, 

but any such successor shall have capital (exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000), 

and be subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority.  If such bank or trust company publishes a report of 

condition at least annually, pursuant to statute or the requirements of any federal or state supervising or examining authority, then for 

the purposes of this Section 7.1, the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company may be conclusively established in its 

most recent report of condition so published. 

Section 7.2.  Resignation of Escrow Agent.  Escrow Agent may resign at any time from its obligations under this Escrow 

Agreement by providing written notice to the parties hereto.  Such resignation shall be effective on the date set forth in such written 

notice which shall be no earlier than 30 days after such written notice has been given, unless an earlier resignation date and the 

appointment of a successor Escrow Agent shall have been approved by Seller and Purchaser.  In the event no successor escrow agent has 

been appointed on or prior to the date such resignation is to become effective, Escrow Agent shall be entitled to tender into the 

custody of a court of competent jurisdiction all assets then held by it hereunder and shall thereupon be relieved of all further duties and 

obligations under this Escrow Agreement.  Escrow Agent shall have no responsibility for the appointment of a successor escrow agent 

hereunder. 

Section 7.3.  Merger or Consolidation.  Any entity into which Escrow Agent may be merged or converted, or with which it 

may be consolidated, or any entity resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party, or any company 

to which Escrow Agent may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its  escrow services business (provided that such company shall 

be eligible under Section 7.1) shall be the successor to Escrow Agent without any execution or filing or further act. 

ARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS. 

Section 8.1.  Notice.  All written notices to be given under this Escrow Agreement shall be given by mail or by overnight 

courier to the party entitled thereto at its contact information specified on Schedule I, or at such contact information as the party may 

provide to the other parties hereto in writing from time to time.  Any such notice shall be deemed to have been received 72 hours after 

deposit in the United States mail in registered or certified form, with postage fully prepaid, 24 hours after deposit with a courier, 

charges prepaid, or if given by other means, when delivered at the address specified in Schedule I; provided, however, that 

notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein provided, Escrow Agent shall not be deemed to have received any notice hereunder 

prior to Escrow Agent’s actual receipt thereof.  Any notice given by any party shall be given to both other parties. 

Section 8.2.  Assignment.  Except as expressly herein provided to the contrary, the rights and duties of each of the parties 

under this Escrow Agreement shall not be assignable to any person or entity without the written consent of all of the other parties.  

Notwithstanding the above, Seller may freely assign all or any part of its interest in this Escrow Agreement and the Equipment 

Acquisition Fund in connection with an assignment by Seller of its rights under the Contract; provided, however, that Seller shall give 

Escrow Agent prior written notice of any such assignment, and, if requested by Escrow Agent, the parties hereto and the proposed 

assignee shall execute and deliver an amendment to this Escrow Agreement in form and substance satisfactory to Escrow Agent prior 

to any such assignment becoming effective.  

Section 8.3.  Binding Effect.  This Escrow Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 

respective successors and assigns. 

Page 77 of 134



Page 25 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Section 8.4.  Severability.  In the event any provision of this Escrow Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

Section 8.5.  Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Escrow Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 

respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous writings, understandings, agreements, solicitation 

documents and representations, express or implied.  By execution of this Escrow Agreement, Escrow Agent shall not be deemed or 

considered to be a party to any other document, including the Master Agreement and the Contract.  This Escrow Agreement may be 

amended, supplemented or modified only by written documents duly authorized, executed and delivered by each of the parties hereto. 

Section 8.6.  Captions.  The captions or headings in this Escrow Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, 

limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions, Articles, Sections or clauses hereof. 

Section 8.7.  Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments.  Seller and Purchaser agree that they will, from time to 

time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such 

further instruments as may be necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance of the parties under this 

Escrow Agreement, and for better assuring and confirming the rights and benefits provided herein. 

Section 8.8.  Governing Law.  This Escrow Agreement shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of 

California. 

Section 8.9.  Execution in Counterparts.  This Escrow Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, 

each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same Escrow Agreement. 

Section 8.10.  Waiver of Jury Trial.  TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, SELLER, PURCHASER 

AND ESCROW AGENT HEREBY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING WITH 

RESPECT TO, IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS ESCROW AGREEMENT. 

Section 8.11.  No Tax Reporting.  Escrow Agent will not be responsible for tax reporting of any income on the Equipment 

Acquisition Fund. 

Section 8.12. Authorized Signatures. Contemporaneously with the execution and delivery of this Escrow Agreement and, if 

necessary, from time to time thereafter, each of the parties to this Escrow Agreement (other than Escrow Agent) shall execute and 

deliver to  Escrow Agent a Certificate of Incumbency substantially in the form of Exhibit B  hereto (a “Certificate of Incumbency”) 

for the purpose of establishing the identity and authority of persons entitled to issue notices, instructions or directions to  Escrow 

Agent on behalf of each such party. Until such time as  Escrow Agent shall receive an amended Certificate of Incumbency replacing 

any Certificate of Incumbency theretofore delivered to  Escrow Agent,  Escrow Agent shall be fully protected in relying, without 

further inquiry, on the most recent Certificate of Incumbency furnished to  Escrow Agent. Whenever this Escrow Agreement provides 

for joint written notices, joint written instructions or other joint actions to be delivered to  Escrow Agent,  Escrow Agent shall be fully 

protected in relying, without further inquiry, on any joint written notice, instructions or action executed by persons named in such 

Certificate of Incumbency. 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 

 

Page 78 of 134



Page 26 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

                 

EXECUTION PAGE OF ESCROW AGREEMENT 

                 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Escrow Agreement as of the Date of Escrow Agreement shown on Schedule I. 

OPUS BANK,      OPUS BANK, 

Escrow Agent      Seller 

 

 

 

By:        By:      

Name:        Name:  

Title:        Title:    

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 
Purchaser 

By:       

Crystal Betts 

[SEAL]       Chief Financial Officer 

        

Schedule I  Escrow Agreement Information 

Exhibit A Payment Request Form 

Exhibit B Incumbency Certificate 

Page 79 of 134



Page 27 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

SCHEDULE I 

 

Contract Number:   <27> 

 

Equipment Schedule:   <10> 

 

Date of Escrow Agreement:     

 

Purchaser’s State:  California 

 

Initial Deposit Amount:   <11> 

 

Date of Master Agreement:  October 1, 2018 

 

Beneficiary Name for Fund:  Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

 

Ending Date:    <22> 

 

Fees:     $250.00 (Escrow Agent) 

     Investment Fees, if any, are more fully defined on the attached prospectus, if any 

     Extension and other fees may be applicable if not disbursed by the Ending Date. 

 

Purchaser’s Name:   Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

Purchaser’s Mailing Address:  10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA  96161 

 

Purchaser’s Telephone:   (530) 582-6656 

Purchaser’s Facsimile:   (530) 582-3567 

Purchaser’s Taxpayer Identification Number: <23> 

 

 

Escrow Agent’s Address:   Opus Bank 

______________________ 

__________, CA  ______ 

     Attention:  _____________ 

Escrow Agent’s Telephone:  (___) ___-____ 

Escrow Agent’s Facsimile:  (___) ___-____ 

 

Seller’s Address:    OPUS BANK 

     131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

     Fullerton, CA  92832 

     Attention:  Escrow Disbursement Coordinator 

Seller’s Telephone:   (410) 307-6749  

Seller’s Facsimile:   (410) 307-6665 

Seller’s Taxpayer Identification Number: <24> 

 

 

Page 80 of 134



Page 28 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

EXHIBIT A 

PAYMENT REQUEST FORM NO. ________ 

OPUS BANK, as Escrow Agent under an Escrow Agreement dated as of      (the “Escrow Agreement”) 

by and among Escrow Agent, OPUS BANK, as Seller, and Tahoe Forest Hospital District, as Purchaser, is hereby requested to pay, from 

the Equipment Acquisition Fund, to the person or entity designated below as payee, that amount set forth opposite each such name, in 

payment of the Acquisition Costs of the Equipment designated opposite such payee’s name and described on the attached page(s).  The 

terms capitalized in this Payment Request Form but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Escrow 

Agreement. 

PAYEE PAYEE'S ADDRESS AMOUNT INVOICE # EQUIPMENT 

          

          

          
 

Purchaser hereby certifies that: 

1. Attached hereto are true and correct copies of manufacturer’s and/or dealer’s invoices relating to the order, delivery and 

acceptance of the Equipment described in this Payment Request Form. 

2. Unless this Payment Request Form relates to partial payment of a Vendor, as defined in the Contract, in connection 

with a purchase order approved by Seller, (a) the above-described Equipment has been acquired, made, delivered, installed and accepted 

as of the date hereof, (b) Purchaser has conducted such inspection and/or testing of such Equipment as it deems necessary and 

appropriate, and (c) Purchaser has accepted the above-described Equipment for all purposes under the Contract. 

3. The representations and warranties contained in the Contract are true and correct as of the date hereof. 

4. No Event of Default, as such term is defined in the Contract, or event which with the giving of notice or passage of 

time or both would constitute an Event of Default, has occurred. 

Dated:     . 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District,      

Purchaser      

By:       

Crystal Betts      

Chief Financial Officer      

Date:         

APPROVED: 

OPUS BANK, Seller 

By:       

Name:      

Title:       

Date:         

Page 81 of 134



Page 29 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Certificate of Incumbency 

(List of Authorized Representatives) 

 

 

Re:  Escrow Agreement among Tahoe Forest Hospital District, as purchaser, Opus Bank, as seller, and Opus Bank, as escrow agent 

(the “Escrow Agreement)  

Client Name: Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

 

As a duly authorized officer of the above referenced entity, I hereby certify that the each person listed below is an authorized signor 

for such entity, and that the title and signature appearing beside each name is true and correct. 

 

Name Title Signature Contact 

Number 

 

Crystal Betts    Chief Financial Officer       

 (530) 582-6656 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this certificate has been executed by the duly authorized officer whose name and title are set forth below: 

 

 

 

By:__________________________ 

Title: ________________________ 

Page 82 of 134



Page 30 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 6 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

TO:   <25> 

 

Gentlemen: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District has entered into a Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

with OPUS BANK  In accordance with the Agreement, Purchaser is instructing the insurance agent named above to issue: 

a.  All Risk Physical Damage Insurance on the Equipment evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance and Long Form Loss 

Payable Clause naming OPUS BANK and/or its assigns as Loss Payee. 

The Coverage Required is $<11>. 

b.  Public Liability Insurance evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance naming OPUS BANK and/or its assigns as Additional 

Insured. 

The following minimum coverage is required: 

Liability:    $   500,000.00 per person 

Liability - Bodily Injury:   $1,000,000.00 aggregate 

Liability - Property Damage:  $1,000,000.00 property damage liability 

PROPERTY:  <26> 

LOCATION: <13> 

   

Upon issuance of the coverage outlined above, please mail a certificate of insurance to OPUS BANK, 131 West 

Commonwealth Avenue, Fullerton, CA  92832. 

Your courtesy in issuing and forwarding the requested certificate at your earliest convenience will be appreciated. 

Very truly yours, 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 

By:     

Crystal Betts 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

Date:        

 

Page 83 of 134



Page 31 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 6 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

 

OPUS BANK 

131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

Fullerton, CA  92832 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

 The undersigned is the risk manager or insurance consultant for Tahoe Forest Hospital District (the “Purchaser”), and in such 

connection the undersigned is familiar with Purchaser’s insurance and self-insurance arrangements.  In connection with Equipment 

Schedule No. <10> (the “Equipment Schedule”) to the Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the 

“Master Agreement”), between Purchaser and Opus Bank. (the “Seller”), the undersigned makes the following certifications to Seller.  

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given in the Master Agreement. 

1. Purchaser is self-insured for damage or destruction to the Equipment described in the Equipment Schedule (the 

“Equipment”).  The dollar amount limit for property damage to the Equipment under such self-insurance program is 

$_________________.  [Purchaser maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess of Purchaser’s self-insurance limits for 

property damage to the Equipment which policy has a dollar limit for property damage to the Equipment under such policy of 

$__________________.] 

2. Purchaser is self-insured for liability for injury or death of any person or damage or loss of property arising out of or 

relating to the condition or operation of the Equipment.  The dollar limit for such liability claims under the Purchaser’s self-insurance 

program is $_________________.  [Purchaser maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess of Purchaser’s self-

insurance limits for liability which policy has a dollar limit for liabilities for injury and death to persons as well as damage or loss of 

property arising out of or relating to the condition or operation of the Equipment in the amount of $_________________.] 

[3].  Purchaser maintains a self-insurance fund.  Monies in the self-insurance fund [are/are not] subject to annual 

appropriation.  The total amount maintained in the self-insurance fund to cover Purchaser’s self-insurance liabilities is 

$_________________.  [Amounts paid from Purchaser’s self-insurance fund are subject to a dollar per claim of 

$__________________.] 

[3].  The Purchaser does not maintain a self-insurance fund.  The Purchaser obtains funds to pay claims for which it has self-

insured from the following sources: _____________________________. Amounts payable for claims from such sources are limited as 

follows: _________________________________________ 

Dated:       

Very truly yours, 

 

 
  By:   

  Name:   

  Title:   

Page 84 of 134



Page 32 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 7 to Equipment Schedule No. <10> 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

 

[FORM 8038-G OR 8038-GC] 

Page 85 of 134



Page 33 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

[PAGE TO BE REPLACED BY UCC FINANCING STATEMENT] 

Page 86 of 134



Page 34 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

SCHEDULE A TO FINANCING STATEMENT OF 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, AS DEBTOR, AND 

OPUS BANK, AS SECURED PARTY 

Continuation of Collateral Description 

The financing statement to which this Schedule A is attached covers the types of property described on the face of such 

financing statement and all of the Debtor's right, title and interest in and to (collectively, the “Collateral”): 

(a)  the equipment described in Equipment Schedule No. <10> (the “Equipment Schedule”) to the Master Installment 

Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Agreement,” and together with the Equipment Schedule, the “Contract”) 

between Debtor, as Purchaser, and Secured Party, as Seller, as such Contract may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to 

time; 

(b)  to the extent not included in the foregoing, all books, ledgers and records and all computer programs, tapes, discs, punch 

cards, data processing software, transaction files, master files and related property and rights (including computer and peripheral 

equipment) necessary or helpful in enforcing, identifying or establishing any item of Collateral; and 

(c)  to the extent not included in the foregoing, all repairs, replacements, substitutions, restorations, accessions, improvements 

and modifications and all proceeds and products of any or all of the foregoing, whether existing on the date hereof or arising hereafter, 

including insurance proceeds. 

 

Page 87 of 134



Page 1 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement (Rev. 09/2018) 

 

 
EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE NO. 01 

TO MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

The following described Equipment comprises an Equipment Group which is the subject of the Master Installment Purchase 

Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Agreement”) between the undersigned Seller and Purchaser.  The Agreement is 

incorporated herein in its entirety, and Purchaser hereby reaffirms each of its representations, warranties and covenants contained in 

the Agreement.  Purchaser warrants that no Event of Default, or event which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice or both, 

would constitute an Event of Default, has occurred under the Agreement.   

1. Equipment Group.  The cost of the Equipment Group to be funded by Seller under this Contract is $8,000,000.00. 

Up to $80,000 of the proceeds of this Equipment Schedule may be used for cost of issuance related to this Equipment Schedule, 

including without limiting, cost of legal counsel for the various parties, financial advisor fees, filing fees, placement agent fees, and 

escrow fees.  The Equipment Group consists of the following Equipment which has been or shall be purchased from the Vendor(s) 

named below for the prices set forth below: 

 

Dept Description Qty  Total Cost  

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL     

  House-wide      

  Telemetry Monitors X  $ 1,200,000  

  Infusion Pumps X  $    950,000  

  Holter Monitors X  $    120,000  

6010 Intensive Care Unit      

  Critical Care Bed 1  $      20,000  

6170 Med Surg     

  Vein Finder 1  $        7,000  

6380_6530 OB     

  Slim line Workstation on Wheels 2  $        6,000  

6580 SNF     

  Laptops 2  $        4,400  

7010 Emergency Dept     

  Gurney 2  $        6,000  

7075 Women's Center     

  Ultrasound Machine 1  $        5,000  

  Non-Stress Test Machine 1  $        6,000  

7077 Pediatrics     

  Timus Vision Machine 1  $        2,891  

7079 IM Cardiology     

  EKG Machine 1  $      15,000  

  Treadmill (Quinton) 1  $      13,000  

  Freezer 1  $        1,500  

7086 Urology     

  Bladder Scanner 1  $        3,600  

7420 Surgical Services      

  Tissue Freezer 1  $        9,417  

  Fluent fluid management system 1  $      30,000  

Page 88 of 134



Page 2 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

  MyoSure Hysteroscopy Set  2  $      16,630  

  Medtronic ENT Navigation system 1  $      90,000  

  Stryker System 7 Orthopedic Power Instruments 1  $      98,500  

  Rhinoplasty tray 1  $      20,000  

  Facelift tray 1  $      20,000  

  Colonoscopes    $      78,000  

  Urology Equipment    $    200,000  

  Censis Track Instrument, Scope and Tissue Tracking    $      90,000  

  Slim line Workstation on Wheels 3   $      15,000  

  Ipads 6  $        4,200  

7427 Ambulatory Surgery     

  Portable vital signs monitors 2  $      14,000  

7450 Anesthesia      

  Terason Ultrasound Machine Curvilinear Probe 1  $        7,000  

  MRI Compatiable Anesthesia Machine 1  $      60,000  

7500 Lab     

  Blood Typing & Screening Instrument 1  $      93,000  

  Bacterial Culture CO2 Incubator 1  $        7,000  

  Blood Gases Instrument 1  $        9,000  

  Molecular Testing Platform 1  $    120,000  

  Osmometer 1  $      13,500  

  Reagent Refrigerators 1  $        5,466  

  EKG Machine 1  $      14,000  

7630 Diagnostic Imaging     

  C-arm for Orthopedic Surgeon Mobile fluoroscopy in OR 1  $      75,000  

  Radiographic X-Ray Unit Digital 1  $    250,000  

  Xcellera Upgrade Hardware/Software    $    110,000  

  Radiologist Workstation for their Home    $      11,585  

  System Administrator workstation    $        2,500  

  VRAD Integration Software    $      10,000  

  Nuance Upgrade Software    $        7,500  

  Ortho Software and data move    $      18,000  

7660 MRI     

  MRI VITAL Signs Monitor 1  $      71,500  

7672 Briner Ultrasound     

  Cart for ABI System (rubbermade) 1  $        4,500  

7720 Respiratory Therapy     

  BiPAP Core Packate 1  $        6,120  

  Cancer Center     

  Infusion Chairs 8  $        8,000  

  Monitors (vital Signs) 4  $      14,000  

  Replacement chair 2  $        5,000  

  Upgrade AV and Telemedicine equipment Hardware    $      50,000  

Page 89 of 134



Page 3 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

  Multifunction Printer    $      13,000  

  Dietary     

  Plate and Base Warmer 2  $      11,000  

  Alto-Sham 1  $        8,896  

  Fryer 1  $      14,323  

18480 IT     

  Singlewire Software    $      25,000  

  Cell Booster Hardware    $      50,000  

  Phone Servers Hardware    $      35,322  

  Network Hardware - HPE Infrastructure    $ 1,800,000  

  Imprivata Single Sign-on Software    $    220,000  

  MediWare Software Upgrade    $      30,000  

  Life Med ID Patient Verification Hardware/Software    $      60,000  

  EPIC EMR - Palliative Care Software    $        8,000  

  EPIC EMR - Beacon Software    $    500,000  

  EPIC EMR - Professional Billing Software    $ 1,000,000  

  Varian Software Upgrade    $      18,000  

  Nutanix Node Hardware    $      60,000  

  IT Infrastructure Hardware    $      50,000  

18740 Quality     

  Laptop    $        2,200  

18560 Patient Access     

  Small foot print Workstation on Wheels    $      10,000  

  Large Multifunction Printer    $      18,000  

  Wellness      

  Video monitors, repeaters and hardware    $        6,500  

  Laptop    $        2,200  

  SUBTOTAL TFH    $ 7,961,250  

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL     

7420 Surgery     

  Olympus Multidebrider Handpiece (Diego) 2  $      24,745  

  Ambu Airway videoscope and monitor 1  $        5,000  

  Knee Scorpion 1  $        3,200  

7630 Incline DI     

  Ultrasound    $    150,000  

7084 Lakeview     

  Medication Refrigerator 1  $        6,000  

28560 Patient Access     

  Large Multifunction Printer    $      18,000  

  SUBTOTAL IVCH    $    206,945  

        

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT GRAND TOTALS    $ 8,168,195  
 

Page 90 of 134



Page 4 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

2. Location of Equipment Group.  The Equipment Group is essential to the governmental functions of Purchaser.  The 

Equipment Group is or will be located (or in the case of Equipment constituting vehicles, housed) at the following address(es): 

The equipment listed under the sub heading, above, of Incline Village Community Hospital will be located at the 

following address: 

Incline Village Community Hospital 

880 Alder Avenue 

Incline Village, NV  89451 

 

Some of the IT equipment listed under the sub heading Tahoe Forest Hospital will located at the following address: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital Business Services 

10875 Pioneer Trail Rd 

Truckee, CA  96161 

 

All remaining equipment listed under the sub heading Tahoe Forest Hospital will be located at the following 

address: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue 

Truckee, CA  96161 

 

3. Contract Date.  The Contract Date for this Equipment Schedule is October 25, 2018. 

4. Interest Accrual Date.  The amounts of the interest component of Installment Payments payable under this 

Equipment Schedule have been calculated based on the assumption that the proceeds of this Equipment Schedule were disbursed on 

<14> and such payments of interest component will be payable as set forth in the Payment Schedule regardless of when the proceeds 

of this Equipment Schedule were actually disbursed. 

5. Payment Schedule.  The Payment Schedule is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 1. 

6. Acceptance Certificate.  The form of Acceptance Certificate is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 2. 

7. Purchaser’s Certificate.  The Purchaser’s General and Tax Certificate is attached to this Equipment Schedule as 

Exhibit 3. 

8. Opinion.  The opinion of Purchaser’s counsel is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 4. 

9. Proceeds.  Seller shall disburse the proceeds of this Equipment Schedule into a Restricted Account with the Seller 

and such amounts in the Restricted Account shall be disbursed in accordance with the instructions attached hereto as Exhibit 5.  Seller 

is hereby granted a security interest in the Restricted Account and in the Event of Default, Seller may apply the funds in the Restricted 

Account to payment of the amounts due under the Equipment Schedule.  Any proceeds of the Equipment Schedule remaining on 

October 25, 2020 (the “Termination Date”) in the Restricted Account shall be applied by Seller as a prepayment of the unpaid 

Installment Payments under the Equipment Schedule; provided, however, that such prepayment shall be subject to any applicable 

prepayment premium.  Seller shall provide Purchaser with a revised Payment Schedule which shall reflect the revised principal 

balance and reduced Installment Payments due under the Contract.  The Termination Date may be amended in writing by Seller and 

Purchaser, and Seller agrees not to unreasonably withhold such consent.  Minimum draw amounts, other than the final draw, shall be 

$500,000.       

10. Insurance.  Check Item A and/or Item B.   

A Purchaser’s insurance letter is attached to this Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 6.     X  

B. A letter from Purchaser’s risk manager or insurance consultant is attached as Exhibit 6.     

11. Form 8038-G or -GC.  The Form 8038-G or Form 8038-GC with respect to the Contract is attached to this 

Equipment Schedule as Exhibit 7. 

12. Cost of Issuance.  Purchaser is responsible for all costs of issuance, including, but not limited to CDIAC fees, bond 

counsel and Seller’s counsel costs.  The Seller’s counsel fees shall not exceed $5,000. 

13. Tax Opinion.  A Red Book bond counsel firm shall provide an opinion on the Contract Date that the Interest 

Component is exempt from federal income taxation. 

Page 91 of 134



Page 5 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

                

EXECUTION PAGE OF SCHEDULE NO. 01 TO MASTER INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

                

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller has caused this Equipment Schedule to be executed in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer, 

and Purchaser has caused this Equipment Schedule to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officer. 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, OPUS BANK, 

Purchaser Seller 

 

 

By:  By:  

Name:  Crystal Betts Name:        

Title:    Chief Financial Officer Title:        

 

Address:  10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA  96161 Address:  131 West Commonwealth Avenue, 

         Fullerton, CA  92832 
  

Telephone:  (530) 582-6656 Telephone:  (714) 879-8257 

Facsimile:   (530) 582-3567 Facsimile:    (714) 578-7536 

Page 92 of 134



Page 6 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 Exhibit 1 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

The annual interest rate applicable to the Contract shall be 2.82%.  So long as an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, 

the Seller shall have the right to increase the interest rate by 3.0% (300 basis points).  to the Taxable rate is 3.89% per annum.  Purchaser 

will make Installment Payments each consisting of principal and interest as set forth below for a Contract Term of five years.  Installment 

Payments are due as set forth below.  Installment Payments may be prepaid in whole on each Payment Date.   

 
Principal 

    
8,000,000  

    Payment 
Number Payment Date 

Total 
Payment 

Principal 
Component 

Interest 
Component 

Prepayment 
Price * Principal 

1 November 30, 2018 
  
143,110.51  

     
121,477.63  

          
21,632.88  

     
8,114,878.04  

    
7,878,522.37  

2 December 31, 2018 
  
143,110.51  

     
124,240.91  

          
18,869.60  

     
7,986,909.91  

    
7,754,281.46  

3 January 31, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
124,538.47  

          
18,572.04  

     
7,858,635.28  

    
7,629,742.99  

4 February 28, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
126,605.18  

          
16,505.33  

     
7,728,231.95  

    
7,503,137.81  

5 March 31, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
125,139.98  

          
17,970.53  

     
7,599,337.77  

    
7,377,997.84  

6 April 30, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
126,009.72  

          
17,100.78  

     
7,469,547.76  

    
7,251,988.11  

7 May 31, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
125,741.50  

          
17,369.01  

     
7,340,034.01  

    
7,126,246.62  

8 June 30, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
126,593.23  

          
16,517.27  

     
7,209,642.98  

    
6,999,653.38  

9 July 31, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
126,345.86  

          
16,764.65  

     
7,079,506.75  

    
6,873,307.53  

10 August 31, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
126,648.46  

          
16,462.04  

     
6,949,058.83  

    
6,746,659.06  

11 September 30, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
127,473.04  

          
15,637.46  

     
6,817,761.60  

    
6,619,186.02  

12 October 31, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
127,257.10  

          
15,853.40  

     
6,621,767.49  

    
6,491,928.91  

13 November 30, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
128,063.46  

          
15,047.05  

     
6,491,142.76  

    
6,363,865.45  

14 December 31, 2019 
  
143,110.51  

     
127,868.61  

          
15,241.89  

     
6,360,716.78  

    
6,235,996.84  

15 January 31, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
128,174.87  

          
14,935.64  

     
6,229,978.41  

    
6,107,821.97  

16 February 29, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
129,425.64  

          
13,684.87  

     
6,097,964.26  

    
5,978,396.33  

17 March 31, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
128,791.84  

          
14,318.67  

     
5,966,596.59  

    
5,849,604.50  

18 April 30, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
129,552.25  

          
13,558.26  

     
5,834,453.30  

    
5,720,052.25  

19 May 31, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
129,410.59  

          
13,699.92  

     
5,702,454.49  

    
5,590,641.66  

20 June 30, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
130,152.47  

          
12,958.04  

     
5,569,698.97  

    
5,460,489.19  

 
 

21 
 

July 31, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
130,032.26  

          
13,078.25  

     
5,437,066.07  

    
5,330,456.93  

Page 93 of 134



Page 7 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

22 August 31, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
130,343.70  

          
12,766.81  

     
5,304,115.50  

    
5,200,113.23  

23 September 30, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
131,057.64  

          
12,052.87  

     
5,170,436.70  

    
5,069,055.59  

24 October 31, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
130,969.77  

          
12,140.74  

     
4,962,776.25  

    
4,938,085.82  

25 November 30, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
131,664.97  

          
11,445.54  

     
4,830,452.95  

    
4,806,420.85  

26 December 31, 2020 
  
143,110.51  

     
131,598.80  

          
11,511.71  

     
4,698,196.16  

    
4,674,822.05  

27 January 31, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
131,913.99  

          
11,196.52  

     
4,565,622.60  

    
4,542,908.06  

28 February 28, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
133,282.89  

            
9,827.62  

     
4,431,673.30  

    
4,409,625.17  

29 March 31, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
132,549.15  

          
10,561.35  

     
4,298,461.40  

    
4,277,076.02  

30 April 30, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
133,197.06  

            
9,913.44  

     
4,164,598.35  

    
4,143,878.95  

31 May 31, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
133,185.63  

            
9,924.87  

     
4,030,746.79  

    
4,010,693.32  

32 June 30, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
133,814.49  

            
9,296.02  

     
3,896,263.23  

    
3,876,878.83  

33 July 31, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
133,825.12  

            
9,285.39  

     
3,761,768.98  

    
3,743,053.72  

34 August 31, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
134,145.64  

            
8,964.87  

     
3,626,952.62  

    
3,608,908.08  

35 September 30, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
134,745.75  

            
8,364.76  

     
3,491,533.14  

    
3,474,162.33  

36 October 31, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
134,789.65  

            
8,320.86  

     
3,339,372.68  

    
3,339,372.68  

37 November 30, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
135,370.48  

            
7,740.03  

     
3,204,002.20  

    
3,204,002.20  

38 December 31, 2021 
  
143,110.51  

     
135,436.70  

            
7,673.80  

     
3,068,565.50  

    
3,068,565.50  

39 January 31, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
135,761.08  

            
7,349.42  

     
2,932,804.41  

    
2,932,804.41  

40 February 28, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
136,766.01  

            
6,344.50  

     
2,796,038.41  

    
2,796,038.41  

41 March 31, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
136,413.80  

            
6,696.70  

     
2,659,624.60  

    
2,659,624.60  

42 April 30, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
136,946.01  

            
6,164.50  

     
2,522,678.60  

    
2,522,678.60  

43 May 31, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
137,068.52  

            
6,041.99  

     
2,385,610.08  

    
2,385,610.08  

44 June 30, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
137,581.12  

            
5,529.39  

     
2,248,028.96  

    
2,248,028.96  

45 July 31, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
137,726.32  

            
5,384.18  

     
2,110,302.64  

    
2,110,302.64  

46 August 31, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
138,056.19  

            
5,054.32  

     
1,972,246.45  

    
1,972,246.45  

47 September 30, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
138,539.22  

            
4,571.29  

     
1,833,707.23  

    
1,833,707.23  

48 October 31, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
138,718.65  

            
4,391.85  

     
1,694,988.58  

    
1,694,988.58  

49 November 30, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
139,181.85  

            
3,928.66  

     
1,555,806.73  

    
1,555,806.73  

Page 94 of 134



Page 8 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

50 December 31, 2022 
  
143,110.51  

     
139,384.24  

            
3,726.26  

     
1,416,422.49  

    
1,416,422.49  

51 January 31, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
139,718.08  

            
3,392.43  

     
1,276,704.41  

    
1,276,704.41  

52 February 28, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
140,348.63  

            
2,761.88  

     
1,136,355.78  

    
1,136,355.78  

53 March 31, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
140,388.86  

            
2,721.65  

         
995,966.92  

       
995,966.92  

54 April 30, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
140,802.05  

            
2,308.46  

         
855,164.88  

       
855,164.88  

55 May 31, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
141,062.33  

            
2,048.18  

         
714,102.55  

       
714,102.55  

56 June 30, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
141,455.35  

            
1,655.15  

         
572,647.20  

       
572,647.20  

57 July 31, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
141,738.98  

            
1,371.53  

         
430,908.22  

       
430,908.22  

58 August 31, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
142,078.45  

            
1,032.05  

         
288,829.77  

       
288,829.77  

59 September 30, 2023 
  
143,110.51  

     
142,441.05  

                
669.45  

         
146,388.71  

       
146,388.71  

60 October 26, 2023 
  
146,682.77  

     
146,388.71  

                
294.06                            -    

                         
-    

 

* After payment of the Installment Payment due on such date. [The Prepayment Price includes a premium of 3-2-.5% for each of the three 

years following the Contract Date.] 

 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 

Purchaser 

By:     

       Name:  Crystal Betts 

Title:  Chief Financial Officer 

 

 

     

Page 95 of 134



Page 9 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 2 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 

 

OPUS BANK 

131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

Fullerton, CA  92832 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting officer of Purchaser identified below and, with 

respect to the above referenced Equipment Schedule and Contract, that: 

1.  The Equipment Group subject to the Equipment Schedule and the Contract has been delivered and installed in its entirety 

in accordance with the Specifications, is in good working order and is fully operational and has been fully accepted by Purchaser on or 

before the date hereof. 

2.  Attached hereto are true and correct copies of the manufacturers’ and dealers’ invoices for the Equipment Group. 

3.  Purchaser has appropriated and/or taken other lawful actions necessary to provide moneys sufficient to pay all Installment 

Payments required to be paid under the Contract during the current budget year of Purchaser.  Such moneys will be applied in 

payment of all such Installment Payments due and payable during such current budget year.  

4.  No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute, an Event of Default (as 

defined in the Contract) exists at the date hereof. 

Dated:     

 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 

Purchaser 

By:   

Crystal Betts 

Chief Financial Officer 

Date:   

Page 96 of 134



Page 10 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 Exhibit 3 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

PURCHASER’S GENERAL AND TAX CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, being the duly elected, qualified and acting Board Secretary of Purchaser, do hereby certify, as of Lease 

Date for the Lease represented by the Equipment Schedule referred to below (the “Lease Date”), as follows: 

1. Purchaser did, at a meeting of the governing body of the Purchaser held September 27, 2018, by resolution or 

ordinance duly enacted, in accordance with all requirements of law, approve and authorize the execution and delivery of Equipment 

Schedule No. 01 (the “Equipment Schedule”) to the Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Master 

Agreement”), by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer of Purchaser (the “Authorized Representative”).   

2. The name and title of the Authorized Representative is set forth below, and the signature set forth below is the true and 

authentic signature of the Authorized Representative. 

NAME    TITLE  SIGNATURE 

 

Henry Weis  Chief Executive Officer    

 

Crystal Betts  Chief Financial Officer    

3. The meeting(s) of the governing body of the Purchaser at which the Master Agreement and the Equipment Schedule 

were approved and authorized to be executed was duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by the requisite quorum of 

the members thereof, and the enactment approving the Master Agreement and the Equipment Schedule and authorizing the execution 

thereof has not been altered or rescinded.  All meetings of the governing body of Purchaser relating to the authorization and delivery 

of Master Agreement and the Equipment Schedule have been: (a) held within the geographic boundaries of the Purchaser; (b) open to 

the public, allowing all people to attend; (c) conducted in accordance with internal procedures of the governing body and all 

applicable open meeting laws; and (d) conducted in accordance with the charter of the Purchaser, if any, and the laws of the State. 

4. No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute, an 

Event of Default (as such term is defined in the Master Agreement) exists at the date hereof with respect to the Contract reflected by 

the Equipment Schedule (the “Contract”) or any other Contract under the Master Agreement. 

5. The acquisition of all of the Equipment Group under the Contract has been duly authorized by the governing body of 

Purchaser.  

6. Purchaser has, in accordance with the requirements of law, fully budgeted and appropriated sufficient funds for the 

current budget year to make the Installment Payments scheduled to come due during the current budget year under the Contract and to 

meet its other obligations for the current budget year and such funds have not been expended for other purposes. 

7. As of the date hereof, no litigation is pending, (or, to my knowledge, threatened) against Purchaser in any court (a) 

seeking to restrain or enjoin the delivery of the Master Agreement or the Equipment Schedule or of other agreements similar to the 

Master Agreement; (b) questioning the authority of Purchaser to execute the Master Agreement or the Equipment Schedule, or the 

validity of the Master Agreement or the Equipment Schedule, or the payment of principal of or interest on, the Contract; (c) 

questioning the constitutionality of any statute, or the validity of any proceedings, authorizing the execution of the Master Agreement 

and the Equipment Schedule; or (d) affecting the provisions made for the payment of or security for the Master Agreement and the 

Equipment Schedule. 

8. Purchaser has designated the Contract as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” as defined in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of 

the Code. 

9. Pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.148-7(d), the gross proceeds of the Contract will be expended for the 

governmental purposes for which the Equipment Schedule was entered into, as follows:  at least 15% within six months after the 

Contract Date, at least 60% within 12 months after the Contract Date, and 100% within 18 months after the Contract Date.  If 

Purchaser is unable to comply with Section 1.148-7(d) of the Treasury Regulations, Purchaser shall compute rebatable arbitrage on the 

Contract and pay rebatable arbitrage to the United States at least once every five years, and within 60 days after payment of the final 

Installment Payment due under the Contract. 

 

 

Page 97 of 134



Page 11 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Capitalized terms used without definition in this Certificate have the meanings given in the Master Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have duly executed this certificate as of the Lease Date. 

By:       

Name: Alyce Wong 

Title: Board Secretary  

Page 98 of 134



Page 12 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 4 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

OPINION OF PURCHASER’S COUNSEL 

October 25, 2018 

OPUS BANK 

131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

Fullerton, CA  92832 

Re: Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Agreement”) by and between OPUS BANK 

(“Seller”) and Tahoe Forest Hospital District (“Purchaser”) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as counsel to Purchaser with respect to the above-referenced Agreement and related matters, and in this 

capacity have reviewed a duplicate original or certified copy of the Agreement and Equipment Schedule No. 01 executed pursuant 

thereto (the “Equipment Schedule”) [[and the Escrow Agreement between Seller, Purchaser and Opus Bank, as escrow Agent (the 

“Escrow Agreement”)]].  The Agreement and the Equipment Schedule [[and the Escrow Agreement]] are referred to herein as the 

“Financing Documents.”  The terms capitalized in this opinion but not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the 

Financing Documents.  Based upon the examination of these and such other documents as we have deemed relevant, it is our opinion, 

as of the Lease Date specified in the Equipment Schedule, that: 

1. Purchaser is State of California (the “State”) or a political subdivision of the State, in each case within the meaning 

of Section 103(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is duly organized, existing and operating under the 

Constitution and laws of the State. 

2. Purchaser is authorized and has the power under applicable law to enter into the Financing Documents, and to carry 

out its obligations thereunder and the transactions contemplated thereby. 

3. The Financing Documents have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by and on behalf of Purchaser, and are 

legal, valid and binding obligations of Purchaser enforceable in accordance with their terms, except as enforcement thereof may be 

limited by bankruptcy, insolvency and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and by general 

equitable principles. 

4. The authorization and execution of the Financing Documents and all other proceedings of Purchaser relating to the 

transactions contemplated thereby have been performed in accordance with all applicable open meeting, public records, public bidding 

and all other laws, rules and regulations of the State.  Purchaser has obtained all consents and approvals of other governmental 

agencies or authorities which may be required for the execution, delivery and performance by Purchaser of the Financing Documents. 

5. The execution of the Financing Documents and the obligation to pay the Installment Payments coming due 

thereunder do not and will not result in the violation of any constitutional, statutory or other limitation relating to the manner, form or 

amount of indebtedness which may be incurred by Purchaser. 

6. There is no litigation, action, suit or proceeding pending or before any court, administrative agency, arbitrator or 

governmental body that challenges the organization or existence of Purchaser, the authority of Purchaser or its officers or its 

employees to enter into the Financing Documents, the proper authorization and/or execution of the Financing Documents or the 

documents contemplated thereby, the obligation of Purchaser to make Installment Payments under the Contract, or the ability of 

Purchaser otherwise to perform its obligations under the Financing Documents and the transactions contemplated thereby.  To the best 

of our knowledge, no such litigation, action, suit or proceeding is threatened. 

This opinion may be relied upon by the addressee hereof and its successors and assignees of interests in the Contract, but 

only with regard to matters specifically set forth herein. 

Very truly yours, 

[Purchaser Counsel Firm Name] 

 

By:       

Name:       

Title:       

Page 99 of 134



Page 13 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

Exhibit 5 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

INSTRUCTION TO PAY PROCEEDS 

The undersigned, an Authorized Representative of the Purchaser hereby requests and authorizes Seller to disburse the following 

amount of the net proceeds of the Equipment Schedule from the Restricted Account therefore as follows: 

 

 

 Name of Payee:  ______________________________________ 

 

 By check _______   By wire transfer _______ 

 

 If by check, Payee's address:   ______________________________________________ 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

 

 If by wire transfer, instructions as follows:  

 

  Pay to Bank Name: ______________________________________________ 

  

         Bank Address: ______________________________________________ 

 

         Bank Phone #: ______________________________________________ 

 

  For Account of:  ______________________________________________ 

 

  Account No.:  ______________________________________________ 

 

  ABA No.:   ______________________________________________ 

 

If this is the last Disbursement from the Restricted Account check the box:  ____ 

 

Attached are invoices for payment of the applicable equipment.  Any reimbursement to the Purchaser, instead of payment to the 

vendor directly, shall require evidence of payment of such invoice by Purchaser. 

 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

Crystal Betts 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

Dated:      

Page 100 of 134



Page 14 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

 

Exhibit 6 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

TO:   [Insurance Agent Information] 

 

Gentlemen: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District has entered into a Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

with OPUS BANK  In accordance with the Agreement, Purchaser is instructing the insurance agent named above to issue: 

a.  All Risk Physical Damage Insurance on the Equipment evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance and Long Form Loss 

Payable Clause naming OPUS BANK and/or its assigns as Loss Payee. 

The Coverage Required is $8,000,000. 

b.  Public Liability Insurance evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance naming OPUS BANK and/or its assigns as Additional 

Insured. 

The following minimum coverage is required: 

Liability:    $   500,000.00 per person 

Liability - Bodily Injury:   $1,000,000.00 aggregate 

Liability - Property Damage:  $1,000,000.00 property damage liability 

PROPERTY:  See below 

LOCATION: See below 

   

Upon issuance of the coverage outlined above, please mail a certificate of insurance to OPUS BANK, 131 West 

Commonwealth Avenue, Fullerton, CA  92832. 

Your courtesy in issuing and forwarding the requested certificate at your earliest convenience will be appreciated. 

Very truly yours, 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, 

By:     

Crystal Betts 

Chief Financial Officer 

 

Date:        

 

PROPERTY: 

Dept Description Qty  Total Cost  

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL     

  House-wide      

  Telemetry Monitors X  $ 1,200,000  

  Infusion Pumps X  $    950,000  

  Holter Monitors X  $    120,000  

Page 101 of 134



Page 15 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

6010 Intensive Care Unit      

  Critical Care Bed 1  $      20,000  

6170 Med Surg     

  Vein Finder 1  $        7,000  

6380_6530 OB     

  Slim line Workstation on Wheels 2  $        6,000  

6580 SNF     

  Laptops 2  $        4,400  

7010 Emergency Dept     

  Gurney 2  $        6,000  

7075 Women's Center     

  Ultrasound Machine 1  $        5,000  

  Non-Stress Test Machine 1  $        6,000  

7077 Pediatrics     

  Timus Vision Machine 1  $        2,891  

7079 IM Cardiology     

  EKG Machine 1  $      15,000  

  Treadmill (Quinton) 1  $      13,000  

  Freezer 1  $        1,500  

7086 Urology     

  Bladder Scanner 1  $        3,600  

7420 Surgical Services      

  Tissue Freezer 1  $        9,417  

  Fluent fluid management system 1  $      30,000  

  MyoSure Hysteroscopy Set  2  $      16,630  

  Medtronic ENT Navigation system 1  $      90,000  

  Stryker System 7 Orthopedic Power Instruments 1  $      98,500  

  Rhinoplasty tray 1  $      20,000  

  Facelift tray 1  $      20,000  

  Colonoscopes    $      78,000  

  Urology Equipment    $    200,000  

  Censis Track Instrument, Scope and Tissue Tracking    $      90,000  

  Slim line Workstation on Wheels 3   $      15,000  

  Ipads 6  $        4,200  

7427 Ambulatory Surgery     

  Portable vital signs monitors 2  $      14,000  

7450 Anesthesia      

  Terason Ultrasound Machine Curvilinear Probe 1  $        7,000  

  MRI Compatiable Anesthesia Machine 1  $      60,000  

7500 Lab     

  Blood Typing & Screening Instrument 1  $      93,000  

  Bacterial Culture CO2 Incubator 1  $        7,000  

  Blood Gases Instrument 1  $        9,000  

Page 102 of 134



Page 16 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

  Molecular Testing Platform 1  $    120,000  

  Osmometer 1  $      13,500  

  Reagent Refrigerators 1  $        5,466  

  EKG Machine 1  $      14,000  

7630 Diagnostic Imaging     

  C-arm for Orthopedic Surgeon Mobile fluoroscopy in OR 1  $      75,000  

  Radiographic X-Ray Unit Digital 1  $    250,000  

  Xcellera Upgrade Hardware/Software    $    110,000  

  Radiologist Workstation for their Home    $      11,585  

  System Administrator workstation    $        2,500  

  VRAD Integration Software    $      10,000  

  Nuance Upgrade Software    $        7,500  

  Ortho Software and data move    $      18,000  

7660 MRI     

  MRI VITAL Signs Monitor 1  $      71,500  

7672 Briner Ultrasound     

  Cart for ABI System (rubbermade) 1  $        4,500  

7720 Respiratory Therapy     

  BiPAP Core Packate 1  $        6,120  

  Cancer Center     

  Infusion Chairs 8  $        8,000  

  Monitors (vital Signs) 4  $      14,000  

  Replacement chair 2  $        5,000  

  Upgrade AV and Telemedicine equipment Hardware    $      50,000  

  Multifunction Printer    $      13,000  

  Dietary     

  Plate and Base Warmer 2  $      11,000  

  Alto-Sham 1  $        8,896  

  Fryer 1  $      14,323  

18480 IT     

  Singlewire Software    $      25,000  

  Cell Booster Hardware    $      50,000  

  Phone Servers Hardware    $      35,322  

  Network Hardware - HPE Infrastructure    $ 1,800,000  

  Imprivata Single Sign-on Software    $    220,000  

  MediWare Software Upgrade    $      30,000  

  Life Med ID Patient Verification Hardware/Software    $      60,000  

  EPIC EMR - Palliative Care Software    $        8,000  

  EPIC EMR - Beacon Software    $    500,000  

  EPIC EMR - Professional Billing Software    $ 1,000,000  

  Varian Software Upgrade    $      18,000  

  Nutanix Node Hardware    $      60,000  

  IT Infrastructure Hardware    $      50,000  

Page 103 of 134



Page 17 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

18740 Quality     

  Laptop    $        2,200  

18560 Patient Access     

  Small foot print Workstation on Wheels    $      10,000  

  Large Multifunction Printer    $      18,000  

  Wellness      

  Video monitors, repeaters and hardware    $        6,500  

  Laptop    $        2,200  

  SUBTOTAL TFH    $ 7,961,250  

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL     

7420 Surgery     

  Olympus Multidebrider Handpiece (Diego) 2  $      24,745  

  Ambu Airway videoscope and monitor 1  $        5,000  

  Knee Scorpion 1  $        3,200  

7630 Incline DI     

  Ultrasound    $    150,000  

7084 Lakeview     

  Medication Refrigerator 1  $        6,000  

28560 Patient Access     

  Large Multifunction Printer    $      18,000  

  SUBTOTAL IVCH    $    206,945  

        

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT GRAND TOTALS    $ 8,168,195  
 

LOCATION  

The equipment listed under the sub heading, above, of Incline Village Community Hospital will be located at the 

following address: 

Incline Village Community Hospital 

880 Alder Avenue 

Incline Village, NV  89451 

 

Some of the IT equipment listed under the sub heading Tahoe Forest Hospital will located at the following address: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital Business Services 

10875 Pioneer Trail Rd 

Truckee, CA  96161 

 

All remaining equipment listed under the sub heading Tahoe Forest Hospital will be located at the following 

address: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue 

Truckee, CA  96161 

Page 104 of 134



Page 18 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 6 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated October 1, 2018 

 

OPUS BANK 

131 West Commonwealth Avenue 

Fullerton, CA  92832 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

 The undersigned is the risk manager or insurance consultant for Tahoe Forest Hospital District (the “Purchaser”), and in such 

connection the undersigned is familiar with Purchaser’s insurance and self-insurance arrangements.  In connection with Equipment 

Schedule No. 01 (the “Equipment Schedule”) to the Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Master 

Agreement”), between Purchaser and Opus Bank. (the “Seller”), the undersigned makes the following certifications to Seller.  

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given in the Master Agreement. 

1. Purchaser is self-insured for damage or destruction to the Equipment described in the Equipment Schedule (the 

“Equipment”).  The dollar amount limit for property damage to the Equipment under such self-insurance program is 

$_________________.  [Purchaser maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess of Purchaser’s self-insurance limits for 

property damage to the Equipment which policy has a dollar limit for property damage to the Equipment under such policy of 

$__________________.] 

2. Purchaser is self-insured for liability for injury or death of any person or damage or loss of property arising out of or 

relating to the condition or operation of the Equipment.  The dollar limit for such liability claims under the Purchaser’s self-insurance 

program is $_________________.  [Purchaser maintains an umbrella insurance policy for claims in excess of Purchaser’s self-

insurance limits for liability which policy has a dollar limit for liabilities for injury and death to persons as well as damage or loss of 

property arising out of or relating to the condition or operation of the Equipment in the amount of $_________________.] 

[3].  Purchaser maintains a self-insurance fund.  Monies in the self-insurance fund [are/are not] subject to annual 

appropriation.  The total amount maintained in the self-insurance fund to cover Purchaser’s self-insurance liabilities is 

$_________________.  [Amounts paid from Purchaser’s self-insurance fund are subject to a dollar per claim of 

$__________________.] 

[3].  The Purchaser does not maintain a self-insurance fund.  The Purchaser obtains funds to pay claims for which it has self-

insured from the following sources: _____________________________. Amounts payable for claims from such sources are limited as 

follows: _________________________________________ 

Dated:       

Very truly yours, 

 

 
  By:   

  Name:   

  Title:   

Page 105 of 134



Page 19 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

Exhibit 7 to Equipment Schedule No. 01 

Master Installment Purchase Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 

 

[FORM 8038-G OR 8038-GC] 

Page 106 of 134



Page 20 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

[PAGE TO BE REPLACED BY UCC FINANCING STATEMENT] 

Page 107 of 134



Page 21 - Master Installment Purchase Agreement  

SCHEDULE A TO FINANCING STATEMENT OF 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, AS DEBTOR, AND 

OPUS BANK, AS SECURED PARTY 

Continuation of Collateral Description 

The financing statement to which this Schedule A is attached covers the types of property described on the face of such 

financing statement and all of the Debtor's right, title and interest in and to (collectively, the “Collateral”): 

(a)  the equipment described in Equipment Schedule No. 01 (the “Equipment Schedule”) to the Master Installment Purchase 

Agreement dated as of October 1, 2018 (the “Agreement,” and together with the Equipment Schedule, the “Contract”) between 

Debtor, as Purchaser, and Secured Party, as Seller, as such Contract may be amended, modified or supplemented from time to time; 

(b)  to the extent not included in the foregoing, all books, ledgers and records and all computer programs, tapes, discs, punch 

cards, data processing software, transaction files, master files and related property and rights (including computer and peripheral 

equipment) necessary or helpful in enforcing, identifying or establishing any item of Collateral; and 

(c)  to the extent not included in the foregoing, all repairs, replacements, substitutions, restorations, accessions, improvements 

and modifications and all proceeds and products of any or all of the foregoing, whether existing on the date hereof or arising hereafter, 

including insurance proceeds. 

 

Page 108 of 134



DRAFT

Closing October 26, 2018

Rate 2.82% (a/o 9/18/18 and subject to change)

Principal 8,000,000             
Payment 

Number Payment Date Total Payment

Principal 

Component

Interest 

Component

Prepayment 

Price Principal

1 November 30, 2018 143,110.51           121,477.63       21,632.88   8,114,878.04   7,878,522.37    35.00                   

2 December 31, 2018 143,110.51           124,240.91       18,869.60   7,986,909.91   7,754,281.46    31.00                   

3 January 31, 2019 143,110.51           124,538.47       18,572.04   7,858,635.28   7,629,742.99    31.00                   

4 February 28, 2019 143,110.51           126,605.18       16,505.33   7,728,231.95   7,503,137.81    28.00                   

5 March 31, 2019 143,110.51           125,139.98       17,970.53   7,599,337.77   7,377,997.84    31.00                   

6 April 30, 2019 143,110.51           126,009.72       17,100.78   7,469,547.76   7,251,988.11    30.00                   

7 May 31, 2019 143,110.51           125,741.50       17,369.01   7,340,034.01   7,126,246.62    31.00                   

8 June 30, 2019 143,110.51           126,593.23       16,517.27   7,209,642.98   6,999,653.38    30.00                   

9 July 31, 2019 143,110.51           126,345.86       16,764.65   7,079,506.75   6,873,307.53    31.00                   

10 August 31, 2019 143,110.51           126,648.46       16,462.04   6,949,058.83   6,746,659.06    31.00                   

11 September 30, 2019 143,110.51           127,473.04       15,637.46   6,817,761.60   6,619,186.02    30.00                   

12 October 31, 2019 143,110.51           127,257.10       15,853.40   6,621,767.49   6,491,928.91    31.00                   

13 November 30, 2019 143,110.51           128,063.46       15,047.05   6,491,142.76   6,363,865.45    30.00                   

14 December 31, 2019 143,110.51           127,868.61       15,241.89   6,360,716.78   6,235,996.84    31.00                   

15 January 31, 2020 143,110.51           128,174.87       14,935.64   6,229,978.41   6,107,821.97    31.00                   

16 February 29, 2020 143,110.51           129,425.64       13,684.87   6,097,964.26   5,978,396.33    29.00                   

17 March 31, 2020 143,110.51           128,791.84       14,318.67   5,966,596.59   5,849,604.50    31.00                   

18 April 30, 2020 143,110.51           129,552.25       13,558.26   5,834,453.30   5,720,052.25    30.00                   

19 May 31, 2020 143,110.51           129,410.59       13,699.92   5,702,454.49   5,590,641.66    31.00                   

20 June 30, 2020 143,110.51           130,152.47       12,958.04   5,569,698.97   5,460,489.19    30.00                   

21 July 31, 2020 143,110.51           130,032.26       13,078.25   5,437,066.07   5,330,456.93    31.00                   

22 August 31, 2020 143,110.51           130,343.70       12,766.81   5,304,115.50   5,200,113.23    31.00                   

23 September 30, 2020 143,110.51           131,057.64       12,052.87   5,170,436.70   5,069,055.59    30.00                   

24 October 31, 2020 143,110.51           130,969.77       12,140.74   4,962,776.25   4,938,085.82    31.00                   

25 November 30, 2020 143,110.51           131,664.97       11,445.54   4,830,452.95   4,806,420.85    30.00                   

26 December 31, 2020 143,110.51           131,598.80       11,511.71   4,698,196.16   4,674,822.05    31.00                   

27 January 31, 2021 143,110.51           131,913.99       11,196.52   4,565,622.60   4,542,908.06    31.00                   

28 February 28, 2021 143,110.51           133,282.89       9,827.62     4,431,673.30   4,409,625.17    28.00                   

29 March 31, 2021 143,110.51           132,549.15       10,561.35   4,298,461.40   4,277,076.02    31.00                   

30 April 30, 2021 143,110.51           133,197.06       9,913.44     4,164,598.35   4,143,878.95    30.00                   

31 May 31, 2021 143,110.51           133,185.63       9,924.87     4,030,746.79   4,010,693.32    31.00                   

32 June 30, 2021 143,110.51           133,814.49       9,296.02     3,896,263.23   3,876,878.83    30.00                   

33 July 31, 2021 143,110.51           133,825.12       9,285.39     3,761,768.98   3,743,053.72    31.00                   

34 August 31, 2021 143,110.51           134,145.64       8,964.87     3,626,952.62   3,608,908.08    31.00                   

35 September 30, 2021 143,110.51           134,745.75       8,364.76     3,491,533.14   3,474,162.33    30.00                   

36 October 31, 2021 143,110.51           134,789.65       8,320.86     3,339,372.68   3,339,372.68    31.00                   

37 November 30, 2021 143,110.51           135,370.48       7,740.03     3,204,002.20   3,204,002.20    30.00                   

38 December 31, 2021 143,110.51           135,436.70       7,673.80     3,068,565.50   3,068,565.50    31.00                   

39 January 31, 2022 143,110.51           135,761.08       7,349.42     2,932,804.41   2,932,804.41    31.00                   

40 February 28, 2022 143,110.51           136,766.01       6,344.50     2,796,038.41   2,796,038.41    28.00                   

41 March 31, 2022 143,110.51           136,413.80       6,696.70     2,659,624.60   2,659,624.60    31.00                   

42 April 30, 2022 143,110.51           136,946.01       6,164.50     2,522,678.60   2,522,678.60    30.00                   

43 May 31, 2022 143,110.51           137,068.52       6,041.99     2,385,610.08   2,385,610.08    31.00                   

44 June 30, 2022 143,110.51           137,581.12       5,529.39     2,248,028.96   2,248,028.96    30.00                   

45 July 31, 2022 143,110.51           137,726.32       5,384.18     2,110,302.64   2,110,302.64    31.00                   

46 August 31, 2022 143,110.51           138,056.19       5,054.32     1,972,246.45   1,972,246.45    31.00                   

47 September 30, 2022 143,110.51           138,539.22       4,571.29     1,833,707.23   1,833,707.23    30.00                   

48 October 31, 2022 143,110.51           138,718.65       4,391.85     1,694,988.58   1,694,988.58    31.00                   

49 November 30, 2022 143,110.51           139,181.85       3,928.66     1,555,806.73   1,555,806.73    30.00                   

50 December 31, 2022 143,110.51           139,384.24       3,726.26     1,416,422.49   1,416,422.49    31.00                   

51 January 31, 2023 143,110.51           139,718.08       3,392.43     1,276,704.41   1,276,704.41    31.00                   

52 February 28, 2023 143,110.51           140,348.63       2,761.88     1,136,355.78   1,136,355.78    28.00                   

53 March 31, 2023 143,110.51           140,388.86       2,721.65     995,966.92      995,966.92       31.00                   

54 April 30, 2023 143,110.51           140,802.05       2,308.46     855,164.88      855,164.88       30.00                   

55 May 31, 2023 143,110.51           141,062.33       2,048.18     714,102.55      714,102.55       31.00                   

56 June 30, 2023 143,110.51           141,455.35       1,655.15     572,647.20      572,647.20       30.00                   

57 July 31, 2023 143,110.51           141,738.98       1,371.53     430,908.22      430,908.22       31.00                   

58 August 31, 2023 143,110.51           142,078.45       1,032.05     288,829.77      288,829.77       31.00                   

59 September 30, 2023 143,110.51           142,441.05       669.45        146,388.71      146,388.71       30.00                   

60 October 26, 2023 146,682.77           146,388.71       294.06        -                    -                     26.00                   

Page 109 of 134



0 
 

 

 

 

  

Supporting and inspiring community 

members to achieve their best health. 

Tahoe Forest 
Health System 
Community Health 

Improvement Plan (2018) 

 

Page 110 of 134



 
 

Contents 
Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

Description of Tahoe Forest Health System ................................................................................................. 2 

Health Professional Shortage Areas.......................................................................................................... 4 

Description of the Community Served ...................................................................................................... 5 

Overview of the CHIP Process ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Community Health Needs Assessment Process ........................................................................................ 6 

Community Health Needs Assessment Findings ....................................................................................... 6 

Community Feedback ............................................................................................................................... 7 

Guiding Principals ..................................................................................................................................... 7 

Prioritization ............................................................................................................................................. 7 

Implementation Plan .................................................................................................................................... 8 

Strategic Priorities, Goals and Objectives ................................................................................................. 8 

1. Mental/Behavioral Health ............................................................................................................ 8 

2. Substance Misuse ......................................................................................................................... 8 

3. Chronic Disease ............................................................................................................................. 9 

4. Prevention & Wellness .................................................................................................................. 9 

Targeted Strategies and Programs .......................................................................................................... 10 

1. Mental/Behavioral Health:  All community members are supported in experiencing mental 

wellness and resilience to challenges. ................................................................................................ 11 

2. Substance Misuse:  Cultivate an environment that protects community members from the 

harmful effects of substance use disorders. ....................................................................................... 12 

3. Chronic Disease:  Cultivate an environment that supports those with chronic disease living life to 

their fullest. ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

4.  Prevention & Wellness:  Cultivate an environment that supports healthy behaviors and lifelong 

wellness. .............................................................................................................................................. 15 

 

 

Page 111 of 134



1 
 

Executive Summary 
The Wellness Neighborhood of Tahoe Forest Health System (TFHS) presents the 2018-2021 Community 

Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) for the Truckee/North Tahoe region. This CHIP addresses the priority 

health needs identified in the 2017 and previous Community Health Needs Assessments (CHNAs) from 

2011 and 2014, and the Health System strategy for building and supporting a healthy community.  

This document presents our three year goals, objectives and strategies to achieve the identified 

improvements in health status. Strategies build upon current programs and services as well as introduce 

new areas for interventions. A collaborative approach is integral to making an impact on the population 

level.  Our strategies are multifaceted and targeted to include the Community, Health System, 

Department and Incline Village, as defined on page 10.  

Internal work plans will be developed to assess implementation milestones and progress toward our 

long term goals. Work plans and specific interventions will be updated as needed to address changes in 

policy, information, and/or direction necessary to maintain forward progress in reaching our goals.  

We invite you to join us in supporting a healthy community.  

For more information, please contact Maria Martin, MPH, RDN, Director of Community Health & 

Wellness Neighborhood at 530-550-6731, email mmartin@tfhd.com or visit The Tahoe Forest Health 

System website, www.tfhd.com.  

 

  

Tahoe Forest Health System Mission:   

We exist to make a difference in the health of our communities through excellence and 

compassion in all we do. 

Vision:  To serve our region by striving to be the best mountain health system in the 

nation. 

 

Wellness Neighborhood Mission:   

To support and inspire our patients and community members to achieve their best health 

through coordination/navigation of services and collaborative community-based care and 

education. 

Vision:  Supporting and inspiring community members to achieve their best health. 

Page 112 of 134

mailto:mmartin@tfhd.com
http://www.tfhd.com/


 
 

Description of Tahoe Forest Health System 

In 1951, the Joseph family created a legacy that would benefit our community for generations to follow. 
The community quickly rallied around the Joseph’s donation of land for a new hospital. Sixty-seven years 
later, Tahoe Forest Health System continues to thrive under this heritage of philanthropy. 

Through continued generous community support, Tahoe Forest Health System (TFHS) is able to offer a 
wide variety of high-quality programs and services. 

Two Critical Access Hospitals are part of TFHS, 

Tahoe Forest Hospital located in Truckee, CA 

and Incline Village Community Hospital 

located in Incline Village, NV.  Tahoe Forest 

Hospital is a not-for-profit rural health care 

facility and designated critical access hospital. 

It is fully accredited by the Healthcare 

Accreditation Facilities Program and licensed 

by the State of California Department of 

Health Services.  It offers 25 acute care beds 

and 36 long-term care beds, 24-hour 

emergency care, an ambulatory surgery 

center, intensive care, orthopedics and sports medicine, a medical/surgical unit, women and family 

center, home health and hospice programs, a health clinic, cancer center, long term care center, 

children’s center, a center for health including physical therapy, as well as a variety of community health 

outreach programs. 

 

Incline Village Community Hospital is a 4-bed 
critical access hospital offering 24-hour 
emergency care as well as laboratory, 
diagnostic and surgical capability, physical 
therapy services, health clinic and a sleep 
disorder center. 

 

 

 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Figure 1) includes areas within both Placer and Nevada County, while 

TFHS extends into Washoe County in the state of Nevada to include Incline Village and Crystal Bay.  The 

Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) referenced in this plan surveyed residents from within the 

broader service area of Tahoe Forest Health System.  A brief of the CHNA can be found on page 8.  The 

full CHNA can be found at www.tfhd.com.  

Page 113 of 134

http://www.tfhd.com/


3 
 

Figure 1. Tahoe Forest Hospital District  

 

Page 114 of 134



4 
 

Health Professional Shortage Areas 
As is common in rural areas, our region experiences shortages in certain health care services.  Health 

Professional Shortage Areas (HPSAs) are federal designations that indicate health care provider 

shortages in Primary Care, Dental Health or Mental Health.  Our entire service area has HPSA 

designation for Primary Care (Figure 2 – green indicates HPSA designation for the entire Lake Tahoe 

region).  North Tahoe in both CA and NV has HPSA designation for Dental Health (Figure 3 – purple 

indicates HPSA designation for the entire Lake Tahoe region).  The Truckee/North Tahoe, California 

portion of our service area has HPSA designation for Mental Health (Figure 4 – blue indicates HPSA 

designation for the entire Lake Tahoe region). Incline Village no longer has HPSA Mental Health 

designation. 

 

Figure 2.  Primary Care HPSA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 3.  Dental Health HPSA                                              Figure 4.  Mental Health HPSA 

 

Page 115 of 134



5 
 

Description of the Community Served 
Located in the Sierra Nevada mountain range, the North Lake Tahoe (including Incline Village, NV) and 

Truckee, California region encompasses many communities and one incorporated town, the Town of 

Truckee, over portions of three counties, Placer, Nevada and Washoe. The mountainous region of the 

Sierra Nevada separates this rural region from the county seats and more populated areas of the 

counties.   

The full-time population of TFHS service area is approximately 37,000 per the U.S. Census American 

Community Survey (2012-2016).  A comparison of the select regional demographics compared to 

Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) respondents can be found below in Figure 5 and Figure 6. 

 

Figure 5.  Demographics Comparison of US Census vs. CHNA Respondents 

 

Figure 6. US Census vs. TFHS Respondents (Age) 

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Male Female Non-Hispanic Hispanic Some
college+

(18+)

TFHS CA Zips TFHS NV Zips

US Census (2012-2016 ACS) 2017 CHNA

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

15 to
19

20 to
24

25 to
29

30 to
34

35 to
39

40 to
44

45 to
49

50 to
54

55 to
59

60 to
64

65 to
69

70 to
74

75 to
79

80 to
84

85 and
older

Census CHNA

Page 116 of 134



6 
 

Community members with certain demographic characteristics were under captured using the address-

based methodology, this included younger adults, those with Hispanic ethnicity and those lacking 

housing.  Focus groups were conducted to target these specific groups and ensure their voice and health 

needs would be included in this plan.    

 

Overview of the CHIP Process 

 

Community Health Needs Assessment Process 
This Community Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) has been created using the findings from the 

Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) of 2017 which included data from Robert Wood Johnson 

County Health Rankings, Nevada Department of Public Health, UCLA California Health Interview Survey 

(AskCHIS), the CDC Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance Survey (BRFSS) Prevalence and Trends Data, 

Washoe County NV Health Department, and Tahoe Forest Health System (TFHS) BRFSS survey questions.  

The CHNA was a collaborative effort of TFHS and the Center for Opinion Research at Franklin and 

Marshall College.  This is the third CHNA initiated by TFHS with previous assessments taking place in 

2011 and 2014.   

 

Community Health Needs Assessment Findings  
The CHNA identified community health needs based on the prevalence of health risks and health 

disparities of full-time residents (i.e. those who live here nine months or more out of the year).  It 

focused specifically on health risks that contribute to non-communicable disease that are among the 

leading causes of death and disability with some emphasis on how these risk factors are unevenly 

distributed across demographic groups.  This approach shows the most significant health risks in the 

Tahoe Forest Health System medical service area relate to obesity, including obesity-related behaviors 

such as diet and exercise, mental health, and substance use in terms of both the number of people 

affected and the amount of death and disability each creates.  On par with these findings, those with 

health conditions including high cholesterol, high blood pressure, and poor heart health are impacting 

more people than captured in previous surveys.   

The data also shows that barriers in accessing health care among some groups as well as the high costs 

of housing and living may exacerbate these problems.  This was further emphasized in targeted, 

community focus groups. 

Although this plan focuses on the identified needs, it is important to note that there were many positive 

findings in the CHNA where health indicators improved.  This includes: 

o An increase in prevention practices such as dental visits, flu vaccination, colonoscopy and pap 

screenings   

o Fewer residents are uninsured and/or experiencing cost as a barrier to accessing health care 

o More residents are self-reporting they are in good, very good or excellent health 

o More residents have a personal physician(s) 

Page 117 of 134



7 
 

Community Feedback 
CHNA findings were shared through multiple venues to include the TFHD Board of Directors, IVCH 

Foundation, and TFHD Nursing Executive Council. In addition, three community-based group activities 

were conducted to identify strategic areas and gather feedback on prioritization (see below for list of 

represented participants).  While each group expressed unique interpretations of the CHNA data, there 

were similarities in identifying core considerations to be embedded into each strategic area.  Tahoe 

Forest synthesized this piece of the community feedback into the Guiding Principles detailed below and 

incorporated the prioritized strategic areas into the finalized Strategic Priorities.  

 

Stakeholders who participated in group activities included: 

 

Boys and Girls Club of North Lake Tahoe 

Community Collaborative of Tahoe Truckee 

California Department of Rehabilitation 

Excellence in Education 

Faith Based Organizations 

Family Resource Center of Truckee 

Gateway Mountain Center 

Incline Village Community Hospital Foundation 

Incline Village Community Hospital 

KidZone Museum 

Nevada County Public Health Department 

North Tahoe Family Resource Center 

Parasol Foundation 

Placer County Public Health Department 

Project Mana 

Sierra Senior Services 

Truckee Donner Parks and Recreation District 

Tahoe Safe Alliance 

Tahoe Forest Hospital 

Tahoe Truckee Future Without Drug Dependence 

Tahoe Truckee Unified School District 

  

 

Guiding Principals 
Health Equity  – Attainment of the highest level of health for all people 

Environment – Promote an environment and culture that supports healthy living 

Solidarity  – Foster community collaboration and partnership 

Access   – Enable and promote connections to health and wellness resources 

 

     

Prioritization 
Prioritization for action was informed by: 

Magnitude  – Number of people affected 

Impact   – How the issue impacts or exacerbates other health and quality of life issues 

Feasibility  – The ability to make a difference in the issue with available resources 

Feedback  – From community stakeholders 

 

Page 118 of 134



8 
 

Implementation Plan 
This CHIP identifies new strategies to address findings of the most recent CHNA and builds upon the 

foundation of needs initially identified in 2011.  Over the next three years, through September 2021, the 

Wellness Neighborhood plans to: 

o Continue successful programming that targets needs identified in previous assessments; 

o Expand effective programming to populations not yet targeted; 

o Develop and implement new programming and strategies based on the prioritization detailed 

above. 

 

Strategic Priorities, Goals and Objectives 

1. Mental/Behavioral Health 

Mental and Behavioral Health has been a recurrent theme since the 2011 CHNA.  The plan is to expand 

existing mental health programs that have targeted certain subsets of the population to all residents. 

This includes increasing access, promoting protective factors and integrating mental and behavioral 

health with physical health to provide comprehensive health care.  

Goal:  All community members are supported in experiencing mental wellness and resilience to 

challenges. 

 

Broad Objectives 

1.1. Increase mental/behavioral health services 

1.2. Suicide Prevention 

 

2. Substance Misuse 

The definition of substance misuse has evolved in a short time.  Policy changes have led to the 

legalization of marijuana, and the over use of legal prescription drugs has led to a national public health 

crisis.  At the local level, the recreation and tourism nature of our community has resulted in a lenient 

interpretation of substance misuse, especially in terms of alcohol.   

As a health care system, medical providers must navigate the complexity of alleviating pain and 

managing symptoms while being cognizant of the implications and risks of addiction, practicing harm 

reduction, and adhering to safe prescribe practices.  Ensuring responsible use of substances is 

multifaceted and complicated. 

Goal:  Cultivate an environment that protects community members from the harmful effects of 

substance use disorders. 

 

Broad Objectives 

2.1. Reduce binge drinking in adults 

2.2. Reduce substance use disorders in adults 

2.3. Reduce youth substance use 

2.4. Reduce adult smoking  

 

Page 119 of 134



9 
 

3. Chronic Disease 

Chronic Disease is defined as a human health condition or disease that is persistent or otherwise long-

lasting in its effects or a disease that comes with time. The term chronic is often applied when the 

course of the disease lasts for more than three months.  Chronic Diseases account for 7 out of 10 deaths 

and affect the quality of life for over 90 million Americans. The top 5% of Medicare beneficiaries have 2 

or more chronic diseases such as diabetes, arthritis and cardiac diseases.  Research shows that people 

who live with chronic disease can experience improved quality of life and longevity as well as reduced 

medical costs through the implementation of programs that provide education and support in adopting 

a healthy lifestyle to include well balanced nutrition, physical activity, regular health checkups, stress 

management and psychosocial support.   
 

Goal:  Cultivate an environment that supports those with chronic disease in living their life to the 

fullest. 

 

Broad Objectives 

3.1. Improve general health of those with chronic conditions 

3.2. Increase participation in Chronic Care Management 

 

 

4. Prevention & Wellness 

Wellness is defined by the World Health Organization as “not merely the absence of disease or infirmity, 

but a state of complete physical, mental and social well-being”.  Wellness is an active process of 

becoming aware of and making choices toward a healthy and fulfilling life.  Our role in this intentional, 

yet individual, process is to make the healthy choice the easy choice. 

 
Goal:  Cultivate an environment that supports healthy behaviors and lifelong wellness. 

Broad Objectives 

4.1. Increase vegetable consumption 

4.2. Increase adult physical activity 

4.3. Increase immunization rates 

4.4. Increase health screenings 

  

Page 120 of 134



10 
 

 

Targeted Strategies and Programs   
A collaborative approach is integral to making an impact on the population level.  For this reason our 

strategies are multifaceted and targeted to the Community, Health System, Department and Incline 

Village. 

Community level interventions are targeted to the general community and include collaboration 

with community partner organizations and stakeholders.  This includes more formalized initiatives 

and coalitions as well as non-formalized partnerships and collaborative projects. Tier One Outreach 

Strategies refer to broad community outreach including, but not limited to:  

 Social Media Outreach 

 Targeted Cooking Classes (e.g. inflammation, heart health, chronic pain, mental health)  

 Rethink Healthy Community Talks  

 Remote Conferencing for Education and Support (e.g. Webex, GoToMeeting) 

 Targeted MyChart Messaging (e.g. vaccination reminder, screening reminder)  

 Public Health Observance promotion on the Video Monitors in outpatient clinic and hospital 

waiting rooms  

Health System interventions are targeted to changes that can occur within Tahoe Forest Health 

System (California and Nevada).  This includes health provider education, increasing specific clinical 

services and screenings, and ensuring new services are sustainable. 

Department interventions are those driven by the Wellness Neighborhood and include research and 

program development, data analysis and program evaluation, identifying and addressing barriers 

and ensuring sustainability.  The Wellness Neighborhood initiates health system and medical 

provider education on topics relevant to our strategic areas. 

Incline Village interventions have been identified by Incline Village stakeholders to be financially 

feasible.   

 

  

Page 121 of 134



11 
 

1. Mental/Behavioral Health:  All community members are supported in experiencing 
mental wellness and resilience to challenges. 

Broad 
Objective 

Outcome Objective Baseline Goal 
Change 

Data 
Source 

1.1 Increase 
mental/ 
behavioral 
health 
services 

Reduce the proportion of adults who want 
help for mental health but did not seek it 
due to barriers from 12% to 10% 12% 10% 

TFHS CHNA 
(2014) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Increase access to multi-modal services, therapies and resources. 
Increase education around multi-modal services. 
Increase education and outreach to support healthy mental habits (meditation, 
stress reduction, social connection, nature etc.). 

Health System Investigate opportunities to develop and support a Behavioral Health Department 
including financial sustainability. 
Increase the number of mental health providers in TFHS, to include telehealth. 
Increase the proportion of patients who score 10+ on the PHQ Depression 
Screening1 who receive counseling services. 

Departmental Provide education and support for clinicians in PHQ Depression Screening1. 
Partner with local organizations to provide support for at-risk youth. 

Incline Village Increase education and outreach to support healthy mental habits (meditation, 
stress reduction, social connection, nature etc.). 

  

1.2 Suicide 
Prevention 

Reduce the proportion of adults who 
report 1+ days in the past 30 days when 
mental health was not good from 34% to 
32%. 

34% 32% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Increase the proportion of adults who get 
the social and emotional support they 
need Always or Usually from 77% to 80%. 

77% 79% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Collaboration and support of the Suicide Prevention Coalition to increase awareness, 
reduce stigma, increase access to care and advocate for healthy supports. 

Health System Explore the 7 essential elements of Zero Suicide2 and identify areas for 
implementation (Lead, Train. Identify, Engage, Treat, Transition, and Improve).  

Departmental Collaborate and support the Suicide Prevention Coalition. 
Educate TFHS Departments in Know the Signs3. 
Explore the feasibility for follow up calls 72 hours after discharge from the TFHD 
Emergency Department after a mental health evaluation for adults. 

Incline Village Collaboration and support of the Suicide Prevention Coalition to increase awareness, 
reduce stigma, increase access to care and advocate for healthy supports. 

 

                                                           
1 https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/images/res/PHQ%20-%20Questions.pdf  
2 http://zerosuicide.sprc.org/  
3 https://www.suicideispreventable.org/  

Page 122 of 134

https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/images/res/PHQ%20-%20Questions.pdf
http://zerosuicide.sprc.org/
https://www.suicideispreventable.org/


12 
 

 

2. Substance Misuse:  Cultivate an environment that protects community members from 
the harmful effects of substance use disorders. 

Broad 
Objective 

Outcome Objective Baseline Goal 
Change 

Data 
Source 

2.1 Reduce 
binge drinking 
in adults 

Reduce the proportion of adults who 
binge drink in that last 30 days from 28.3% 
to 25% 

28.3 26% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Implement a moderate drinking awareness campaign/normalization of non-drinking. 
Promote National Alcohol Awareness Month (April) including Alcohol-Free Weekend. 

Health System Implement Emergency Department and Inpatient detox counseling. 

Departmental Collaborate with and support Tahoe Truckee Future Without Drug Dependence 
(TTFWDD). 

Incline Village Implement a moderate drinking awareness campaign/normalization of non-drinking. 
Promote National Alcohol Awareness Month (April) including Alcohol-Free Weekend. 

  

2.2 Reduce 
substance use 
disorders 

Reduce the proportion of adults who 
binge drink, use non-prescribed pain 
killers, stimulants, or tranquilizers or use 
marijuana 20+ times in the past 20 days 
from 34% to 32%. 

34% 32% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Rx- Explore naloxone/vivitrol outreach to local law enforcement. 
Marijuana- Increase awareness on safe marijuana use.  
Alcohol- See Binge Drinking Objective 2.1. 

Health System Rx- Increase access to substance use counseling and support groups.  Explore 
feasibility of Medication Assisted Therapy. Increase Screening and Brief Intervention, 
Referral to Treatment (SBIRT) screenings4. 
Marijuana- Consistent messaging on harm reduction for patients.  
Alcohol- See Binge Drinking Objective 2.1. 

Departmental All Substances- Support data analysis for referrals and follow through for substance 
counseling.  Collaborate with TTFWDD. 
Rx- Continue provider education regarding Medication Assisted Therapy (i.e. 
suboxone). 
Marijuana- Educate medical providers on harm reduction for marijuana use. 
Evaluate feasible public health approaches to marijuana sales, distribution and 
consumption. 
Alcohol- See Binge Drinking Objective 2.1. 

Incline Village Rx- Explore naloxone/vivitrol outreach to local law enforcement. 
Marijuana- Increase awareness on safe marijuana use.  
Alcohol- See Binge Drinking Objective 2.1. 

  

                                                           
4 https://www.samhsa.gov/sbirt  

Page 123 of 134

https://www.samhsa.gov/sbirt


13 
 

Broad 
Objective 

Outcome Objective Baseline Goal 
Change 

Data 
Source 

2.3 Reduce 
youth 
substance use 
 
 

Reduce 11th grader 30-day use of 
prescription medications to get “high” or 
for reasons other than prescribed from 4% 
to 2%.  

4% 3.5% 

California 
Healthy 

Kids Survey 
(TTUSD -
2015/16) 

Reduce 11th grader 30-day use of 
electronic cigarettes from 13% to 11%.  
 

*E-cigarette use among youth is on the rise. The 
2015/16 data provides baseline while 2017/18 data, 
to be released later in 2018, is anticipated to show 
increased use. 

13% 12.9% 

Reduce 11th grader 30-day use of alcohol 
(at least one drink) from 31% to 29%.  

31% 
 

29% 
 

Reduce 11th grader 30-day use of 
marijuana from 27% to 25%. 

27% 25% 

Potential Strategies 

Community Rx- Implement opioid and Rx drug safety curriculum at the middle and high school 
level. 
Nicotine- Educate the community including health care providers on the risks of 
vaping. 
Alcohol- Continue AlcoholEdu in the high schools. 
Marijuana- Collaborate with TTFWDD. 

Health System Rx- Expand access point for Rx drug take back.  Reduce quantity of pills per opioid 
prescription (# of pills/Rx). 
Nicotine- Adherence to the smoke-free environment policy.  Increased marketing 
about the hospital’s smoking and tobacco cessation program.  
Alcohol, Nicotine and Marijuana- Increase CRAFFT screening tool for adolescent 
substance abuse to all youth between the ages of 12-18. 

Departmental Rx- Initiate additional provider education around Safe Prescribe.   
Nicotine- Develop and implement youth-focused health coaching for a nicotine-free 
lifestyle. 
Alcohol, Nicotine and Marijuana - Continue to offer provider education around 
CRAFFT. 

Incline Village Explore opportunities for substance use prevention in Incline Village schools. 

  

2.4 Reduce 
adult smoking 
(tobacco) 

Reduce the proportion of adults who 
currently smoke tobacco from 9.9% to 
7.7%. 

9.9% 7.7% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Collaborate with Nevada County on local smoke-free environments.  

Health System Adherence to smoke-free environment policy (including housing units).  Increased 
marketing about the hospital’s smoking and tobacco cessation program.   

Departmental Provide health coaching for a nicotine-free lifestyle. Explore remote conferencing 
platform for education and support. 
Facilitate CME5 and provider outreach on smoking and tobacco cessation program. 

                                                           
5 CME- Certified Medical Education 

Page 124 of 134



14 
 

Incline Village Explore virtual platforms for substance use support. 

3. Chronic Disease:  Cultivate an environment that supports those with chronic disease 
living life to their fullest. 

Broad 
Objective 

Outcome Objective Baseline Goal 
Change 

Data 
Source 

3.1 Improve 
general health 
of those with 
chronic 
conditions 

Increase the proportion of adults with 
chronic disease who report general health 
as Excellent or Very Good from 64.6% to 
66%.* 
 

*Chronic diseases included in the calculation:  
Cancer, Diabetes, Depression, Asthma, COPD, 
Emphysema, Chronic Bronchitis, Heart Failure, 
Heart Disease, Hyperlipidemia, Hypertension, 
Stroke 

64.6% 66% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Implement Tier One Strategies to promote hospital resources (i.e. multi-modal 
therapies and self-management classes). 

Health System Increase reimbursement options for individual nutrition counseling and group 
education.  Increase utilization of nutrition counseling services. 
Continue to support Affordable Lab screening options. 

Departmental Increase number of certified leaders of self-management programs.   
Increase utilization of self-management programs. 
Evaluate disease progression and management of chronic disease of those who 
participate in a self-management program. 
Develop and implement chronic disease prevention programs for adults and 
children (i.e. Diabetes Prevention Program). 

Incline Village Implement Tier One Strategies to promote hospital resources (i.e. multi-modal 
therapies and self-management classes.) 

  

3.2 Increase 
participation in 
Chronic Care 
Management 
(CCM) 

Increase the proportion of adults on 
Medicare with two or more chronic 
conditions who participate in CCM from 
14.1%* to 16%. 
 

*Baseline numbers are from July 2018 and include 
patients from Tahoe Forest Health System and 
Truckee Tahoe Medical Group (TTMG) clinics.  

14.1%  16% 

TFHS and 
TTMG Care 
Coordinati

on and 
Mercy EPIC 

Potential Strategies 

Community Continue to collaborate with Family Resource Centers and other community 
partners to provide community education, outreach and referrals for CCM. 

Health System Promote sustainability by successfully billing for services. 

Departmental Continue medical provider education to increase referrals. 

Incline Village Explore outreach opportunities to reach target population in Incline. 

  

Page 125 of 134



15 
 

4.  Prevention & Wellness:  Cultivate an environment that supports healthy behaviors and 
lifelong wellness. 

Broad 
Objective 

Outcome Objective Baseline Goal 
Change 

Data Source 

4.1 Increase 
vegetable 
consumption 

Increase the proportion of adults who 
self-report eating 3 vegetables/day 
from 11.6% to 14%. 

11.6% 14% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Implement a community education/awareness campaign using Tier One Outreach 
Strategies. 

Health System Support changes in Hospital Café food environment to increase healthy choices 
such as increasing vegetables, reducing processed meats, and decreasing sugar 
sweetened beverages.  

Departmental Develop and support a low-cost, family-centered nutrition/well lifestyle program.   
Increase reimbursement options for individual nutrition counseling and group 
education.  Increase utilization of nutrition counseling services. 

Incline Village Implement a community education/awareness campaign using Tier One Outreach 
Strategies. 

  

4.2 Increase 
adult physical 
activity 

Increase the proportion of adults who 
self-report physical activity 30 
min/day 5 days/week from 34.4% to 
37%. 

34.4% 37.0% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Implement a community education/awareness campaign using Tier One Outreach 
Strategies.  

Health System Collaborate with Tahoe WoRx to support employee health. 

Departmental Support biannual community walking challenges.  Explore partnership 
opportunities to expand year-round, affordable physical activity options. 

Incline Village Implement a community education/awareness campaign using Tier One Outreach 
Strategies.  

  

Page 126 of 134



16 
 

Broad 
Objective 

Outcome Objective Baseline Goal 
Change 

Data Source 

4.3 Increase 
immunization 
rates 

Flu- Increase the proportion of adults 
ages 18-64 who have received the flu 
who in the past year from 48.6% to 
50%. 

48.5% 50% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Flu- Increase the proportion of adults 
ages 65+ who received the flu shot in 
the past year from 72.4% to 75% 

72.4% 75% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

HPV- Increase the proportion of youth 
ages 13-15 who are up-to-date with 
the HPV vaccine from 61.7% to 66%. 

61.7% 64% Mercy EPIC 

Tdap- Increase the proportion of 
adults who have received the Tdap 
vaccine from 62% to 65%. 

62% 64% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Potential Strategies 

Community Each identified vaccine- Tier One Outreach Strategies.  Collaboration with the 
Truckee North Tahoe Immunization Coalition.   

Health System Flu- Investigate the feasibility of the FluFIT6 model (dual promotion of flu shot and 
colorectal cancer screening). 
HPV- Incorporate reminder calls/postcards/MyChart messages to notify and 
remind patients when they are due. 

Departmental Flu- Coordination of the Truckee North Tahoe Immunization Coalition. 
HPV- Continue to support and educate adolescent medical providers on best 
practices.  Collaborate with Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) to 
incorporate cancer prevention education into the adolescent health curriculum.   

Incline Village Each identified vaccine- Tier One Outreach Strategies.  Collaboration with the 
Truckee North Tahoe Immunization Coalition and Nevada Immunization Coalition.   

  

                                                           
6 http://flufit.org/ 

Page 127 of 134



17 
 

Broad 
Objective 

Outcome Objective Baseline Goal 
Change 

Data Source 

4.4 Increase 
health 
screenings 

Colorectal Cancer- Increase the 
proportion of adults ages 50+ who are 
up-to-date with colorectal cancer 
screening from 78% to 80%. 

78% 80% 
TFHS CHNA 

(2017) 

Skin Cancer Increase the proportion of 
adults who perform self-examination 
of their skin from 45% to 47%. 

45% 47% 
Wellness 

Neighborhood  
 (2018) 

Dental- Reduce the proportion of 
children who need dental care or 
urgent care from 38.7% to 35% as 
identified in a school or place-based 
screening. 

38.7% 35% 

Dental 
Coalition 

Screenings 
(2017) 

ACEs7- Identify how to incorporate 
ACE screenings into TFHS. 
 

*Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) are 
traumatic experiences, resulting in toxic stress, 
that have a profound impact on a child’s 
developing brain and body with lasting impacts 
on health.  Screening and supporting patients 
in addressing ACEs allows for comprehensive 
care to reduce negative health impacts. 

Not Yet 
Available 

Dependent 
on 

Baseline  
Mercy EPIC 

Potential Strategies 

Community All identified areas- Tier One Outreach Strategies. 
Colorectal Cancer- Targeted outreach to those not up to date with their colorectal 
cancer screening to share local resources. 
Skin Cancer- Investigate a partnership with local ski resorts. 
Dental- Collaboration with the Truckee North Tahoe Dental Coalition.  Expand 
school-based dental screenings. 

Health System Colorectal Cancer- Investigate feasibility of the FluFIT model. 
Skin Cancer- Investigate feasibility and sustainability of a low-cost screening. 
Dental- Train and use Medical Assistants in the application of fluoride varnish. 
ACEs- Identify a provider champion to explore ACE screening within TFHS. 

Departmental Colorectal Cancer- Identify solutions and address barriers to increase iFOB/FIT8. 
Skin Cancer- Investigate a partnership with the beauty industry professionals to 
increase awareness of the signs of skin cancer.    
Dental- Coordinate the Truckee North Tahoe Dental Coalition.  Collaborate with 
Placer County and Nevada County Oral Health groups. 
ACEs - Facilitate a CME9 for provider education and explore a process plan to 
integrate ACEs Screening and Trauma Informed Care into clinical practice.   

Incline Village All identified areas- Tier One Outreach Strategies. 
Skin Cancer- Investigate a partnership with local ski resorts. 
Dental- Expand the fluoride varnish and sealant programs in local schools. 

                                                           
7 https://www.acesconnection.com/g/california-essentials-for-childhood-initiative/blog/hidden-crisis-report-aces-
in-ca  
8 https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/colorectal/basic_info/screening/tests.htm  
9 CME – Certified Medical Education  

Page 128 of 134

https://www.acesconnection.com/g/california-essentials-for-childhood-initiative/blog/hidden-crisis-report-aces-in-ca
https://www.acesconnection.com/g/california-essentials-for-childhood-initiative/blog/hidden-crisis-report-aces-in-ca
https://www.cdc.gov/cancer/colorectal/basic_info/screening/tests.htm


18 
 

 

Page 129 of 134



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
 

ITEM 
 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District Site Improvements 
Phase 1. 

RESPONSIBLE PARTY 
 

Judy Newland, Chief Operating Officer 
Dylan Crosby, Construction and Facility Manager 

ACTION REQUESTED?  
 

Action #1:  Award construction contract for Tahoe 
Forest Hospital District  Site Improvements Phase 1. 

BACKGROUND:   
 

The Tahoe Forest Hospital Site Improvements Project is included in the Tahoe Forest Health System 
Master Plan. This is a two phased project, the first phase includes the demolition of the 
Administration Building, paving back the disturbed area and striping. The second phase of the project 
will redesign the entire layout of the administration parking lot and site work to allow for expanded 
patient parking. The second phase is planned for calendar year 2019. 
 
 
Purpose:    The purpose of this project is to increase parking for our patients and visitors who need 
services in the Cancer Center, future second floor Physician Specialty Clinics, and Tahoe Forest 
Hospital.  This is a two phase project with Phase 1 being completed prior to this winter and Phase 2 
during calendar year 2019.  
 

SUMMARY/OBJECTIVES:   
Bidding process has been completed.  
 

SUGGESTED DISCUSSION POINTS:  
None 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION/ALTERNATIVES: 

Move to award the contract as listed on TFHD Site Improvements Phase 1 Staff Recommendations on 
Bids/Contracts attachment and authorize the CEO or his designee to sign these contracts.  
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS:   

 TFHD Site Improvements Staff Recommendation 9.27.18.pdf 

 

Page 130 of 134



             Geney/Gassiot, Inc. 5521 West Fourth Street  Reno, NV  89523 p 775.747.2200 f 775.747.2227 CA-416294 NV-0031456 & 0031456A 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
September 27, 2018 
 
 
 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

TFHD Site Improvements Phase 1  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS ON BIDS/CONTRACTS 
 
 
 
Action #1: Geney-Gassiot, Inc. recommends that the Board of Directors award the following contracts: 

 
 Schauer Excavation Inc. for demolition, grading and paving 

 
 
 

Page 131 of 134



 
3142 Tiger Run Court ● Suite 113 ● Carlsbad, CA 92010 

(760) 271 - 0557 ● eosborne@viahcc.com  1 

 

September 18, 2018 

 

TO:  Tahoe Forest Healthcare District (TFHD) Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Karma Bass and Erica Osborne 
  Via Healthcare Consulting 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Strategic Planning Project Update 
 

 
After nine months of considerable effort, the TFHD Strategic Planning process is very close to 
completion. The Strategic Planning Task Force held its final session on August 28, 2018 to assess 
and finalize the Strategic Goals for FYE 2018-2019 and to discuss the process for monitoring and 
updating the proposed strategic plan. Feedback loop sessions were conducted by the 
Administrative Council during August and early September and all feedback has been 
incorporated into the final draft of the Strategic Plan.  
 
The final step of the process includes the presentation and discussion of the proposed Strategic 
Plan at the September 27, 2018 Tahoe Forest Healthcare District Board meeting. Karma Bass is 
pleased to be attending the board meeting and presenting the Tahoe Forest Health System 
2019-2021 Strategic Plan to the Board for their consideration. She looks forward to a robust 
and informative discussion.  
 

Page 132 of 134



MISSION
We exist to make a difference in the health of 

our communities through excellence and 
compassion in all we do

VISION
To serve our region by striving to be the best 

mountain health system in the nation

VALUES
QUALITY  holding ourselves to the highest standards and having personal integrity in all we do
UNDERSTANDING  being aware of the concerns of others, caring for and respecting each other as we interact
EXCELLENCE  doing things right the first time, every time, and being accountable and responsible
STEWARDSHIP  being a community steward in the care, handling and responsible management of resources
     while providing quality healthcare
TEAMWORK  looking out for those we work with, finding ways to support each other in the jobs we do

VIEW 2021
Tahoe Forest Health System exists to provide the most sustainable, comprehensive and advanced 

health care for our region. 

FOUNDATIONS OF EXCELLENCE

People
Best place to work, 

practice, and 
volunteer

Service
Best place to be 

cared for

Quality
Provide clinical 
excellence in 

clinical outcomes

Finance
Provide superior 

financial 
performance

Growth
Meets the needs 
of the community

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: Where we must act to achieve our vision

Strengthen a 
highly-engaged 
culture that 
inspires teamwork

Optimize delivery 
model to achieve 
operational and 
clinical efficiency

Pursue excellence 
in quality, safety 
and patient 
experience

Ensure a highly 
sustainable 
financial future

Foster and grow 
community and 
regional 
relationships

GOALS: What we must accomplish to achieve priorities

· Build trust
· Build a culture 

based on the 
foundations of our 
Values

· Attract, develop, 
and retain strong 
talent and promote 
great careers

· Develop integrate, 
standardized and 
innovative 
processes across all 
services

· Use technology to 
improve efficiencies

· Implement a 
focused master plan

· Focus on our 
culture of safety

· Prioritize the 
patient and family 
perspective

· Identify and 
promote best 
practice and 
evidence-based 
medicine

· Establish a 
transparent financial 
reporting system 

· Pursue, reach, and 
maintain an A- bond 
rating

· Achieve balance 
between strategic 
requirements and 
capital capabilities 
while protecting 
long-term financial 
integrity 

· Continue to improve 
revenue cycle 
efficiency and 
effectiveness

· Explore and engage 
potential 
collaborations and 
partnerships 

· Enhance and 
promote our value 
to the community

· Define opportunities 
for growth and 
recapture 
outmigration

Tahoe Forest Health System 2019-2021 Strategic Plan Framework

Version 8/27/18Page 133 of 134



 

  Page 1 of 1 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
     Friday, September 21, 2018 at 10:30 a.m.  

Eskridge Conference Room - Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Chuck Zipkin, M.D., Chair; Mary Brown, Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board Clerk 24 
hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot 
take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, 
briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 03/08/2018 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT  
 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Review of Proposed Equipment Financing 

6.1.1. Proposed Analysis and Financing Schedule ........................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.1.2. Ratio Information................................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.1.3. Draft Resolution and Draft Agreements ............................................................. ATTACHMENT 

6.2. Financial Reports 
6.2.1. Financial Report – August 2018 .......................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

6.3. Policy Review 
6.3.1. ABD-11 Fiscal Policy ............................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.3.2. ABD-23 Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds

 .............................................................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 
 

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

8. AGENDA INPUT FOR NEXT FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

9. NEXT MEETING DATE 
 

10. ADJOURN 
 

 
*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 134 of 134


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	AGENDA
	2018-09-27 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors_FINAL Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
	12. SAFETY FIRST
	13. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
	13.1. Wellness Neighborhood Thank You for Truckee Thursdays Baby Station
	13.2. September Employee of the Month.pdf
	13.3. Becker's Community Hospital CIOs to Know 2018.pdf
	13.4. Beckers Top 66 Critical Access Hospitals 2018.pdf
	13.5. National Customer Service Week - October 1-5.pdf

	14. MEDICAL STAFF EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
	14.1.a. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Consent Agenda.pdf
	14.1.b. Immuniz-Vacc MS-AHP Revised.pdf

	15. CONSENT CALENDAR
	15.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes
	15.1.1. 2018-08-23 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	15.1.2. 2018-09-12 Special Meeting of the Board of Directors_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

	15.2. Financial Report
	15.2.1. Financial Report - August 2018.pdf

	15.3. Board Reports
	15.3.1. CEO Board Report - September 2018.pdf
	15.3.2. COO Board Report -September 2018 v2.pdf
	15.3.3. CNO Board Report - September 2018.pdf
	15.3.4. CIIO Board Report - September 2018.pdf
	15.3.5. CMO Board Report - September 2018.pdf

	15.4. Policy Review
	ABD-11 and ABD-23 Cover Sheet.pdf
	15.4.1. ABD-11 Fiscal Policy.pdf
	15.4.2. ABD-23 Post-Issuance Compliance Procedures for Outstanding Tax-Exempt Bonds.pdf


	16. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION
	16.1. Resolution for Equipment Financing
	16.1.a. Resolution 2018-08.pdf
	16.1.b. Opus Tahoe Forest Hosp Dist Installment Purchase Agreement v2.pdf
	16.1.c. Opus Tahoe Forest Hosp Dist Schedule Number 01 v2.pdf
	16.1.d. Amortization Table 9-18-18.pdf

	16.2. 2018 Community Health Improvement Plan.pdf
	16.3. Award of Construction Bid
	16.2.a. Cover Sheet - TFHD Site Improvements Phase 1.pdf
	16.2.b. TFHD Site Improvements Staff Recommendation 9.27.18.pdf

	16.4. 2019-2021 Strategic Plan Approval
	16.4.a. Via Consulting Monthly TFHD Board Update on Strategic Planning 09-18-2018.pdf
	16.4.b. Strategic Plan Framework v2.pdf


	17. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION
	17.1. Recap of Governance Institute Leadership Conference 

	18. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY
	19. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	19.1. 2018-09-21 Board Finance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 20 - 25: See Agenda
	26. ADJOURN

